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George Washington 
It has been rightly claimed, originally by Henry Lee, that George Washington ( 1732-1799) was 
"first in war, first in peace, and first in the hearts of his countrymen." President Washington 
visited Columbia in 1791 and addressed a large crowd from the portico of the old State House. 

AndF- Jacbon 
Andrew Jac.)<son (1767-1845) was the wn of Scots-Irish immigrants 
who lived in Lancaster County. following his heroic service in the 
War of 1812. Jackson embarked on a political career. which 
culminated in his election as Pr<:sident of the United States in 1832. 
Jackson was tho only United States President born in South Carolina. 



STATE OF 
SOUTH CAROLINA -------... 

COMPREHENSIVE 
ANNUAL 

FINANCIAL 
REPORT 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED 
JUNE 30, 

1998 

Prepared by the Comptroller General's Office 



COMPTROLLER'S MESSAGE ... 

ACCOUNTABILITY TO THE 
TAXPAYERS 

In 1976 when I was elected Comptroller General of South Carolina, the state had no 
modem accounting and financial reporting systems. 

We had numbers in a computer. There was no valid year-end balance. 

Shortly after my assumption as the state's Chief Financial Officer, one of the major bond 
rating firms stated that unless state and local governments had financial systems that met 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), a negative bond rating might result. 

With the help of several Big 8 (6) (5) accounting and consulting firms and a highly 
professional staff, South Carolina now has state-of-the-art disclosures on all state 
accounts. 

We have accomplished the following: 

(1) The Government Finance Officers Association has awarded its 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for 
the past ten years. 

(2) The Office of the Comptroller General has received an "unqualified 
opinion" from a Big 5 firm and the State Auditor for the past ten 
consecutive years. 

(3) The bond rating firms use our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
as the primary document in determining the state's bond ratings. At 
present, we have the highest ratings that can be awarded. 

( 4) Credit should be given to the General Assembly for their efforts in 
regaining one of the Triple A ratings lost several years ago. 

In public office, ethical integrity and personal credibility should be foremost in our 
stewardship. 

The Office of the Comptroller General has attempted to follow these goals for the 
citizens and taxpayers who place their trust in~~~ fl. 
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A GALLERY OF HEROES 

The land of South Carolina varies dramatically as one travels from the sandy beaches 
and marshes of the coast to the rugged and noble Blue Ridge Mountains which touch the 
northwest comer of the State. Between these two extremes lie a land and a people 
molded by bonds shared and differences celebrated. 

The river which reaches the coast has been shaped since its beginning as a mountain 
spring-it has changed and taken on new qualities as it has passed through each 
succeeding geographic area. Likewise the South Carolinian will find in him or her the 
voices, traditions, and customs of peoples living and dead, African and European. He or 
she will be blessed and enriched by the numerous cultures that are known and 
experienced in the Palmetto State. 

The first explorers came to the New World from Spain and entered the land now known 
as South Carolina in 1521. They soon encountered the multiplicity of Indian nations that 
populated the area at that time. Among these were the Cherokee, the Santee, the Wando, 
and the Catawba-the descendants of whom still live in upper South Carolina. The 
English made the first successful permanent settlement in the latter half of the 
seventeenth century. These early Carolinians were enticed by offers of land as well as 
some of the most tolerant religious policies in British North America. By the time of the 
American Revolution, the colony of South Carolina was home for English, French, 
German, Irish, Welsh, Dutch, Scotch, Swedish, and Jewish immigrants in measurable 
numbers. Additionally, within these groups themselves were numerous religious and 
cultural traditions. One group that contributed as much as any other to the fashioning of 
a South Carolina culture did not choose to come at all; they were the African slaves. 
Together these widely varying groups have achieved independence, equality, and 
prosperity over 300 years of history. 

These achievements and cultures are celebrated in ways as various as the people 
themselves. In the State House, the seat of South Carolina government, are works of art 
depicting the proud heritage of the Palmetto State. Revolutionary War heroes Francis 
Marion and Thomas Sumter and civil rights leaders Mary McLeod Bethune and 
Benjamin Mays are some of the notable examples of the nearly one hundred paintings 
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and memorials honoring men and women who have helped make South Carolina a better 
place to live. 

Within this report are both the pictures of the past and an economic picture of the 
present. Together they reveal the culture of South Carolina, which is mindful of its 
diverse history and well prepared for a challenging and exciting future. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

-

In May 1782, General Francis Marion received the surrender of Captain Butler, a notorious Tory, detested and 
threatened with death by Marion's men. At the risk of a mutiny, and despite threats against his own life, Marion 
intervened on Butler's behalf. Guided by humane principles, Marion knew that there would have to be 
forgiveness of enemies if the country were to be united after the war. 
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Defense of Fort Moultrie 
In one of the earliest engagements of the Revolutionary War, a British fleet attempted to 
attack Charleston on June 28, 1776. The heroic garrison at the fort on Sullivan's Island 
stopped them, however. The fort, because it had been constructed of sand and spongy 
palmetto logs, made the constant cannonade from the ships ineffective. The victory 
provided both a much needed morale boost for the Patriots as well as a new symbol for 
South Carolina-the palmetto tree. 
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James F. Byrnes 
James Francis Byrnes (1879-1972), a native of Charleston, was a respected political figure 
on both the state and national levels throughout the twentieth century. Byrnes was elected to 
the United States House of Representatives in 1911 and to the United States Senate in 1930. 
While in the Senate, Byrnes became a close confidante of President Franklin Roosevelt. In 
1941 Roosevelt appointed Byrnes to the Supreme Court, a position which he left in 1942 in 
order to become wartime Director of the National Economy. Following Roosevelt's death 
he became Secretary of State, and in 1950 he was elected Governor of South Carolina. 
Byrnes also was named a United Nations delegate by President Eisenhower and was 
celebrated as Time Magazine's "Man of the Year" in 1946. 
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLI i'lA 

EARLE E. MORRIS, JR. 

COM PTROLL.ER GENERAL 

December 2, 1998 

To the Citizens, Governor and 
Members of the South 
Carolina General Assembly 

WADE I-lAMPTON OFFICE BUILDING 

POST OFFICE BOX 11228 

COLUMBIA. S.C. 29211 

TELEPHONE' 734-2121 

It is my pleasure to present to the citizens of South Carolina this 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the State of South Carolina for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 1998. The report provides financial information about the State's 
operations during the year and describes its financial position at the end of the year. 

Contained in the report is information for the use of all those interested in the 
State's finances, including South Carolina taxpayers, members of the General 
Assembly and directors of the State's executive agencies as well as those investors 
and creditors with whom the State has an ongoing business relationship. 

As the Comptroller General and Chief Financial Officer of South Carolina, I 
present these financial statements as my representations, and I express confidence that 
the information is accurate in all material respects. The citizens of South Carolina 
may be further assured that this report contains all material facts about the State's 
financial condition and thereby reflects my total commitment to accountability to the 
taxpayers through full public disclosure. 

For the convenience of users, we have divided the report into three sections as 
follows: 

• The Introductory Section, containing this letter of transmittal, the 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for 
the June 30, 1997 report, a list of State officials and an organizational 
chart of State government. 

• The Financial Section, consisting of the general purpose financial 
statements (combined statements, component unit combining 
statements, and notes), required supplementary information, other 
combining financial statements, and schedules. 
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• The Statistical Section, presenting comparative financial data and other 
non-financial data. 

MAJOR INITIATIVES 

South Carolina aggressively reinforced its commitment to public education at 
every level during the 1998 session of the General Assembly. 

Acknowledging the direct linkage between the State's ability to sustain 
economic growth and the quality of its education systems, the legislature concentrated 
much of its initiative into the Education Accountability Act of 1998, a comprehensive 
legislative package designed to establish academic standards and to monitor 
compliance and performance. 

The Act requires the establishment of detailed grade-level standards in 
specific subjects and requires assessment of students' and schools' success in meeting 
the standards. Performances are measured and reported annually both in terms of 
meeting standards and also in improving performance year-to-year. 

The legislature also launched programs to ease the cost burden of post
secondary education and to induce South Carolina's high school graduates to remain 
in the State for their college education. The Legislative Incentives for Future 
Excellence (LIFE) scholarship program offers direct academic scholarships to 
qualified students. A program of tuition tax credits is available for those not 
qualifying under the LIFE program. 

The State continued its commitment to providing tax relief for homeowners. 
During 1997-98, $276.973 million was returned to homeowners in the form of 
property tax exemptions. For the 1998-99 fiscal year, the General Assembly has 
provided for $292.651 million in tax relief under the residential property tax relief and 
homestead exemption programs. 

The General Assembly adopted several significant health care insurance 
provisions addressing access to emergency medical care, broadening of health care 
benefits, and privacy of genetic information. One major initiative provided an 
additional $11 million in funding to be used for nursing home beds and for additional 
community long-term care services. 

A further crackdown on driving under the influence of alcohol was adopted 
and directed toward youthful drivers. The new legislation takes a "zero tolerance" 
approach which makes it automatic that drivers under the age of 21 who test with a 
blood alcohol level of .02 or higher will have driving privileges suspended for three 
months. The legislature is also exploring modification of the State's current 
requirement that bars and restaurants use mini-bottles for the sale of alcoholic 
beverages. Such a change would require a Constitutional amendment and could be 
submitted for public vote in the year 2000. 
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ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

Over the last two decades the economy of South Carolina has grown faster 
than that of the rest of the country. Businesses have migrated here from all over the 
world to take advantage of the State's skilled labor force, competitive wages, lower
priced land, excellent port facilities, accessibility to markets, and in recent years, 
substantial tax incentives. Since 1970, industry has made $59 billion of investments 
in plants within the State. 

The State's recreation and retirement industries have also been rapidly 
growing economic sectors over the last two decades. Each year more retirees move 
here to take advantage of the area's mild climate, lower cost of living and special tax 
incentives for people over 65 years of age. The number of individuals receiving 
Social Security retirement pay has grown at a rapid average annual rate of 4.2% since 
1970. The annual income from retirement now exceeds an estimated $6 billion. 

The State's coastal areas have emerged as one ofthe leading recreation centers 
on the east coast, providing even more stimulus to South Carolina's growing 
economy. Personal income in Horry County, which includes the Grand Strand area, 
has grown at an extraordinary 10.4% per year over the last two decades and exceeds 
$3 billion. 

Since 1970, nearly 500,000 people have migrated to the State to take 
advantage of a growing economy and to retire here. Total personal income of South 
Carolina has grown nearly ten-fold, one-fifth faster than growth in personal income in 
the United States. During the high inflationary 1970s personal income grew at an 
average annual compound rate at 11.8% compared to a much lower 10.7% 
nationwide. Even in the lower inflationary 1980s personal income in South Carolina 
grew a healthy 8.5% per year, compared to a lesser 7.7% nationwide. Employment in 
South Carolina over the last two decades has grown one-fifth faster than in the United 
States as a whole. 

Although South Carolina has been one of the poorer states in the nation since 
the War Between the States, the State is closing the gap in wealth between it and the 
rest of the country. In 1970, per capita income of South Carolina was only 74% of 
the national average, but has since increased to 81% of the national average. 

The State's economy has begun fiscal year 1998-99 on a positive footing. 
Funds are available to help prevent budgetary reductions in the event of an economic 
slowdown during the fiscal year. Employment in the State was up by 250,000 in 
July 1998 versus its level during the recession of 1991. Although statistics for the 
fiscal year were not yet available from the Department of Commerce, the State's 
Board of Economic Advisors estimated that personal income growth was in the 
healthy range of 5% to 6%. 

In recent years, the State passed economic development legislation to further 
enhance the attractiveness of businesses to locate in rural sections of the State by 
substantially increasing the tax incentives that companies may be eligible to take. 
Through September 1998, over 420 companies have taken advantage of the tax 
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incentive package offered by the State. Global companies such as BMW, Honda of 
America, Bridgestone/Firestone, Michelin, Hoffman-LaRoche, and Nucor 
Corporation have located corporate headquarters or have constructed multi-million
dollar manufacturing facilities within the State. In addition to these projects, there 
have been other announcements of new plants or additions to existing plants in the 
State which will contribute to the State's continued growth. 

The State's Board of Economic Advisors met on November 10, 1998, and 
report~ that the State's Budgetary General Fund revenue collections at the end of the 
first four months of fiscal year 1998-99 were greater than anticipated. As a result, the 
Board of Economic Advisors raised the General Fund revenue estimate for 1998-99, 
anticipating a revenue excess of $75 million in fiscal year 1998-99 over the 
Appropriation Act. The Income Tax and Sales Tax, the State's two leading sources of 
revenues, were both healthy, indicating that the State's economy was not showing 
signs of an economic slowdown. 

FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

Internal Controls 

The Statewide Accounting and Reporting System (STARS) is the State's 
budgetary-basis operating accounting system. This double-entry system, installed in 
1981-82, processes cash and budgetary transactions and maintains records for all 
budgeted funds and some unbudgeted funds. The State's higher education institutions 
and most of the enterprise entities maintain separate accrual-basis accounting 
systems. 

An automated system in the Comptroller General's Office designed to allow 
reporting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) 
converts budgetary-basis STARS data into the format presented in this report. State 
agencies that use STARS complete year-end forms to adjust the budgetary-basis 
balances to conform with GAAP. The Comptroller General's Office enters data into 
the GAAP reporting system from these forms as well as from audited financial 
statements for the higher education institutions, component units, and most State 
enterprise entities. 

The State's internal controls, designed by the management of the State, 
provide reasonable assurance that the following objectives are achieved: 

• Reliability of financial reporting, 

• Effectiveness and efficiency of operations, and 

• Compliance with applicable laws and regulations. 

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control 
should not exceed the resulting benefits. 
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Budgetary Controls 

South Carolina's annual Appropriation Act includes legally adopted budgets 
for the Budgetary General Fund and for aggregated Other Budgeted Funds. Except 
for the Retail Sales Tax and selected other taxes estimated on a modified accrual 
basis, the State estimates revenues on a cash receipts basis. Appropriations for 
1997-98 covered all expenditures deemed applicable to that year and paid on or 
before July 20, 1998. Agencies may carry forward up to 10% of unexpended 
Budgetary General Fund appropriations to the next year. Any remaining unexpended 
Budgetary General Fund appropriations lapse unless the Appropriation Act 
specifically authorizes agencies to carry them forward to the next fiscal year. 

State law does not require encumbrance accounting. Accordingly, the State 
does not record encumbrances (except for some higher education institutions). The 
State currently maintains budgetary control for expenditures at the level of summary 
object category within each program of each organizational unit. Except for accounts 
of higher education institutions, STARS checks to be sure that an account has 
sufficient remaining appropriations before it will charge an expenditure to that 
account. Organizational units may request transfers of appropriations among object 
categories and/or among programs within the same budgetary fund. The Budget and 
Control Board has authority to approve these appropriation transfers within certain 
limits. 

The initial budget appears in the annual Appropriation Act. The Budget and 
Control Board reduces the Budgetary General Fund's appropriations during the year if 
it anticipates a year-end operating deficit. Likewise, the State Board of Economic 
Advisors may approve revisions of estimated revenues of the Budgetary General 
Fund during the year. One such upward revision was approved in November 1997. 

The General Assembly enacted a 1996-97 Supplemental Appropriations Act 
and authorized those unexpended appropriations to carry forward from the 1996-97 
fiscal year into the 1997-98 fiscal year. However, the General Assembly did not 
enact any Supplemental Appropriations Acts that directly increased appropriations for 
the 1997-98 fiscal year. 

State law specifies procedures for processing requested budget changes m 
Other Budgeted Funds and for permanent improvement projects. 

THE REPORTING ENTITY 

The State's reporting entity includes all of the funds and account groups that 
make up the primary government of the State of South Carolina as well as its 
component units. The funds and account groups of the primary government are under 
the oversight of the State's General Assembly and the Budget and Control Board. The 
primary government consists of agencies, departments, funds, and institutions that are 
not legally separate from the State. 

Component units are legally separate entities for which the State and its 
elected officials are considered to be financially accountable. Criteria to determine 
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financial accountability include the ability of State officials to appoint a voting 
majority of the entity's governing body, the ability of the State to impose its will on 
the entity, and the potential for the entity to provide a financial benefit to the State or 
impose a financial burden upon the State. The State's discretely presented component 
units are: the South Carolina Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper); South 
Carolina State Ports Authority; the Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund; 
Connector 2000 Association, Inc.; and Enterprise Development, Inc., of South 
Carolina. Note 1a in the Notes to the Financial Statements provides a more complete 
description of the State's reporting entity. 

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW 

The following sections detail revenues and expenditures of the State's General 
and Special Revenue Funds. In addition, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, 
other financing uses exceeded other financing sources for these funds by 
$692.981 million. 

Revenues 

The State's most significant sources of revenue are its 5% retail sales tax, its 
individual income tax (2.5% to 7.0% tax rates) and Federal grants. The following 
schedule summarizes revenues of the General and Special Revenue Funds for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 (expressed in thousands) and the amounts (expressed 
in thousands) and percentages of increases in relation to prior year revenues: 

1997-98 Percent of Increase Percentage 
Revenues Amount Total from 1996-97 Increase 

Individual incorre tax .............................. $ 2,103,799 20.9% $ 176,199 9.1% 
Retail sales and use tax ......................... 2,304,004 22.9% 162,140 7.6% 
Other taxes ............................................ 1,190,605 11.8% 26,716 2.3% 
Licenses, fees, and perrrits .................. 281,242 2.8% 22,282 8.6% 
Interest and other investrrent incorre .... 130,155 1.3% 16,956 15.0% 
FederaL .................................................. 3,213,004 31.9% 125,692 4.1% 
Departrrental services ........................... 540,047 5.4% 6,652 1.2% 
Contributions .......................................... 155,137 1.5% 39,398 34.0% 
Fines and penalties ................................ 61,744 0.6% 3,574 6.1% 
Other ...................................................... 81,067 0.9% 10,643 15.1% 

Totals ............................................ $ 10,060,804 100.0% $ 590,252 6.2% 
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Federal 
31.9% 

REVENUES 1997-98 

Other 

Licenses, fees, 
and permits 

2.8% 
Other taxes 

11.8% 

Individual income tax 
20.9% 

Departmental 
services 

5.4% 

and use tax 
22.9% 

Interest and other investment income were higher because the continued 
improvement in the State's financial position made more cash available for 
investment. 

Contributions revenue increased as a result of the first year of operations of 
the South Carolina Transportation Infrastructure Banlc The Bank will use this 
revenue to fund major road projects. 

The increase in the Other category of revenues resulted from larger than 
normal refunds for prior-year Medicaid and other program expenditures being 
reported for the current fiscal year. 

Expenditures 

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund and Special 
Revenue Funds expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 (expressed in 
thousands), and the amounts (expressed in thousands) and percentages of increases 
(decreases) in relation to prior year expenditures: 
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Increase Percentage 
1997-98 Percent of (Decrease) Increase 

Expenditures Amount Total from 1996-97 (Decrease) 
CUrrent 

General governrrent. ............................. $ 352,065 3.9% $ 909 0.3% 
Education ............................................... 318,558 3.5% (7,545) (2.3%) 
Health and environrrent... ...................... 3,121,887 34.4% 88,892 2.9% 
Social services ...................................... 662,912 7.3% (37,530) (5.4%) 
Admnistration of justice ........................ 592,556 6.5% 49,100 9.0% 
Resources and economic developrrent 160,242 1.7% 10,111 6.7% 
Transportation ....................................... 281,021 3.1% 50,637 22.0% 

Capital outlay ........................................... 396.801 4.4% (39,997) (9.2%) 
Debt service: 

A"incipal retirerrent. ............................... 110,076 1.2% 12,348 12.6% 
Interest and fiscal charges .................... 51' 132 0.6% (2,361) (4.4%) 

lntergovernrrental. ................................... 3,032,018 33.4% 226,434 8.1% 

Totals ............................................. $ 9,079,268 100.0% $ 350,998 4.0% 

EXPENDITURES 1997-98 

Intergovernmental 
33.4% 

Other 
3.5% 

Capital outlay 
4.4% 

Transportation 
3.1% Administration 

of justice 
6.5% 

General government 
3.9% 

Social services 
7.3% 

Education 
3.5% 

environment 
34.4% 
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Transportation expenditures increased during the fiscal year because of the 
renewed emphasis on infrastructure development. Much of the increase reflects the 
fact that the Department of Transportation is paying a portion of the costs associated 
with a major road project under the control of the South Carolina Transportation 
Infrastructure Bank. 

The increase in debt service principal retirements resulted from an increase in 
State general obligation bonds, issued in prior years, that matured during the current 
fiscal year. 

Status of Fund Balances 

GAAP-basis fund balances for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds 
at June 30 (expressed in thousands) for the last five years were: 

1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 
General Fund 

Reserved ....................................... $ 286,945 $ 450,686 $ 545,796 $ 461,303 $ 335,709 
Ulreserved .................................... (109,468) (294,233) (261,065) (202,981) (303,628) 

Total General Fund .................. $ 177,477 $ 156,453 $ 284,731 $ 258,322 $ 32,081 

Special Revenue Funds 
Reserved ....................................... $ 204,427 $ 205,377 $ 202,628 $ 172,487 $ 126,482 
lklreserved, designated ................ 165,328 128,640 112,144 73,946 174,827 
lklreserved, undesignated ............ 775,557 541,769 386,726 383,955 292,657 

Total Special Revenue Funds $ 1,145,312 $ 875,786 $ 701,498 $ 630,388 $ 593,966 

The reserved component of fund balance represents amounts legally required 
to be segregated and amounts that cannot be appropriated for future expenditure. The 
unreserved component of fund balance is computed as total fund balance less reserved 
amounts. Even though the total fund balance in the General Fund was positive, the 
unreserved component of fund balance was negative because the reserve requirements 
exceeded total fund balance. 

The designated portion of unreserved fund balance reflects tentative plans for 
future use of available financial resources. 

PROPRIETARY OPERATIONS 

Primary Government 

There are several proprietary segments of South Carolina's primary 
government. Significant segments among these include the State Housing Finance 
and Development Authority, which provides low-cost housing to the State's citizens 
by issuing bonds/notes and by administering Federal contracts and grants, and the 
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Education Assistance Authority, which issues bonds for the purpose of making loans 
to eligible students. 

Financial highlights of these segments (expressed in thousands) for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 1998, are as follows: 

Operating revenues ... . 

Net income .................. . 

Total assets ................ . 

Total fund equity ......... . 

Housing 
Authority 

$ 52,825 
12,019 

654,060 
161,749 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

Education 
Assistance 

Authority 

$ 44,708 
15,888 

483,813 
107,443 

The State's two largest proprietary operations are discretely presented 
component units. 

The Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper) is South Carolina's State
owned public power resource. The Public Service Authority (Santee-Cooper) 
produces and sells electric power and wholesale water to individuals, businesses, 
electric cooperatives and municipal power departments. The Public Service 
Authority (Santee-Cooper) made payments to the State's General Fund of 
$7.462 million during its fiscal year ended December 31, 1997. The distribution to 
the General Fund is based primarily on operating cash flows and mandatory reserve 
requirements. 

The State Ports Authority develops and maintains State harbors and seaports 
and handles the commerce through these ports. 

Highlights of segment financial information (expressed in thousands) for 
discretely presented component units for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, follow: 
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Operating revenues ... . 

Net incorre .................. . 

Total assets ................ . 

Total fund equ~y ......... . 

FIDUCIARY OPERATIONS 

Public 
Service 

Authority 
(Santee
Cooper) 

$ 727,824 
6,261 

3,355,148 

797,130 

State 
Ports 

Authority 

$ 80,965 
15,498 

381,545 

303,751 

The most significant of the State's Fiduciary Funds are the four retirement 
plans administered by the South Carolina Retirement Systems. Those plans include: 
the South Carolina Retirement System, the Police Officers' Retirement System, the 
Retirement System for Members of the General Assembly, and the Retirement 
System for Judges and Solicitors. 

The State presents investments of its Pension Trust Funds at fair (market) 
value, in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standard's Board Statement 25, 
"Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for 
Defined Contribution Plans", and Statement 27, "Accounting for Pensions by State 
and Local Governmental Employers." The State has met all actuarially determined 
funding requirements for the four plans administered by the South Carolina 
Retirement Systems in the current period and in past periods. Under Statement 27, 
the State has no pension liability for those plans at June 30, 1998. 

The South Carolina Adjutant General's Office administers the National Guard 
Pension System. The State recorded a $5.122 million pension liability for that plan in 
the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group at June 30, 1998. See Note 7, 
"Retirement Plans," in the Notes to the Financial Statements for more information. 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

The State finances many of its major capital needs by issuing bonds. Some of 
this debt is general obligation debt backed by the full faith, credit and taxing power of 
the State. Much of the debt, however, is revenue bonds and notes associated with 
specific State agencies and discretely presented component units. Specific revenue 
flows of particular agencies and discretely presented component units service revenue 
debt. 

Moody's Investors Service has rated South Carolina's general obligation bonds 
as "Aaa," and Standard & Poor's and Fitch Investors Service, Inc. rate these bonds as 
"AAA," the highest ratings awarded. The Comptroller General's Office annually 
furnishes the State's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and related information 
to the bond rating firms. This process is critical to ensuring that the State maintains 
its current high bond ratings. 



State of South Carolina 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, South Carolina issued 
$85.854 million and retired $101.915 million in general obligation bonds payable by 
governmental funds. Of the bonds issued, $47.500 million were State highway 
bonds. The State budgets and pays principal and interest on capital improvement 
bonds from current resources of the Budgetary General Fund. The Department of 
Transportation Special Revenue Fund pays the debt service on highway bonds. At 
June 30, 1998, the Higher Education Funds reported State institution general 
obligation bonds outstanding of $84.465 million. 

The State's available legal debt margin at June 30, 1998, was $5.535 million 
for institution bonds. State law limits annual debt service expenditures rather than 
directly limiting the amount of outstanding debt for general obligation bonds/notes. 
The annual debt service margin at June 30, 1998, was $48.316 million for highway 
bonds and $93.895 million for general obligation bonds excluding institution and 
highway bonds. 

Net general obligation bonds/notes outstanding per capita (which excludes 
general obligation bonds payable from Higher Education Funds) is a useful indicator 
to citizens, investors and management of the State's debt position. The following 
table shows this amount at June 30 for the last three years: 

1998 1997 1996 

Net general obligation bonds/notes 
outstanding ................................. $952 million $967 million $965 million 

Net general obligation bonds/notes 
outstanding per capita ................ $249 $257 $260 

The General Services Fund, an Internal Service Fund, had $35.569 million of 
limited obligation lease revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 1998. 

The primary government's entities had revenue bonds, notes, and certificates 
of participation of $1.256 billion outstanding on June 30, 1998. Revenue bonds, 
notes, and certificates of participation outstanding (expressed in thousands) by agency 
were: 

South Carolina Housing Authority ....................................................... . 

South Carolina Education Assistance Authority ................................. . 
Various higher education institutions ................................................. . 
Other State agencies .......................................................................... . 

Total-primary government ....................................................... . 

$ 471,181 

363,240 
418,590 

3,096 

$ 1,256,107 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, the Education Assistance 
Authority advance refunded $46.300 million in revenue bonds to have bonds under 
the 1993 bond resolution instead of the 1979 bond resolution and obtained an 
economic gain of $779 thousand. For additional details on this refunding as well as 
advance refundings in the Higher Education Funds, see Note 11 in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements. 
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In addition, discretely presented component units had the following amounts 
ofbonds and notes outstanding (expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1998: 

South Carolina Public Ser.1ce Authority (Santee-Cooper) .......... . 
South Carolina State Ports Authority ....................................... . 
Enterprise De-.elopment, Inc ................................................... . 

Total-discretely presented component units. .................. . 

$ 2,099,672 
57,467 

345 

$ 2,157,484 

During its fiscal year ended December 31, 1997, the Public Service Authority 
(Santee-Cooper) advance refunded $205.820 million in revenue bonds to reduce its 
total debt service payments over the next thirty-four years by approximately 
$22.228 million and to obtain an economic gain of approximately $11.885 million. 
For additional details on this refunding and other Authority debt transactions, see 
Note 11 in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

CASH MANAGEMENT 

State law requires full collateralization of all State Treasurer bank balances. 
Agencies and component units may have collateralization policies that differ from 
those ofthe State Treasurer. 

Legally authorized investments vary by fund, but generally include 
obligations of the United States and certain agencies of the United States, obligations 
of the State of South Carolina and certain of its political subdivisions, certificates of 
deposit, collateralized repurchase agreements and certain obligations of United States 
corporations. For additional details, see Note 1g in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements. 

As provided by law, the State Treasurer deposits money in a general deposit 
account. The State records earnings of the general deposit account as revenue of the 
General Fund. The Treasurer deposits other monies into various special deposit 
accounts, each of which retains its own earnings. 

State agencies that issue their own checks participate in pooled bank accounts. 
These agencies issue checks against the pooled bank accounts. Meanwhile, the State 
Treasurer invests account balances until the checks clear. 

Investment income for the General Fund totaled $72.412 million for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 1998. This income includes realized and unrealized gains and 
losses. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The State generally does not purchase commercial insurance for the risks of 
loss to which it is exposed. Instead, State management believes it is more economical 
to manage its risk internally. Accordingly, the State sets aside assets for claim 
settlement in its Internal Service Funds-specifically, in the Insurance Reserve Fund 
(IRF), the Health and Disability Insurance Fund, and the State Accident Fund. 
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The IRF services claims for many of the risks of loss to which the State is 
exposed, including the following: property insurance on government owned 
buildings, the contents of such buildings, equipment, and automobiles; automobile 
liability insurance on government owned vehicles and school buses; tort liability 
insurance for government premises and operations; and medical professional liability 
for hospitals. The IRF purchases insurance to cover risks where it has limited 
expertise (aircraft insurance and ocean marine insurance). The IRF purchases 
reinsurance to limit losses in the areas of property, boiler and machinery, automobile 
liability, and medical professional liability. Reinsurance permits partial recovery of 
losses from reinsurers; but the IRF, as direct insurer of the risks, remains primarily 
liable. 

The Health and Disability Insurance Fund was established to provide health 
and dental insurance coverage for eligible employees and retirees of State agencies 
and school districts and group life and long term disability insurance coverage to 
eligible active State and public school employees. The State, the predominant 
participant, retains the risk of loss. Under the health insurance program, participants 
elect coverage through either a health maintenance organization or the State's self
insured plan. All dental, group life, and long-term disability coverage is through the 
State's self-insured plan. 

Section 42-7-10 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, established 
the State Accident Fund to provide a program of workers' compensation insurance 
coverage to State entities. The State assumes the full risk for covered claims. The 
Fund purchases reinsurance to reduce its exposure to catastrophic losses on insured 
events; however, as direct insurer of the risk, the Fund remains primarily liable. 

The State conducts various risk control programs to help minimize losses. For 
example, the health insurance program conducts extensive wellness education 
programs for covered employees that promote development and maintenance of 
healthful lifestyles. 

The State also administers the Patients' Compensation Fund, an insurance 
enterprise, which provides medical malpractice insurance to participating licensed 
health care providers within the State of South Carolina. 

AUDIT 

An independent audit of the general purpose financial statements was 
performed jointly by the State Auditor and the independent certified public 
accounting firm of Deloitte & Touche LLP. This year, the auditors have excluded 
Note 22, The Year 2000 Issue, from the scope of the audit and, accordingly, have 
discussed this in their report. Management of the State believes that Note 22 meets 
all requirements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board for disclosure 
about the year 2000 issue and that it has supported such disclosures with sufficient 
competent evidential matter. However, the auditors have determined that, through no 
fault of the State or its management, Note 22 should be excluded from the scope of 
the audit because of the unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, and that the 
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effects of this issue and the success of related remediation efforts will not be fully 
determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. 

The audit described above is not intended to meet the requirements of the 
Federal Single Audit Act as amended. The Single Audit reports for the State are 
issued separately. 

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and 
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting to the State of South Carolina for its comprehensive annual financial report 
(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997. In order to be awarded a Certificate 
of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently 
organized CAFR whose contents conform to rigorous program standards. Such 
reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable 
legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year 
only. 

The State of South Carolina has received a Certificate of Achievement for the 
last ten consecutive years (1987-88 through 1996-97). Again this year, the State will 
submit its CAFR to the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting program of the GFOA. I firmly believe that South Carolina's report for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, meets the requirements to receive the Certificate of 
Achievement. 
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EARLE E. MORRIS, JR. 
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Andrew Pickens 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Andrew Pickens (1739-1817) was a popular military and political leader in the 
Revolutionary period. A planter in the Waxhaws area of South Carolina, Pickens was a 
member of the South Carolina Senate and House as well as the United States Congress. 
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Principal State Officials 
June 30, 1998 

LEGISLATIVE-THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY 
Robert L. Peeler, President of the Senate and Lieutenant Governor 
John Drummond, President Pro Tempore of the Senate 
David H. Wilkins, Speaker, House of Representatives 

EXECUTIVE 
STATE BUDGET AND CONTROL BOARD 

David M. Beasley,* Chairman, Governor 
Earle E. Morris, Jr.,* Comptroller General 
Richard A. Eckstrom,* State Treasurer 
John Drummond, Chairman, Senate Finance Committee 
Henry E. Brown, Jr., Chairman, House Ways and Means Committee 

James M. Miles, Secretary of State 
Charles M. Condon, Attorney General 
Dr. Barbara S. Nielsen,* State Superintendent of Education 
Major General Stanhope S. Spears, Adjutant General 
D. Leslie Tindal, Commissioner of Agriculture 

JUDICIAL 
Ernest A. Finney, Jr., Chief Justice, South Carolina Supreme Court 

Current 
Term of 
Office 

1995-1999 
1997-2001 
1997-1999 

1995-1999 
1995-1999 
1995-1999 
1997-2001 
1997-1999 
1995-1999 
1995-1999 
1995-1999 
1995-1999 
1995-1999 

1994-2004 

All of the legislative and executive officials are elected by the State's citizens in general elections. Members of the Supreme Court 
are elected by the General Assembly. 

*The following officials were elected in the November 1998 general elections and will begin serving four-year terms after their 
inauguration in January 1999: 
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James H. Hodges. Governor and Chairman of the Budget and Control Board 
James A. Lander, Comptroller General 
Grady L Patterson. Jr.. State Treasurer 
Inez Tenenbaum, State Superintendent of Education 
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Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Bernard Mannes Baruch (Oswald Birley) 
Born in Camden, Bernard Baruch ( 1870-1965) became a noted philanthropist, financier and 
Presidential advisor. Baruch was a millionaire by the age of 30 and was appointed to the 
War Industries Board by President Woodrow Wilson. His 17,000-acre estate of Hobcaw 
Barony on the South Carolina coast is now a research center and nature preserve. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Honorable David M. Beasley, Governor 
and 

Members ofthe General Assembly 
State of South Carolina 
Columbia, South Carolina 

We have jointly audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the State of South 
Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 1998, as listed in the accompanying table of contents. 
These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the State's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit. 
We did not jointly audit the financial statements of certain blended component units and agencies of the 
primary government, which statements reflect the indicated percent of total assets and other debits and 
total revenues, respectively, of the Special Revenue (21% and 14%), Enterprise (99% and 89%), Internal 
Service (73% and 86%), Pension Trust (100% and 100%), Investment Trust (100% and 100%), Higher 
Education (100% and 100%), and Agency (69% of assets and other debits) Funds, General Fixed Assets 
Account Group (12% of assets and other debits), and the General Long-Term Obligations Account 
Group (14% of assets and other debits). We also did not jointly audit the financial statements of the 
discretely presented component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors, 
including the Office of the State Auditor and Deloitte & Touche LLP acting separately, whose reports 
have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those 
component units and agencies, is based solely upon the reports of other auditors. Deloitte & Touche LLP 
acting separately has examined 1 00% and 100% of the total assets and other debits and total revenues, 
respectively, of the Investment Trust Fund. The Office of the State Auditor acting separately has 
examined 31% and 35% of the total assets and other debits and total revenues, respectively, of the 
Higher Education Funds. 

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial 
statements of the Deferred Compensation Plans, and the discretely presented component units identified 
in Note 1(a) (with the exception of the Enterprise Development Incorporated, of South Carolina, which 
has an audit in accordance with Government Auditing Standards) were not audited in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general 

Deloitte Touche 
Tohmatsu 
lntematio•l 



purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Technical Bulletin 98-1, Disclosures about Year 2000 
Issues, requires disclosure of certain matters regarding the year 2000 issue. The State of South Carolina 
has included such disclosures in Note 22 to the general purpose financial statements. Because of the 
unprecedented nature of the year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related remediation efforts will 
not be fully determinable until the year 2000 and thereafter. Accordingly, insufficient audit evidence 
exists to support the State of South Carolina's disclosures with respect to the year 2000 issue made in 
Note 22. Further, we do not provide assurance that the State of South Carolina is or will be year 2000 
ready, that the State of South Carolina's year 2000 remediation efforts will be successful in whole or in 
part, or that parties with which the State of South Carolina does business will be year 2000 ready. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and reports of other auditors, except for the effects of such 
adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to be necessary had we been able to examine 
evidence regarding year 2000 disclosures, the general purpose financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the State of South Carolina, as of June 30, 
1998, and the results of its operations and the cash flows of its proprietary fund types and nonexpendable 
trust fund and discretely presented component units for the year then ended in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

As discussed in Note 3(a) to the general purpose financial statements, in fiscal year 1998, the State of 
South Carolina adopted GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain 
Investments and for External Investment Pools. 

Our joint audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial 
statements taken as a whole. The required supplementary information and the combining financial 
statements and schedules listed in the accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the State of 
South Carolina. These financial statements and schedules are also the responsibility of the management 
of the State. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the joint audit of 
the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, based upon our joint audit and the reports of 
other auditors, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report, and 
accordingly, express no opinion thereon. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 2, 
1998 on our consideration of the State of South Carolina's internal control over financial reporting and 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. 

Columbia, South Carolina 
December 2, 1998 

~ouili~n~ 
December 2, 1998 la V 
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Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Dr. Wil Lou Gray (Michael del Priori) 
Dr. Wil Lou Gray (1883-1984) was a crusading progressive and an advocate of adult 
education in South Carolina in the early twentieth century. She was appointed 
superintendent of the first state adult school program in 1919 and dramatically improved the 
lives of thousands of South Carolinians. 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Balance Sheet 
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS, AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY 
FUND TYPES FUND TYPES FUND TYPES 

Special Capital Internal Trust and 

General Revenue Projects Enterprise Service Agency 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS 

Cash and cash equivalents .................................... $ 536,542 $ 903,130 $ 76,485 $ 157,807 $ 374,132 $ 3,137,547 

Cash on deposit with fiscal agents ......................... 733,586 

Investments ........................................................... 372 8,517 204,592 17,568,138 

Invested securities lending collateral.. ..................... 1,527 529 41 97 36,645 1,526,732 

Receivables, net: 

Accounts .............................................................. 30,966 58,898 435 11,385 47,755 363,695 

Taxes ................................................................... 355,508 114,721 40,413 

Patient and student .............................................. 

Student loans ....................................................... 14,813 17 

Loans and notes .................................................. 802 165,817 350,657 30,303 

Due from Federal government and other grantors .. 7,882 351,738 224 2,916 1,396 

Due from other funds ............................................. 19,723 44,707 837 24,247 9,776 

Due from component units ...................................... 3,800 

lnterfund receivables .............................................. 1,970 1,774 2,378 

Advances to other funds ........................................ 9,623 5,467 21,457 

Inventories ............................................................. 14,741 21,495 1,881 6,444 

Prepaid long-term operating lease .......................... 

Servicing rights, net. ............................................... 1,955 

Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents .................................. 208,184 

Investments ......................................................... 59,302 

Loans receivable .................................................. 456,865 

Other ................................................................... 7,596 

Other assets .......................................................... 82 850 2,401 5,574 

Deferred charges ................................................... 1,265 

Investment in joint venture ...................................... 

Property, plant, and equipment, net ....................... 25,804 149,871 4,647 

Amount to be provided for retirement of long-term 

obligations ........................................................... 

Total assets and other debits .................... $ 983,084 $ 1,683,543 $ 78,022 $ 1,295,098 $ 869,922 $ 23,421,807 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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ACCOUNT GROUPS 
General 

Fixed 

Assets 

2,356,905 

2,356,905 

$ 

$ 

General 

Long-Term 

Obligations 

1,169,942 

1,169,942 

HIGHER 
EDUCATION 

FUNDS 

$ 588,031 

118,653 

14,612 

16,782 

106,123 

46,704 

114 

54,867 

21,233 

24,364 

17,673 

37,215 

3,675 

2,987,674 

$ 4,037,720 

Totals Primary 
Government 

(Memorandum 
Only) 

$ 5,773,674 

733,586 

17,900,272 

1,580,183 

529,916 

510,642 

106,123 

61,534 

547,693 

419,023 

120,523 

3,800 

6,122 

36,547 

68,925 

17,673 

1,955 

208,184 

59,302 

456,865 

7,596 

46,122 

1,265 

3,675 

5,524,901 

1,169,942 

$ 35,896,043 

$ 

$ 

COMPONENT 
UNITS 

87,176 

39,440 

83,335 

144 

88,187 

160,510 

143,623 

5,241 

479,905 

4,231 

2,646,720 

3,738,513 

State of South Carolina 

Totals 
Reporting Entity 
(Memorandum 

Only) 

$ 5,860,850 

733,586 

17,939,712 

1,580,184 

613,251 

510,642 

106,123 

61,534 

547,837 

419,023 

120,523 

3,800 

6,122 

36,547 

157,112 

17,673 

1,955 

368,694 

202,925 

456,865 

7,596 

51,363 

481 '170 

7,906 

8,171,621 

1,169,942 

$ 39,634,556 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Balance Sheet 
ALL FUND TYPES, ACCOUNT GROUPS, AND DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
(Continued) 

June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

GOVERNMENTAL PROPRIETARY FIDUCIARY 
FUND TYPES FUND TYPES FUND TYPES 

Special Capital Internal Trust and 
General Revenue Projects Enterprise Service Agency 

LIABILITIES, FUND EQUITY, AND OTHER CREDITS 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .............. $ 180,853 $ 313,933 $ 7,512 $ 37,289 $ 164,523 $ 88,577 

Tax refunds payable ............................................ 350,306 872 2,977 

Intergovernmental payables ................................. 59,999 95,352 130 

Insurance claims incurred but not reported .......... 9,251 159,575 

Due to other funds ............................................... 17,283 37,446 3,911 1,138 53,690 

lnterfund payables ............................................... 3,252 322 201 1,648 5 

Advances from other funds .................................. 12,189 264 14.416 8,174 

Deferrea revenues and deferred credits ............... 163,281 63,824 60 4,834 58,441 841 
Deposits ............................................................... 598 526 

Amounts held in custody for others ...................... 559,090 

Deferred compensation ........................................ 1,165,438 

Securities lending collateral. ................................. 1,527 529 41 97 36,645 1,526,732 

Liabilities payable from restricted assets .............. 72,667 

Notes payable ...................................................... 231 2,265 

General obligation bonds payable ........................ 

Revenue bonds payable ...................................... 834,421 

Limited obligation bonds payable .......................... 35,569 

Certificates of participation payable ..................... 

Capital lease and installment debt obligations 

payable .............................................................. 9,903 

Commercial paper notes ...................................... 

Compensated absences payable ......................... 1,098 4,575 

Other liabilities, including retainages payable ...... 16,917 25,689 2,208 68 588 
Total liabilities ............................................... 805,607 538,231 13,732 976,309 481,906 3,398,006 

Fund equity and other credits: 

Contributed capital ............................................... 20,279 78,272 
Investment in fixed assets ................................... 

Retained earnings: 

Reserved ............................................................ 240,066 

Unreserved ........................................................ 58,444 309,744 

Fund balances (deficit): 

Reserved ........................................................... 286,945 204,427 19,914,503 

Unreserved, Designated ..................................... 165,328 64,290 

Unreserved, Undesignated ................................. (109,468) 775,557 109,298 
Total fund equity and other credits .............. 177,477 1,145,312 64,290 318,789 388,016 20,023,801 

Total liabilities, fund equity, and 
other credits ............................................. ~ 983,084 ~ 1,683,543 ~ 78,022 ~ 1,295,098 ~ 869,922 ~ 23,421,807 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of South Carolina 

ACCOUNT GROUPS Totals Primary Totals 
General General HIGHER Government Reporting Entity 
Fixed Long-Term EDUCATION (Memorandum COMPONENT (Memorandum 

Assets Obligations FUNDS Only) UNITS Only) 

$ $ 2,367 $ 111,376 $ 906,430 $ 103,035 $ 1,009,465 

354,155 354,155 

8,675 164,156 164,156 

2,765 171,591 171 ,591 

7,055 120,523 120,523 

694 6,122 6,122 

1,704 36,747 36,747 

39,722 331,003 51,479 382,482 

3,597 4,721 4,721 

7,070 566,160 566,160 

1,165,438 1,165,438 

14,612 1 ,580,183 1,580,184 

72,667 72,667 

600 152,442 155,538 345 155,883 

951,577 84,465 1,036,042 1,036,042 

244,682 1,079,103 2,157,139 3,236,242 

35,569 35,569 

21,466 21,466 21,466 

7,856 22,993 40,752 39,296 80,048 

241,650 241,650 

175,937 86,158 267,768 12,405 280,173 

20,165 7,501 73,136 31,290 104,426 
1,169,942 805,537 8,189,270 2,636,640 10,825,910 

98,551 209,524 308,075 

2,356,905 2,498,484 4,855,389 4,855,389 

240,066 240,066 

368,188 892,349 1,260,537 

306,367 20,712,242 20,712,242 
149,447 379,065 379,065 
277,885 1,053,272 1,053,272 

2,356,905 3,232,183 27,706,773 1,101,873 28,808,646 

~ 2,356,905 ~ 1,169,942 ~ 4,037,720 $ 35,896,043 ~ 3,738,513 $ 39,634,556 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 
ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES AND EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES 

Special 
Revenues: General Revenue 
Taxes: 

Individual income ........................................ . $ 2,103,799 $ 
Retail sales and use ................................... . 1,718,410 585,594 
Other .......................................................... . 697,188 493,417 

Licenses, fees, and permits .......................... . 187,512 93,730 
Interest and other investment income .......... .. 72,412 57,743 
Federal ......................................................... . 67,492 3,145,512 
Departmental services .................................. . 305,348 234,699 
Contributions ................................................ . 467 154,670 
Fines and penalties ...................................... . 15,443 46,301 
Other ............................................................ . 10,423 70,644 

Total revenues ........................................ . 5,178,494 4,882,310 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government. .................................. . 241,634 110,431 
Education ................................................... . 175,119 143,439 
Health and environment. ............................ . 1,068,694 2,053,193 
Social services ................................. ~ ......... . 109,212 553,700 
Administration of justice ............................ .. 523,360 69,196 
Resources and economic development ...... . 67,588 92,654 
Transportation ............................................ . 281,021 

Capital outlay ............................................... . 396,801 
Debt service: 

Principal retirement.. .................................. . 107,069 3,007 
Interest and fiscal charges .......................... . 45,546 5,586 

Intergovernmental. ....................................... . 1,998,408 1,033,610 

Total expenditures ................................. . 4,336,630 4,742,638 

Revenues over (under) expenditures .......... . 841,864 139,672 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from bonds and notes .................. .. 300 47,872 
Lease and installment debt proceeds .......... .. 254 163 
Operating transfers in .................................. .. 928 79,858 
Transfers from component units .................. .. 7,604 
Operating transfers out.. .............................. .. (829,915) (45) 

Total other financing sources (uses) .... . (820,829) 127,848 

Revenues and other sources over (under) 
expenditures and other uses ..................... . 21,035 267,520 

Fund balances at beginning of year 
(restated) ..................................................... . 156,323 876,473 

Increases (decreases) in reserve for 
inventories .................................................. . 119 (556) 

Residual equity transfers in ......................... . 1,875 
Residual equity transfers out. ..................... . 

Fund balances at end of year ...................... . $ 177,477 $ 1,145,312 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

Capital 
Projects 

230 
13,585 

1 
389 

682 

14,887 

64,352 

64,352 

(49,465) 

38,353 

37,332 

(37,804) 

37,881 

(11,584) 

78,429 

(2,555) 

64,290 



State of South Carolina 

FIDUCIARY 
FUND TYPE 

Totals 
Expendable (Memorandum 

Trust Only) 

$ $ 2,103,799 
2,304,004 

177,069 1,367,674 
677 281,919 

54,701 185,086 
7,499 3,234,088 

540,048 
319 155,845 

61,744 
1,707 83,456 

241,972 10,317,663 

175,167 527,232 
2 318,560 

20 3,121,907 
19 662,931 
34 592,590 

6 160,248 
281,021 
461 '153 

110,076 
51' 132 

4 3,032,022 

175,252 9,318,872 

66,720 998,791 

86,525 
417 

46 118,164 
7,604 

(978) (868,742) 

(932) (656,032) 

65,788 342,759 

820,920 1,932,145 

(437) 
1,875 

(2,555) 

$ 886,708 $ 2,273,787 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) 

ALL BUDGETED FUNDS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND 

Variance 
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 
Revenues: 
Admissions tax ........................................................... . $ 3,000 $ 7,020 $ 4,020 
Aircraft tax .................................................................. . 3,375 3,334 (41) 
Alcoholic liquors tax ................................................... . 47,526 45,076 (2,450) 
Bank tax ..................................................................... . 16,524 14,902 (1 ,622) 
Beer and wine tax ...................................................... . 80,784 82,190 1,406 
Business license tax .................................................. . 31,273 31,382 109 
Coin-operated device tax ........................................... . 46,000 56,995 10,995 
Commercial nuclear waste tax ................................... . 
Contractors' license tax ............................................. . 
Corporation income tax .............................................. . 184,999 193,813 8,814 
Corporation license tax .............................................. . 53,552 49,875 (3,677) 
Department of Agriculture .......................................... . 
Departmental revenue (primarily grant revenues 
and fees for services) .............................................. . 43,779 47,182 3,403 

Documentary tax ........................................................ . 20,515 25,139 4,624 
Earned on investments .............................................. . 62,000 70,863 8,863 
Education Improvement Act-1% sales tax ................ . 
Education Improvement Act-investment earnings .... . 
Education Improvement Act-other ............................ . 
Electric power tax ...................................................... . 19,568 20,742 1,174 
Estate tax ................................................................... . 29,845 45,001 15,156 
Excise tax-casual sales ............................................. . 15,410 15,437 27 
Fertilizer inspection tax .............................................. . 205 184 (21) 
Gift tax ....................................................................... . 85 85 
Individual income tax ................................................. . 2,067,796 2,087,461 19,665 
Insurance tax ............................................................. . 94,892 89,744 (5, 148) 
Miscellaneous sources .............................................. . 66,576 73,123 6,547 
Motor transport fees ................................................... . 210 3 (207) 
Motor vehicle licenses ............................................... . 99,346 107,033 7,687 
Nonrecurring (excess warrants for distraint) .............. . 1,350 1,350 
Petroleum inspection tax ........................................... . 7,403 7,012 (391) 
Private car lines tax ................................................... . 1,800 2,237 437 
Public service assessment. ....................................... . 
Public Service Authority ............................................. . 6,934 7,604 670 
Retail sales tax (4%) .................................................. . 1,705,126 1,726,364 21,238 
Retailers' license tax .................................................. . 1,044 988 (56) 
Savings and loan association tax .............................. . 3,162 4,907 1,745 
Soft drinks tax ............................................................ . 18,022 19,295 1,273 
Workers' compensation insurance tax ....................... . 9,334 9,360 26 

Total revenues ....................................................... . 4,740,000 4,845,701 105,701 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of South Carolina 

OTHER BUDGETED FUNDS TOTAL BUDGETED FUNDS 
Variance Variance 

Final Favorable Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

$ 33,380 $ 27,214 $ (6, 166) $ 36,380 $ 34,234 $ (2, 146) 
3,375 3,334 (41) 

47,526 45,076 (2,450) 
16,524 14,902 (1 ,622) 
80,784 82,190 1,406 
31,273 31,382 109 

250 250 46,000 57,245 11,245 
25,786 56,360 30,574 25,786 56,360 30,574 

1,104 1,929 825 1,104 1,929 825 
184,999 193,813 8,814 
53,552 49,875 (3,677) 

3,298 2,639 (659) 3,298 2,639 (659) 

6,587,242 6,300,731 (286,511) 6,631,021 6,347,913 (283, 108) 
1,909 1,055 (854) 22,424 26,194 3,770 

20,718 50,826 30,108 82,718 121,689 38,971 
430,134 433,972 3,838 430,134 433,972 3,838 

3,000 2,749 (251) 3,000 2,749 (251) 
3,887 1,430 (2,457) 3,887 1,430 (2,457) 

19,568 20,742 1,174 
29,845 45,001 15,156 
15,410 15,437 27 

205 184 (21) 
85 85 

2,067,796 2,087,461 19,665 
3,126 3,220 94 98,018 92,964 (5,054) 

183,301 60,179 (123, 122) 249,877 133,302 (116,575) 
2,572 2,572 210 2,575 2,365 

9,506 7,266 (2,240) 108,852 114,299 5,447 
1,350 1,350 

7,403 7,012 (391) 
1,800 2,237 437 

5,595 5,878 283 5,595 5,878 283 
6,934 7,604 670 

400 659 259 1,705,526 1,727,023 21,497 
1,044 988 (56) 
3,162 4,907 1,745 

18,022 19,295 1,273 
9,334 9,360 26 

7,312,386 6,958,929 (353,457) 12,052,386 11,804,630 (247,756) 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances-Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) 

--

ALL BUDGETED FUNDS (Continued) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND 

Variance 
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

Expenditures: 
Legislative ................................................................... $ 33,103 $ 28,500 $ 4,603 
Judicial. ....................................................................... 40,197 36,704 3,493 
Executive and administrative ...................................... 175,200 134,223 40,977 
Educational. ................................................................ 2,268,740 2,245,397 23,343 
Health ......................................................................... 817,744 805,797 11,947 
Social rehabilitation services ...................................... 141,036 135,420 5,616 
Correctional and public safety .................................... 522,052 488,235 33,817 
Conservation, natural resources, and development. .. 147,650 140,257 7,393 
Regulatory .................................................................. 57,950 55,332 2,618 
Transportation ............................................................. 583 583 
Debt service ................................................................ 150,599 150,574 25 
Miscellaneous ............................................................. 535,549 533,357 2,192 

Total expenditures .................................................. 4,890,403 4,754,379 136,024 

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures ....... (150,403) 91,322 241,725 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in ................................................. 
Operating transfers out. .............................................. (83,567) (83,567) 

Total financing sources (uses) .............................. (83,567) (83,567) 

Excess of revenues and other sources over 
(under) expenditures and other uses ...................... (233,970) 7,755 241,725 
Budgetary fund balance at beginning of year ......... 508,707 508,707 

Budgetary fund balance at end of year .................... $ 274,737 $ 516,462 $ 241,725 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of South Carolina 

OTHER BUDGETED FUNDS TOTAL BUDGETED FUNDS 
Variance Variance 

Final Favorable Final Favorable 
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

$ 1,197 $ 475 $ 722 $ 34,300 $ 28,975 $ 5,325 
245 73 172 40,442 36,777 3,665 

348,392 240,251 108,141 523,592 374,474 149,118 
2,528,291 2,265,595 262,696 4,797,031 4,510,992 286,039 
2,836,296 2,757,411 78,885 3,654,040 3,563,208 90,832 

662,260 593,754 68,506 803,296 729,174 74,122 
203,447 135,630 67,817 725,499 623,865 101,634 
237,360 154,224 83,136 385,010 294,481 90,529 
175,631 142,575 33,056 233,581 197,907 35,674 
785,267 689,232 96,035 785,850 689,815 96,035 

13,102 13,102 163,701 163,676 25 
535,549 533,357 2,192 

7,791,488 6,992,322 799,166 12,681,891 11,746,701 935,190 

(479, 102) (33,393) 445,709 (629,505) 57,929 687,434 

147,726 83,567 (64, 159) 147,726 83,567 (64, 159) 
(83,567) (83,567) 

147,726 83,567 (64,159) 64,159 (64,159) 

(331,376) 50,174 381,550 (565,346) 57,929 623,275 
1,086,158 1,086,158 1,594,865 1,594,865 

$ 754,782 $ 1,136,332 $ 381,550 $ 1,029,519 $ 1,652,794 $ 623,275 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Fund Equity 
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND, AND DISCRETELY 
PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services .................................................................................. . 
Contributions ............................................................................................. . 
Interest and other investment income ........................................................ . 
Licenses, fees, and permits ....................................................................... . 

Total operating revenues ...................................................................... . 

Operating expenses: 
General operations and administration ...................................................... . 
Benefits and claims ................................................................................... . 
Interest. ..................................................................................................... . 
Depreciation and amortization ................................................................... . 
Other operating expenses ......................................................................... . 

Total operating expenses ..................................................................... . 

Operating income ................................................................................ . 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest income .......................................................................................... . 
Federal revenue ........................................................................................ . 
Costs to be recovered from future revenues .............................................. . 
Interest expense ........................................................................................ . 
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) .................................................. . 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) ............................................ . 

Income before operating transfers and 
extraordinary items ........................................................................... . 

Operating transfers in .................................................................................. . 
Operating transfers out. ............................................................................... . 
Transfers to primary government. ................................................................ . 

Income before extraordinary items .................................................... . 

Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt... ................................... . 

Net income ........................................................................................... . 

Retained earnings/fund balances at beginning of year (restated) ....... . 
Net unrealized loss on investment 
securities available for sale ..................................................................... . 

Retained earnings/fund balances at end of year ..................................... . 

Contributed capital at beginning of year ................................................. . 
Additions to contributed capital .............................................................. . 
Deductions from contributed capital ....................................................... . 

Fund equity at end of year ........................................................................ . 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 

Internal 
Enterprise Service 

85,623 $ 861,759 
11,230 

59,617 37,833 

145,240 910,822 

43,628 270,183 
22,367 608,975 
53,904 

1.384 12,664 
2,779 610 

124,062 892,432 

21,178 18,390 

1,820 5,404 
22,723 9 

(1 '149) (4,728) 
(23,236) 498 

158 1,183 

21,336 19,573 

125 528 
(5) 

21,461 20,096 

(277) 

21,184 20,096 

277,326 289,648 

298,510 309,744 

16,870 76,537 
3,450 4,122 

(41) (2,387) 

318,789 $ 388,016 

FIDUCIARY 
FUND TYPE 

Nonexpendable 
Trust 

$ 

$ 

14 
102 

117 

3 

3 

114 

114 

114 

114 

1,535 

1,649 

1,649 



State of South Carolina 

Totals Primary Totals 
Government Reporting Entity 

(Memorandum COMPONENT (Memorandum 
On I~~ UNITS On I~~ 

$ 947,382 $ 809,631 $ 1,757,013 
11,231 11,231 
97,464 97,465 

102 102 

1,056,179 809,632 1,865,811 

313,811 468,631 782,442 
631,342 631,342 

53,904 21 53,925 
14,048 126,850 140,898 

3,392 2,205 5,597 

1,016,497 597,707 1,614,204 

39,682 211,925 251,607 

7,224 24,384 31,608 
22,732 22,732 

{40,749) {40,749) 
{5,877) {172,397) {178,274) 

{22,738) 7,974 {14,764) 

1,341 (180,788) (179,447) 

41,023 31,137 72,160 

653 653 
{5) {5) 

{7,462) {7,462) 

41,671 23,675 65,346 

{277) {3,438) {3,715) 

41,394 20,237 61,631 

568,509 872,239 1,440,748 

(127) (127) 

609,903 892,349 1,502,252 

93,407 209,856 303,263 
7,572 7,572 

(2,428) (332) {2,760) 

$ 708,454 $ 1,101,873 $ 1,810,327 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Cash Flows 
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND, AND 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Operating income . 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization ........................... . 
Provisions for loan losses and bad debts ................ . 
Provisions for loss on development project........... . ...................... . 
Amortization of deferred gain on sale of capital leaseback .. . 
Loss on disposition of property and equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ................ . 
Issuance of loans and notes ................................ . 
Collection of loans and notes .. 
Interest payments . 
Interest on investments and interfund loans 
Amounts received for payment of claims 
Payment of claims ........................... . 
Deferred coai contract buy-out costs .... 
Impact of transactions involving joint venture ............................................ . 
Other nonoperating revenues ......... . 
Other nonoperating expenses ..... . 
Other. ....................................................................................................... . 

Change in assets--decreases (increases): 
Accounts receivable, net.................................... . .............................. . 
Student loans receivable, net...... . ............................................... . 
Loans and notes receivable, net. ............................................................... . 
Due from Federal government and other grantors ...................................... . 
Due from other funds............. . ...................................... . 
Inventories .......................... . 
Other current assets ............. . 
Other long-term assets ........... . 
Deferred charges ...................................................................................... . 

Change in liabilities--increases (decreases): 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ................................................ . 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported ........................................ . 
Due to other funds......... . ............................. . 
Deferred revenues .................................................................................... . 
Deposits....................... . ................................................ . 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets .......................................... . 
Compensated absences payable ............................................................... . 
Other liabilities, including retainages payable .............................................. . 

Net cash provided by (used In) operating activities ............................. . 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Principal payments received from other funds ........................................... . 
Principal payments made to other funds ............................... . 
Receipt of interest from other funds ............................................................. . 
Interest payments made to other funds ...................................................... . 
Loans made to other funds .......................................................................... . 
Proceeds from sale of notes payable .......................................... . 
Principal payments on notes payable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .................. . 
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . .. . . . . . . ................... . 
Principal payments on revenue bonds ....................................................... . 
Interest payments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..................................... . 
Payment of bond issuance costs....................... . ..................................... . 
Federal revenue ......................................................................................... . 
Payments from Federal grants ................................................................... . 
Operating transfers in ................................................................................ . 
Operating transfers out ......... .... .... .. . . . . . . . . . ............................ . 
Transfers to primary government ............................................. . 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
noncapltal financing activities .............................................................. . 

Enterprise 

$ 21,178 

1,384 
281 
505 

8 
(97,403) 
137,571 
53,615 

(20,896) 
61,768 

(59,412) 

664 
(733) 
197 

(1,132) 
2 

678 

(579) 
46 

518 

14,577 
5,326 

293 
1,807 

498 
(76) 
108 

(3,062) 

117,731 

(297) 

1,359 
(576) 

69,776 
(115,540) 

(56,033) 
(865) 

22,723 
(22,723) 

125 

(102,051) 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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PROPRIETARY 
FUND TYPES 

Internal 
Service 

$ 18,390 

12,664 
311 

(572) 
23 

(37,676) 

1,378 
(65) 
186 

14,095 

44 
{2,285) 

258 
52 

{4,660) 
{7,901) 

(200) 
(10,019) 

330 
318 

(15,329) 

11,591 
{6,213) 
4,268 

{2,326) 
(1,139) 

9 

528 
(5) 

6,713 

FIDUCIARY 
FUND TYPE 

Nonexpendable 
Trust 

$ 114 

(14) 

8 

108 



State of South Carolina 

Totals Primary Totals 

Government Reporting Entity 

(Memorandum COMPONENT (Memorandum 
Only) UNITS Only) 

$ 39,682 $ 211,925 $ 251,607 

14,048 126,850 140,898 
592 1,302 1,894 
505 505 

(572) (572) 
31 57 88 

(97,403) (1,000) (98,403) 
137,571 170 137,741 
53,615 53,615 

(58,586) (58,586) 
61,768 61,768 

(59,412) (59,412) 
6,000 6,000 

(3,322) (3,322) 
2,042 1,756 3,798 
(798) (29) (827) 
391 183 574 

12,963 15 12,978 
2 2 

678 678 
44 636 680 

(2,864) (2,864) 
304 (11,463) (11,159) 
570 (1,651) (1,081) 

(6) (6) 
(1,532) (1,532) 

9,917 (4,813) 5,104 
(2,575) (2,575) 

93 93 
(8,212) (8,212) 

498 498 
(76) (76) 
438 (16) 422 

(2,744) (9,733) (12,4771 

102,510 315,329 417,839 

11,591 11,591 
(6,510) (6,510) 
4,268 4,268 

(2,326) (2,326) 
(1,139) (1,139) 
1,359 1,359 
(576) (576) 

69,776 69,776 
(115,540) (115,540) 

(56,033) (56,033) 
(865) (865) 

22,732 22,732 
(22,723) (22,723) 

653 653 
(5) (5) 

(7,462) (7,462) 

!95,338! j7,462l j102,800! 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Cash Flows 
ALL PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES, NONEXPENDABLE TRUST FUND, AND 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment .......................... . 
Proceeds from sale of notes payable ........................................ . 
Principal payments on notes payable ....................................... . 
Proceeds from sale and refundings of revenue bonds .............. . 
Principal payments and refundings on revenue bonds .............. . 
Proceeds from sale of limited obligation bonds ......................... . 
Principal payments on limited obligation bonds ......................... . 
Interest payments .................................................................... . 
Payment of bond issuance costs .............................................. . 
Increase in commercial paper notes ......................................... . 
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets .................................. . 
Principal payments on capital leases and installment 
debt obligations payable ........................................................ . 

Contributions of capital ............................................................ . 

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and 
related financing activities ................................................. . 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Proceeds from sale of investments .......................................... . 
Purchase of investments ......................................................... . 
Interest on investments ............................................................. . 
Issuance of loans ..................................................................... . 
Collection of loans ................................................................... . 
Net investment in joint venture .................................................. . 

Net cash provided by investing activities ........................... . 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .............. . 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (restated) ....... . 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year .................................. . 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the balance 
sheet: 

Cash and cash equivalents for Fiduciary Funds ...................... .. 
Less: Cash and cash equivalents for Expendable Trust 

Funds, Pension Trust Funds, Investment Trust 
Fund, and Agency Funds .............................................. . 

Cash and cash equivalents Nonexpendable Trust Fund .......... .. 

Noncash capital, investing, and financing activities: 
Equity losses related to interest in joint venture ........................ . 
Net assets transferred to spun-off operations ........................... . 
Acquisition of property and equipment through: 

Accrual of liabilities ................................................................ .. 
Transfers from other funds ...................................................... . 
Donations ............................................................................... . 

Total noncash capital1 investing, 
and financing activities ....................................................... . 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Enterprise 

(1 ,519) 

(201) 

(162) 

1,140 

940 

198 

16,083 
(7,001) 
26,557 
(1,175) 
1 '113 

35,577 

51,455 

314,536 

365,991 

PROPRIETARY 
FUND TYPES 

Internal 
Service 

$ (15,063) 
2,265 

8,577 
(2,000) 
(2,364) 

(669) 

(9,254) 

75,434 
(57,833) 
35,643 

53,244 

35,374 

338,758 

$ 374,132 

$ 

$ 

2,688 
20 

2,708 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

FIDUCIARY 
FUND TYPE 

Nonexpendable 
Trust 

11 

11 

119 

1,507 

1,626 

3,137,547 

(3, 135,921) 

1,626 



State of South Carolina 

Totals Primary Totals 
Government Reporting Entity 

(Memorandum COMPONENT (Memorandum 
Only) UNITS Only) 

s (16,582) $ (120,096) $ (136,678) 
2,265 203 2,468 
(201) (32) (233) 

216,719 216,719 
(387,062) (387,062) 

8,577 8,577 
(2,000) (2,000) 
(2,526) (159,053) (161 ,579) 

(9,586) (9,586) 
36,877 36,877 

1,140 1,140 

(669) (3,767) (4,436) 
940 940 

(9,056) (425,797) (434,853) 

91,517 86,413 177,930 
(64,834) (5,522) (70,356) 
62,211 25,027 87,238 
(1,175) (1,175) 
1 '113 1 '113 

(3,467) (3,467) 

88,832 102,451 191,283 

86,948 (15,479) 71,469 

654,801 263,165 917,966 

$ 741,749 $ 247,686 $ 989,435 

$ $ 2,558 $ 2,558 
75 75 

3,020 3,020 
2,688 2,688 

20 20 

$ 2,708 $ 5,653 $ 8,361 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Changes in Plan Net Assets 
PENSION TRUST FUNDS 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 
INVESTMENT TRUST FUND 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Additions: 
Retirement contributions: 

Employer .................................................................. . 
Employee ................................................................. . 

Transfers from other retirement systems .................... . 

Total retirement contributions ................................ . 

Deposits, pool participants ......................................... . 

Investment income ..................................................... . 

Net income from investing activities ............... . 

Securities lending income ........................................... . 
Securities lending expenses: 

Borrower rebates ................................................... . 
Management fees .................................................. . 

Total securities lending expenses ...................... . 

Net income from securities lending activities .. . 

Total net investment income ........................ . 

Operating transfers in (for supplemental 
retirement benefits) ................................................ . 

Total additions ................................................. . 

Deductions: 
Regular retirement benefits ........................................ . 
Supplemental retirement benefits ............................... . 
Refunds of retirement contributions to members ........ . 
Group life insurance claims ........................................ . 
Accidental death benefits ........................................... . 
Withdrawals, pool participants .................................... . 
Distributions to pool participants ................................. . 
Depreciation ............................................................... . 
Administrative expense .............................................. . 
Transfers to other retirement systems ........................ . 

Total deductions .............................................. . 

Net increase in plan and pool 
net assets ................................................... . 

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits and 
pool participants: 

Beginning of year (restated) ................................. . 
End of year ............................................................. . 

$ 

South 
Carolina 

Retirement 
System 

398,845 
335,770 

79 

734,694 

1,903,404 

1,903,404 

72,300 

70,074 
890 

70,964 

1,336 

1,904,740 

4,880 

2,644,314 

662,825 
4,880 

61,629 
9,277 

107 
9,834 
2,881 

751,433 

1,892,881 

14,498,715 
$ 16,391 ,596 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Police 
Officers' 

Retirement 
System 

$ 65,538 
42,946 

2,725 

111,209 

207,842 

207,842 

8,975 

8,714 
105 

8,819 

156 

207,998 

132 

319,339 

71 '161 
132 

8,482 
1,373 

638 

11 
1,099 

1 

82,897 

236,442 

1,606,714 

$ 1,843,156 

PENSION 

General 
Assembly 
Retirement 

System 

$ 

$ 

2,796 
665 

21 

3,482 

4,334 

4,334 

232 

227 
2 

229 

3 

4,337 

7,819 

3,771 

63 
9 

24 
164 

4,031 

3,788 

35,426 
39,214 



State of South Carolina 

INVESTMENT 
TRUST TRUST 

Judges' 
and National 

Solicitors' Guard Totals Local Government 
Retirement Pension (Memorandum Investment 

System System Eliminations Only) Pool 

$ 4,991 $ 2,499 $ $ 474,669 $ 
1,025 380,406 

221 (3,046) 

6,237 2,499 (3,046) 855,075 

2,369,589 

9,516 754 2,125,850 39,211 

9,516 754 2,125,850 39,211 

264 81,771 324 

257 79,272 318 
3 1,000 3 

260 80,272 321 

4 1,499 3 

9,520 754 2,127,349 39,214 

5,012 

15,757 3,253 (3,046) 2,987,436 2,408,803 

6,100 1,748 745,605 
5,012 

70,174 
10,660 

638 
2,247,614 

38,824 
1 120 

49 11,006 124 
(3,046) 

6,151 1,749 (3,046) 843,215 2,286,562 

9,606 1,504 2,144,221 122,241 

72,609 5,096 16,218,560 650,422 
$ 82,215 $ 6,600 $ $ 18,362,781 $ 772,663 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Changes in Fund Balances 
HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Revenues and other additions: 

CURRENT FUNDS 

Unrestricted Restricted 
LOAN 

FUNDS 

Unrestricted Current Fund revenues ....................... . $ 1,221,948 $ $ 
Restricted student tuition and fees .......................... . 
Federal grants and contracts-restricted .................. . 
State and local grants-restricted ............................. . 
Private gifts, grants, and contracts--restricted ......... . 
Investment income-restricted .................................. . 
Realized investment gains-restricted ...................... . 
Interest earned ......................................................... . 
Expended for plant facilities (including $79,226 
charged to current funds expenditures) ................. . 

Retirement of indebtedness (including $5,500 
charged to current funds expenditures) ................. . 

Retirement of indebtedness-defeased bonds ......... . 
Proceeds of refunding bonds .................................. . 
Capitalization of interest cost... ................................ . 
Insurance proceeds ................................................. . 
Sale of property ....................................................... . 
Foundations and institutes ....................................... . 
Other revenues and additions .................................. . 

Total revenues and other additions ••......••••••••• 

Expenditures and other deductions: 
Educational and general.. ........................................ . 
Auxiliary enterprises ................................................ . 
Hospital. .................................................................. . 
Foundations and institutes ....................................... . 
Indirect costs recovered .......................................... . 
Loan cancellation and bad debt write-offs ................ . 
Administration and collection costs ......................... . 
Realized investment losses-restricted ..................... . 
Expended for plant facilities (including 
noncapitalized expenditures of $22, 167) ............... . 

Retirement of indebtedness ..................................... . 
Interest on indebtedness ......................................... . 
Disposal of plant facilities ........................................ . 
Refunding bonds issued .......................................... . 
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent. ............... . 
Refunds to grantors ................................................. . 
Other expenditures and deductions ......................... . 

Total expenditures and other deductions ..••••• 

Transfers in (out): 
Transfers among Higher Education Funds: 

Mandatory transfers for: 
Principal and interest. .......................................... . 
Loan fund matching grants .................................. . 
Other. .................................................................. . 

Nonmandatory transfers ........................................ . 
Operating transfers in .............................................. . 
Operating transfers out. ........................................... . 

Total transfers in (out) •••••••...•.••••••••••................. 

Net increase (decrease) in fund balances •••••••...... 
Fund balances at beginning of year (restated) ••••• 
Fund balances at end of year ................................ . 

1,221,948 

1,305,955 
186,844 
386,912 

2,184 
1,881,895 

(38,483) 
(426) 
(64) 

(23,586) 
734,561 
(40,947) 
631,055 

(28,892) 
312,188 

$ 283,296 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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288,456 
16,380 
70,144 

7,039 

1,334 
383,353 

375,745 
2,400 

29,012 

13 

167 
18 

407,355 

45 
(4,565) 
32,841 

(362) 
27,959 

3,957 
52,897 

$ 56,854 

1,057 
134 

1 
477 

1,055 

233 
2,957 

625 
717 

50 

1,392 

426 

165 
180 

771 

2,336 
49,781 

$ 52,117 

ENDOWMENT 
AND SIMILAR 

FUNDS 

$ 

$ 

125 

2,339 
5,767 

432 

1,728 

25 
10,416 

3 

10 

13 

19 
6,472 

6,491 

16,894 
84,215 

101,109 



State of South Carolina 

PLANT FUNDS 
Retirement Foundations 

of Investment and 
Unex~ended Indebtedness in Plant Institutes Totals 

$ $ $ $ $ 1,221,948 
4,284 20,617 24,901 

16,958 1,332 207 308,135 
16,514 

5,272 24 21,207 98,987 
8,843 2,790 24,916 

432 
1,055 

186,292 186,292 

1,006 44,038 45,044 
38,735 38,735 

50,511 50,511 
89 169 258 

2,344 2,344 
1,728 

221,795 221,795 
3,004 1,389 1,384 7,369 

41,800 76,663 292,032 221,795 2,250,964 

1,681,700 
189,244 
386,912 

223,167 223,167 
29,012 

625 
730 

3 

129,233 129,233 
39,544 39,544 
21,897 21,897 

38,398 38,398 
50,409 50,409 

41,484 41,484 
227 

161 318 310 2,991 

129,394 103,243 89,117 223,167 2,835,576 

(272) 38,755 

30 (30) 
83,225 (17,601) (41,670) (2,440) 
18,926 786,508 

!281) !41,590) 
101,628 21,124 !41,670} j2,440} 744,918 

14,034 (5,456) 161,245 (3,812) 160,306 
150,614 38,932 2,337,239 46,011 3,071,877 

$ 164,648 $ 33,476 $ 2,498,484 $ 42,199 $ 3,232,183 
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State of South Carolina 

Combined Statement of Current Funds Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Other Changes 
HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Revenues: 
Tuition and fees ........................................................................ . 
Federal grants and contracts .................................................... . 
State grants and contracts ....................................................... . 
Local grants and contracts ....................................................... . 
Private gifts, grants, and contracts ........................................... . 
Endowment income .................................................................. . 
Sales and services of educational departments ....................... . 
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises ............................... . 
Sales and services of hospitals ................................................ . 
Other ........................................................................................ . 

Total current revenues .......••••••••••••••••••••••••.................... 

Expenditures, mandatory and operating transfers: 
Educational and general: 

Instruction .............................................................................. . 
Research ................................................................................ . 
Public service ......................................................................... . 
Academic support .................................................................. . 
Student services ..................................................................... . 
Institutional support ................................................................ . 
Operation and maintenance of plant... .................................... . 
Scholarships and fellowships ................................................. . 

Educational and general expenditures .................................. . 

Mandatory transfers for: 
Principal and interest. ........................................................... . 
Loan fund matching grants ................................................... . 
Other .................................................................................... . 

Total educational and general ............................................. . 

Auxiliary enterprises: 
Expenditures .......................................................................... . 
Mandatory transfers for principal and interest... ..................... . 

Total auxiliary enterprises ................................................... . 

Hospitals: 
Expenditures .......................................................................... . 
Mandatory transfers for principal and interest. ....................... . 

Total hospitals .................................................................... . 

Operating transfers in .............................................................. . 
Operating transfers out... ......................................................... . 

Total expenditures, mandatory and operating 
transfers ...•••..•..................••••••.••.•.....................•..••.••••••• 

Other additions (deductions): 
Excess of restricted receipts over transfers to revenues .......... . 
Refunds to grantors ................................................................. . 
Other deductions ...................................................................... . 

Total additions (deductions) ..•••••••••••••••••••.................... 

Net increase (decrease) in fund balances •..•.•.••......... 

Unrestricted 

$ 423,679 

$ 

35,736 

30,859 
21,925 

625 
31,492 

203,567 
415,435 

58,630 

1,221,948 

618,160 
74,794 
81,096 

150,307 
84,246 

140,013 
118,513 
38,826 

1,305,955 

2,339 
426 

64 

1,308,784 

186,844 
23,371 

210,215 

386,912 
12,773 

399,685 

(734,561) 
40,947 

1,225,070 

(25,770) 

(25,770) 

(28,892) 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

Restricted 

262,144 
15,700 

1,465 
63,480 

1,805 

1,027 

345,621 

32,889 
121,591 
48,004 

5,020 
9,643 
4,836 

262 
153,500 

375,745 

(45) 

375,700 

2,400 

2,400 

(32,841) 
362 

345,621 

8,720 
(167) 

(4,596) 

3,957 

3,957 

Totals 

$ 423,679 

$ 

297,880 
15,700 
32,324 
85,405 

2,430 
31,492 

203,567 
415,435 

59,657 

1,567,569 

651,049 
196,385 

129,100 
155,327 

93,889 
144,849 
118,775 
192,326 

1,681,700 

2,339 
426 

19 

1,684,484 

189,244 
23,371 

212,615 

386,912 
12,773 

399,685 

(767,402) 
41,309 

1,570,691 

8,720 
(167) 

(30,366) 

!21,813) 

!24,935) 



State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Savannah 
Public State Lakes Enterprise 

Service Ports Regional Development, Inc., 
Authority Authority Loan Fund of South Carolina Totals 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ........................................... $ 81,566 $ 5,238 $ 296 $ 76 $ 87,176 
Investments .................................................................. 39,300 140 39,440 
Invested securities lending collateral... .......................... 1 
Accounts receivable, net .............................................. 71,538 11,492 305 83,335 
Inventories .................................................................... 86,799 1,388 88,187 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ......................................... 111,592 111,592 
Other current assets ..................................................... 1,703 3,376 156 5,235 

Total current assets .................................................. 392,498 21,495 436 537 414,966 

Long-term assets: 
Loans and notes receivable, net... ................................ 144 144 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ......................................... 45,021 3,897 48,918 
Investments ................................................................ 139,546 4,077 143,623 

Other long-term assets ................................................. 6 6 
Deferred charges .......................................................... 479,050 855 479,905 
Investment in joint venture ............................................ 4,231 4,231 

Total long-term assets .............................................. 667,848 8,829 150 676,827 

Property, plant, and equipment: 
Land and improvements ................................................ 246,681 207 246,888 
Buildings and improvements ......................................... 207,027 487 207,514 

~~~~···································································· 3,326,754 3,326,754 
Machinery, equipment, and other .................................. 1,806 39,473 183 41,462 
Construction in progress ............................................... 75,704 38,596 114,300 
Less: accumulated depreciation ................................... (1 '1 09,462) (180,556) (180) (1 ,290, 198) 

Total property, plant, and equipment, net... ............... 2,294,802 351,221 697 2,646,720 

Total assets ......................................................... $ 3,355,148 $ 381,545 $ 436 $ 1,384 $ 3,738,513 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) 
June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Savannah 
Public State Lakes Enterprise 

Service Ports Regional Development, Inc., 
Authori!X Authority Loan Fund of South Carolina Totals 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
Liabilities: 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ..................... $ 85,595 $ 16,957 $ 5 $ 478 $ 103,035 
Securities lending collateral. ....................................... 1 1 
Notes payable ............................................................. 30 30 
Revenue bonds payable ............................................. 157,942 1,330 159,272 
Capital lease and installment debt 

obligations payable ................................................... 3,609 42 3,651 
Commercial paper notes ............................................. 241,650 241,650 
Compensated absences payable ................................ 1,456 1,456 
Other current liabilities, including retainages payable .. 16,623 1,802 18,425 

Total current liabilities ............................................... 505,419 21,588 5 508 527,520 

Long-term liabilities: 
Deferred revenues and deferred credits ...................... 51,479 51,479 
Notes payable ............................................................. 315 315 
Revenue bonds payable ............................................. 1,941,730 56,137 1,997,867 
Capital lease and installment debt 

obligations payable ................................................... 35,576 69 35,645 
Compensated absences payable ................................ 10,949 10,949 
Other long-term liabilities ............................................ 12,865 12,865 

Total long-term liabilities ........................................... 2,052,599 56,206 315 2,109,120 

Total liabilities ....................................................... 2,558,018 77,794 5 823 2,636,640 

Fund Equity: 
Contributed capital. ....................................................... 34,438 174,066 1,020 209,524 
Retained earnings (deficit) ............................................ 762,692 129,685 (589) 561 892,349 

Total fund equity ................................................... 797,130 303,751 431 561 1,101,873 

Total liabilities and fund equity .......................... $ 3,355,148 $ 381,545 $ 436 $ 1,384 $ 3,738,513 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Fund Equity 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Savannah 
Lakes 

Public State Regional Enterprise 
Service Ports Loan Development, Inc., 
Authori~ Authority Fund of South Carolina Totals 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services ............................................... $ 727,824 $ 80,965 $ 8 $ 834 $ 809,631 
Interest and other investment income ...................... 1 

Total operating revenues .................................... 727,824 80,965 9 834 809,632 

Operating expenses: 
General operations and administration .................... 419,970 46,366 939 1,356 468,631 
Interest. ................................................................... 21 21 
Depreciation and amortization ................................. 111,034 15,773 43 126,850 
Other operating expenses ....................................... 2,203 2 2,205 

Total operating expenses ................................... 533,207 62,139 941 1,420 597,707 

Operating income (loss) ................................... 194,617 18,826 (932) (586) 211,925 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest income ........................................................ 21,641 2,718 25 24,384 
Costs to be recovered from future revenues ............ (40,749) (40,749) 
Interest expense ...................................................... (168,072) (4,325) (172,397) 
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) ................ 6,286 1,717 (29) 7,974 

Total nonOP_!!~ting revenues (expenses) .......... (180,894) 110 25 (29) (180,788) 

Income (loss) before operating transfers 
and extraordinary items .................................. 13,723 18,936 (907) (615) 31,137 

Transfers to primary government... ............................ (7,462) (7,462) 

Income (loss) before extraordinary items ........ 6,261 18,936 (907) (615) 23,675 

Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt.... (3,438) (3,438) 

Net income (loss) .............................................. 6,261 15,498 (907) (615) 20,237 

Retained earnings at beginning of year ................. 756,558 114,187 318 1,176 872,239 
Net unrealized loss on investment 
securities available for sale .................................. (127) (127) 

Retained earnings (deficit) at end of year .............. 762,692 129,685 (589) 561 892,349 

Contributed capital at beginning of year ............... 34,438 174,398 1,020 209,856 
Deductions from contributed capital ..................... (332) (332) 

Fund equity at end of year ...................................... $ 797,130 $ 303,751 $ 431 $ 561 $ 1,101,873 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Public State 
Service Ports 

Authority Authority 
Cash flows from operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) ................................................... $ 194,617 $ 18,826 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization ................................... 111,034 15,773 

Provision for loan losses and bad debts ....................... 
Loss on disposition of property and equipment... ......... 45 

Issuance of loans and notes ........................................ 
Collection of loans and notes ....................................... 

Deferred coal contract buy-out costs ........................... 6,000 

Impact of transactions involving joint venture ............... (3,322) 

Other nonoperating revenues ....................................... 39 1,717 

Other nonoperating expenses ...................................... 
Other. .......................................................................... 108 

Change in assets--decreases (increases): 
Accounts receivable, net. ............................................. (1 ,219) 1,299 

Due from Federal government and other grantors ........ 
Inventories ................................................................... (11,240) (223) 

Other current assets .................................................... (1,620) 110 

Other long-term assets ................................................ 
Deferred charges ......................................................... (1,532) 

Change in liabilities--increases (decreases): 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ...................... (3,785) (661) 

Compensated absences payable ................................. 
Other liabilities, including retain ages payable .............. (9,733) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities ................................................ 279,239 36,994 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Transfers to primary government... .............................. (7,462) 

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities .... (7,462) 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Savannah Enterprise 
Lakes Development, 

Regional Inc., of 
Loan Fund South Carolina Totals 

$ (932) $ (586) $ 211,925 

43 126,850 

931 371 1,302 
12 57 

(1,000) (1 ,000) 

170 170 

6,000 

(3,322) 

1,756 

(29) (29) 

75 183 

(65) 15 

636 636 
(11 ,463) 

(141) (1 ,651) 

(6) (6) 

(1 ,532) 

4 (371) (4,813) 
(16) (16) 

(9,733) 

(827) (77) 315,329 

(7,462) 

(7,462) 

Continued on Next Page 



Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Savannah 

Public State Lakes 

Service Ports Regional 

Authority Authority Loan Fund 

Cash flows from capital and related financing 

activities: 
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment... ........... $ (84,203) $ (35,870) $ 
Proceeds from sale of notes payable ........................... 
Principal payments on notes payable ........................... 

Proceeds from sale and refundings of revenue bonds. 216,719 

Principal payments and refundings on revenue bonds. (355,217) (31,845) 

Interest payments ....................................................... (154,733) (4,320) 

Payment of bond issuance costs ................................. (9,586) 

Increase in commercial paper notes ........................... 36,877 

Principal payments on capital leases and installment 

debt obligations payable ........................................... (3,527) (240) 

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and 

related financing activities ..................................... (353,670) (72,275) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Proceeds from sale of investments .............................. 79,123 7,290 

Purchase of investments ............................................. (5,522) 

Interest on investments ................................................ 22,284 2,718 25 

Net investment in joint venture ..................................... (3,467) 

Net cash provided by investing activities .............. 97,940 4,486 25 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents ............................................................ 16,047 (30,795) (802) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ........... 222,132 39,930 1,098 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ..................... $ 238,179 $ 9,135 $ 296 

Noncash capital, investing, and financing activities: 

Equity losses related to interest in joint venture ........... $ 2,558 $ $ 
Net assets transferred to spun-off operations .............. 

Acquisition of property plant and equipment through: 

Accrual of liabilities .................................................... 3,020 

Total noncash capital, investing, 
and financing activities .......................................... $ 2,558 $ 3,020 $ 

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. 

State of South Carolina 

Enterprise 
Development, 

Inc., of 
South Carolina Totals 

$ (23) $ (120,096) 

203 203 
(32) (32) 

216,719 

(387,062) 

(159,053) 

(9,586) 

36,877 

(3,767) 

148 (425,797) 

86,413 

(5,522) 

25,027 
(3,467) 

102,451 

71 (15,479) 

5 263,165 

$ 76 $ 247,686 

$ $ 2,558 
75 75 

3,020 

$ 75 $ 5,653 
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State of South Carolina 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFI
CANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

a. Scope of Reporting Entity 

The State of South Carolina is governed by the 
South Carolina General Assembly, an elected 
le~islative body, and several elected executives. 
Tnese general purpose financial statements present 
the Stafe and its component units--entities for which 
the State and its elected officials are considered to be 
financially accountable. 

Blended component units, although legall>-' 
separate entities, are, in substance, part ofthe Sfate s 
operations. Accordingly, data from these component 
units are combined with data of the primary 
government. Each discretely presented component 
unit, on the other hand, is reported in a separate 
column in the combined financial statements to 
emphasize that it is legally separate from the State. 

As explained more fully below, the State's 
pril)lary government and its component units incl1;1de 
vanous State funds: account groups, agencies, 
depart;me!lts, institutiOns, authonties, and other 
orgamzatwns. 

Primary Government 

All constitutional offices, departments, a~encies, 
commissions, and authorities have been incruded in 
the State's reporting entity as part of the primary 
government unless otherwise noted. Most of these 
nave executives or boards appointed by the 
Governor, the General Assembly, or a combmation 
thereof. These entities are financially accountable 
to, and fiscally dependent on, the State. 

Although they OP.erate somewhat autonomous)~, 
the entities listed below are included in the States 
primary government because they lack full corporate 
powers. 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1998: 
State Housing Finance and Development 

Authority 
South Carolina Education Assistance 

Authority 
Jobs-Economic Development Authority 
Patriots Point Development Authority 

Fiscal year ended December 31, 1997: 
The South Carolina Deferred Compensa

tion Plans 
The Public Railw~s Division of the 

Department of Commerce 

The State's five retirement systems are 
considered_part of the State's P.rimary government. 
The State Budget and Control Board, consisting of 
five elected officials, serves as trustee of the 
~stems, and the State Treasurer is custodian of the 
funds. 

The ten State-supported universities and the 
sixteen area technical colleges and their blended and 
discrete component units are reported within the 
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State's Higher Education Funds as part of the 
primary government. Although the universities and 
colleges operate somewhat autonomously, they lack 
full corporate powers. In addition, the Governor 
and/or the General Assembly appoints most of their 
boards and budgets a sigmficant portion of their 
funds. 

Note 1s provides further information concerning 
component units of the universities and colleges. 
The component units of the universities and colleges 
are: 

Blended Component Units: 
The Citadef Trust 
IPTA Y Scholarship Fund 
The Faculty House of Carolina, Inc. 

Blended Component Units Discretely Presented: 
Clemson Research Facilities Corporation 
Lander Foundation 
Lander Universi):y Alumni Association 
University of South Carolina School of 

Medicine Educational Trust 
Clinical Faculty Practice Plan (University 

of South Carolina) 
Charleston Memorial Hospital 
University Medical Associates of the 

Medical University of South Carolina 
(including its three for-profit 
subsidianes) 

Medical University Facilities CofP.oration 
Pharmaceutical Education and Develop

ment Foundation of the Medical 
Universi):y of South Carolina 

Medical University of South Carolina 
Foundation for Research 
Development 

Blended Component Units 

The State's financial statements include the 
Governor's School for the Arts Foundation, Inc., a 
blended component unit. The Foundation exists 
solely to support the South Carolina Governor's 
School for fhe Arts and Humanities. Complete 
financial statements for the Foundation may be 
obtained from its office as follows: 

Governor's School for the Arts 
Foundation Inc. 

Post Office Box 2046 
Greenville, South Carolina 29602 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

The State's financial statements include the 
discretely presented component units listed below. 

Fiscal year ended June 30, 1998: 
South Carolina State Ports Authority 
Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund 
EnterQrise. Development, Inc., of South 

Carohna 
Fiscal year ended December 31, 1997: 

South Carolina Public Service Authority 
(Santee-Cooper) 

Connector 2000 Association, Inc. 



Notes to the Financial Statements 
The South Carolina Public Service Authority, a 

~ublic utility company, was created by the Slate 
General Assembly m 1934. The Authority's primary 
purpose is to provide electric power ana wfiolesale 
water to the people of South Carolina. The 
Governor a_ppoints the Authority's Board of 
Directors. By law, the Authoricy must annually 
transfer to the State General Fund any net earnings 
not necessary for prudent business operations. 

The South Carolina State Ports Authori!Y. was 
created in 1942 by the State General Assemoly for 
the purposes of developin_g_ and improving the State's 
harBors and seaports. The State Ports AuthoriD' 
owns and operates seven ocean terminals that handle 
import and export cargo. The Governor appoints the 
members oftlie Authority's governing boaro. 

The Savannah Lakes Regional Loan Fund was 
established in 1990. It maintains a revolving loan 
fund to promote economic development m the 
State's Savannah Lakes Region. The Fund's Board 
of Directors consists of three members from each of 
two State agencies, the Department of Commerce 
and the Jobs-Economic Development Authority. 

Enterprise Development, Inc., of South Carolina 
was created in 1989 as the result of a proviso of the 
State ApP.ropriation Act. The Corporation was 
establislieo to support the South Carolina 
Department of Commerce in achieving its economic 
devel<_>p~ent goals fo.r the. State. The purpose of the 
organq:at~ol_l. ·~ to tdenttfY., create, ana .develop 
strategic tmttattves and busmess resources m order 
for tlie State to achieve economic pari!)' with 
neighboring states. Effective SeP.tember 30, 1997, 
the CorPoration entered into an affiliation agreement 
with Concurrent Technologies Corporation (CTC). 
Although ere now aQPOllltS a majority of tlie 
Cof[loration's Board of Directors, the Secretary of 
the South Carolina D~partment of Commerce has the 
power to abolish the Corporation. 

Connector 2000 Association, Inc., was created in 
1996 to assist the Department of Transportation in 
the financing, acquisition, construction, and 
operation of turnpikes, primarily the project known 
as the Southern Connector in Greenville CounD'. 
The Department of Transportation initially set tfie 
toll rates for the Southern Connector and has the 
right, but not the obligation, to revise the rates as 
long as they are within YO% to 120% of the optimum 
toll rates as estimated by an independent traffic 
consultant retained by the AssociatiOn. The rates 
also must be in comp1iance with revenue covenants 
of th~ ~sso~iation's financin_g agreements. The 
AssociatiOn tssued no financtal slatements for its 
fiscal year ended December 31, 1997, because it did 
not have any assets or revenues. Therefore, except 
for data regarding the Association's issuance of debt 
subsequenf to December 31, 1997, the State's 
financtal statements for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1998, do not include financial data for the 
Association. 
. . ~omplete financial st~tements for each of these 
mdlVldua1 component umts may be obtained from 
the entity's admmistrative office as follows: 

State of South Carolina 

South Carolina Public Service Authority 
(Santee-Cooper) 

One Riverwoocf Drive 
Moncks Corner, South Carolina 29461-2901 
South Carolina State Ports Authority 
Post Office Box 22287 
Charleston, South Carolina 29413-2287 
Savannah Lakes R~gional Loan Fund 
1201 Main Street, Suite 1750 
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 

Enterpri~e Development, Inc., of South 
Carohna 

1105 Bellview Drive 
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 

Additional financial information for the 
Connector 2000 Association, Inc., may be obtained 
as follows: 

Connector 2000 Association, Inc. 
c/o Sinkler & Boyd, P.A. 
15 South Main Street, Suite 500 
Greenville, South Carolina 29601 

These financial statements exclude the related 
foundations listed in Note 15 because the State does 
not significantly influence operations of the related 
foundations nor are the related foundations 
accountable to the State for fiscal matters. 

Related Organizations 

A related organization is one for which the 
primary government is not financially accountable 
evep though .the P.rimary gov~rnll].ent appoints a 
votmg maJonty of the orgamzat10n's _governing 
board. Tlie South Carolina Children's Trust Funo 
and the Gift of Life Trust Fund of South Carolina 
are related organizations because the State is not 
financially accountable for them despite the fact that 
the Governor appoints all of their trustees. County 
boards of mental retardation are relateo 
organizations if their members are appointed by the 
Governor but are not related orgamzations if their 
memb~rs are appointed by their respective county 
councils. 

Jointly Governed Organizations 

The Governor, in conjunction with officials of 
certain local governments, appoints the board 
memb~r:s of two military facthty redevelopment 
authonttes. The State does not have an ongoing 
financial interest in these authorities. The Governor 
@points one out of seven board members of the 
Cliarleston Naval ComP.lex Redevelopment 
Authority and three out of nine board members of 
the MY.rtle Beach Air Force Base Redevelopment 
Authority. 
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State of South Carolina 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

b. Basis of Presentation-Fund Accounting 

The State uses fund accounting under which it 
segregates its resources and accounts for them in 
various individual funds. Each individual fund is an 
accounting enticy with a self-balancing set of 
accounts. Individual funds that have similar 
characteristics are combined into fund types. 

Governmental Funds 

Governmental Funds finance most of the State's 
governmental functions. The measurement focus of 
the Governmental Funds is on sources, uses, and 
balances of financial resources. 

The General Fund is the State's general 
operating fund. It accounts for resources that fund 
tlie services South Carolina's State government 
traditionally has provided to its citizens, except those 
required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special Revenue Funds account for specific 
revenue sources (other than for Capital Projects, 
Trust, and Higher 'Education Funds) that are legally 
restricted for specified puwoses. 

Capital Projects Funds account for resources to 
acquire m'!ior capital facilities for use by the General 
Fund and Specia Revenue Funds. 

Debt Service Funds are not used because the 
State does not accumulate resources to pay future 
years' general long-term obligations. Instead, the 
State finances such payments directly from the 
current year's resources. 

Proprietary Funds 

Proprietary Funds account for activities similar 
to those found in the _private sector. The Financial 
Accounting Stanqar~s Board (F ASB) and _its 
predecessor orgamzatwns have Issued accountmg 
and reporting standards for activities in the private 
sector. The State's Proprietary Funds have elected 
not to apply standards issued oy those organizations 
after November 30, 1989. These funds, however 
have applied all applicable pronouncements issued 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB). 

The measurement focus ofthe Proprietary Funds 
is upon determination of net income, financial 
positiOn, and cash flows. 

Enterprise Funds account for business-like State 
activities that provide goods/services to the public 
financed primarily through user charges. 

Internal Service Funos provide goods/services to 
other funds, agencies, c9mP.on~nt units, or 
governments on a cost-alwcatwn basts. 

Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary Funds account for resources the State 
holds as trustee or agent for individuals, private 
organizations, or other g_overnmental units. Both 
prmctpal and earnings oT Expendable Trust Funds 
may oe used for purposes allowed under the trust 
agreements. Only the earnings, but not the principal, 
ofNonexpendabfe Trust Funos may be expended. 

Expendable Trust Funds bave the same 
measurement focus as Governmental Funds. 
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Nonexpendable Trust, the Investment Trust Fund, 
and Pension Trust Funds have the same 
measurement focus as Proprietary Funds. Agency 
Funds are custodial in nature and do not involve 
measurement of results of operations. 

Account Groups 

The General Fixed Assets Account Group 
includes all fixed assets of the primary government 
other than those accounted for in the Proprietary, 
Fiduciary, and Hig_her Education Funds. 

The General-Long-Term Obligations Account 
G~oup accounts for air long-term obligations. of the 
pnmary government not accounted- for m the 
Proprietary and Higher Education Funds. 
Significant long-term obligations include bonds, 
caP.ital leases, compensated absences, and claims 
ana judgments. 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

The State's discretely presented component units 
conduct business-like activities that _provide 
goods/services to the public and are financed 
primarily through user charges. The measurement 
locus of these entities is upon determination of net 
income financial position and cash flows. The 
Public Service Autliority, the State Ports Authority, 
and Enterprise DeveloP.ment,., Inc., of South Carolina 
have elected to apply all F A~B pronouncements that 
are not inconsistent with GASB pronouncements. 
The other discretely presented comP.onent unit has 
elected not to apply standards issueo by the F ASB 
after November 3U, 1989. 

c. Basis of Accounting 

The basis of accounting determines when the 
State recognizes revenues ana expenditures/expenses 
and related assets and liabilities, regardless of 
measurement focus. 

Governmental, Expendable Trust, and Agency 
Funds 

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used 
in Governmental, Expendable Trust, and Agency 
Funds. Under the modified accrual basis, revenues 
are recorded when theY. become susceptible to 
accrual (i.e., both measurable and available). Except 
for entitlements, unemployment insurance taxes, and 
interest on investments, revenues are deemed 
available at year-end only if received within one 
month following year-end. Unem_ployment 
insurance taxes in the Expendable Trust Funas are 
deemed available at year-end only if received within 
forty-five days following year-end. Interest on 
investments IS recorded as earned because it is 
deemed available when earned. Deferred revenue is 
recorded for receivables that are measurable but not 
available at year-end. 

Individual and corporate income taxes in the 
hands of employers or COriJorations, sales and 
similar taxes (mciuding gasoline taxes) in the hands 



Notes to the Financial Statements 
of merchants or other State collection agents1 delinquent taxes, charges for services ana 
commodities, and interest income are accrued at 
year-end. Fines, forfeitures, licenses and fees, and 
other miscellaneous taxes and revenues are recorded 
as revenues when received in cash because they are 
generally not measurable until actually received. 

Exp~nditures gent:rally are recorded ~hen. goods 
or services are received. An exceQtiOn IS that 
m-incipal and interest on obligations reflected in the 
Ueneral Long-Term Obligations Account Group are 
recorded as expenditures when due. Additwnal 
exceptions are that expenditures for compensated 
absences, claims and judgments, and special 
employee termination benefits reflected in the 
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group are 
recorded when paid. 

ProQ.rietary Funds, NonexQ.endable Trust 
Funds,... Pension Trust Funds, Investment 
Trust rund~. and Discretely Presented 
Componem Units 

The State uses the accrual basis of accounting to 
report activity of the Pro_prietary, Nonexpendable 
Trust, and Pension Trust funds and the discretely 
presented component units. Under the accrual basis 
of accounting, the State recognizes revenues when 
earned and expenses when mcurred. The Public 
Servic~ Authonty, a discrt:tely presented compon~nt 
umt, IS a regulated ut1hty that uses accountmg 
Qrinciples esfabli~ht:d by the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission. 

Grant/Entitlement Revenues 

The State recognizes grants, including non-cash 
support, as revenue when the State has incurred 
grant costs and has met all related grant 
requirements (such as matching requirements). food 
commodities totaled $13.852 million for the fiscal 
year ended June30, 1998. In contrast, the State 
recognizes entitlements as revenue at the beginning 
of the entitlement period. 

The State recognizes the face value of food 
stamp benefits distributed as revenue and 
expenditures in the Departmental General Operating 
Fund (a Special Revenue Fund) at the date ol 
distribution to individual recipients. Food stamp 
revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year endeo 
June 30, 1998, totaled $268.192 million. In 
addition, the State has recorded $82 thousand for 
food stamp coupons on hand at June 30, 1998, as 
part of Otlier Assets and Deferred Revenue. 

The State normally does not account for any 
grants in its Agency Funds. Pending determination 
of which funds are to be financed, however, 
grant/entitlement monies to be distributed to other 
State agencies are accounted for in A_gency Funds. 
At June 30, 1998, assets totaling $251 thousand 
were Qeing held in Agency Funos pending such 
determmatwn. 

d. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The amounts shown on the Combined Balance 
Sheet as Cash and Cash Equivalents represent pet!)' 
cas~, cas.h on deposit in banks, and cash invested in 
vanous mstruments as a part of the State's cash 
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management pool. Because the cash management 
pool operates as a demand deposit account, amounts 
mvested in the _pool are classified as Cash and Cash 
Equivalents. The State Treasurer administers the 
cash management pool. The pool includes some 
long-term mvestments such as obligations of the 
Umted States and certain agencies of the United 
States, obligations of domestic corporations, 
certificates of deposit, and collateralized repurchase 
agreements. 

Most entities in the primary government 
participate in the cash management pool. Significant 
exceptwnsl however, are: retirement and deferred 
compensatiOn plans, the Local Government 
Investment Pool, the Housing Authority Fund (an 
Enterprise Fund), and certain activities of the Higher 
Education Funds. Of the discretely presented 
component units, only the State Ports Authority 
Qarticipates in the pool. For activities excluded from 
the pool, Cash Equivalents include investments in 
short-term, highly liquid securities having an initial 
maturity of three months or less. 

e. Cash Management Pool-Allocation of Interest 

The State's cash management pool consists of a 
general deposit account and several special deposit 
accounts. The State records each fund's equity 
interest in the general deposit account. All earnmgs 
on that account, however, are recorded in tfie 
General Ful).d. . In contra~t, each special deposit 
account retams 1ts own earnmgs. 

f. Cash on Deposit with Fiscal Agents 

The Cash on Deposit with Fiscal Agents in the 
Trust and Agency Funds consists of amounts 
associated witb tlie unemrloyment compensation 
Q_rogram that are on deposi w1th the United States 
Treasury. 

g. Investments 

The State Treasurer is authorized by statute to 
invest all State funds. The State Treasurer's 
investment obiectives are preservation of capital, 
maintenance of adequate liquidity, and obtaining the 
best yield possiqle 'Yithin prescribed Q_arameters. To 
meet those obJectives, the State Treasurer uses 
various resources including an investment advisory 
service, electronic financial quotation ana 
information services, various economic reports, and 
daily communication with brokers and financial 
institution investment officers. 

To insure safety of principal, the State 
Treasurer's policy,i~ to limit liquid,investments J .. e., 
those w1th matuntles not exceedmg one year to 
cash, repurchase agreements (when collatera1ize by 
United States Treasury, Federal agency or other 
Federally guaranteed o6ligations witli a market value 
in excess of 100% offunds advanced), United States 
Treasury .bills, Federal agency discount notes, and 
commercial paper. The State Treasurer further 
preserves frinc1pal by investing in only the highest 
mvestmen grade securities (i.e., those rated at least 
A by_ two.leaqing national ratil).g services). )n or~er 
to diversify mvestment holdmgs, asset allocation 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

ROlicies are utilized for investments having more 
than one year to maturity. Overall credit exposure is 
managed by asset allocation policies and by 
additiOnal constraints controlling risk exposure to 
individual corporate issuers. During the fiscal _year 
ended June 30, 1998, State law created the State 
Retirement Systems Investment Panel, which may 
make limited mvestments in equity securities for the 
State's Pension Trust Funds. Each member of the 
State Budg_et and Control Board appoints one 
member oT the five-member Pane . As of 
June 301 J 998, . the Peqs_ion Trust Funds had not 
mvesteo m eglllty secunties. 

Substantially all of the State's investments are 
presented at fair value; securities are valued at the 
last reported sales price as provided by an 
independent pricing service. In contrast, however, 
the State has presented at historical cost the 
investment secunties and other instruments that the 
Chief Insurance Commissioner holds for insurance 
companies in lieu of surety bonds. These 
instruments are recorded in tbe State's Agency 
Funds and are not held for investment pU[poses. 

The State sponsors the Local Government 
Investment Pool (LGIP), an external investment pool 
reported in the Fiduciary Funds as a separate 
Investment Trust Fund. The LGIP's separate 
financial report may be obtained by writing to the 
following address: 

The State Treasurer's Office 
Local Government Investment Pool 
Post Office Drawer 11778 
Columbia, South Carolina 29201 

The Public Service Authority, a discretely 
presented component unitkcarries Its available-for
sale investments at mar et value with the net 
unrealized gain or loss offset against its fund equity. 
The Authonty has no trading mvestments. For Its 
fiscalJear ended December 31, 1997, the Authority 
carrie its held-to-maturity investments at amortizeo 
cost. Beginning on January 1, 1998, however, the 
Authority will carry these investments at fair value. 

h. Receivables 

Receivables are stated net of allowances for 
uncollectible amounts. Uncollectible amounts are 
estimated based upon past collection experience. 

i. Inventories 

Inventories of the Governmental Funds are 
valued at cost using predominantly the first-in, first
out methodology. lnventories of the Proprietary 
Funds and the discretely presented component units 
are valued at cost using the average cost 
methodology. The Governmental Funds use the 
RUrchases method while the Proprietary Funds and 
the discr~tely presented component units use the 
consumptiOn method. 

j. Servicing Rights 

The Public Railways Division of the Department 
of Commerce (reported in the Other Enterprise 
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Funds) entered into a servicing a_greement during its 
fiscal year ended December 31, I995. The Division 
reP.orts servicing rights as an intangible asset which 
will be amortizeo to operating expenses over the life 
of the agreement. The servicmg rights are stated net 
of accumulated amortization. 

k. Fixed Assets and Depreciation 

Fixed assets are valued at historical cost or at 
estimated historical cost if actual historical cost data 
are not available. Donated fixed assets are recorded 
at fair market value on the donation date. 

Governmental Funds 
Governmental Funds record expenditures when 

!hey acquire fixe<;f assets and capitalize those assets 
m the General Fixed Assets Account Group. The 
General Fixed Assets Account Group records neither 
depreciation nor capitalization of interest 
expenditures during construction. The State does 
not record its public domain (infrastructure) assets in 
the General F1xed Assets Account Group. 

Pro~rietary Funds, Similar Trust Funds, and 
Discretely Presented Component Units 
Proprietary_ Funds Nonexpendable Trust Funds 

Pension Trustrunds, the Investment Trust Fund, and 
the discretely presented component units capitalize 
fixed assets when acquired. Net interest costs are 
capitalized on projects during the construction 
Reriod. Depreciation is provideo using the straight
line methoo over the following estimated useful 
lives: 

Asset Years 
Wando River channel dredging project............... ---go-
Other land improvements................................... 3-60 
Residential buildings .. . . .. . . . . . .. .. . . . . . .. . . . .. ... . . . . . .. . . . . . 20-30 
Office and other buildings................................... 5-50 
Naval museum exhibits...................................... 10-25 
Hydro-electric utility plants . . .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . . . .. . . . . . .. 55 
Other utility plants . .. .. .. .. . . .. . . . . . .. .. . . . .. .. . . .. .. . . . .. .. . . . . 22-37 
Automobiles. vans, light trucks........................... 5-8 
Heavy trucks and buses..................................... 8-15 
Airplanes and helicopters................................... 3-8 
Other furnishings and equipment ...... ................. 2-25 

Depreciation on fixed assets acquired from 
ContriButed Capital is closed to Retained Earnings. 

I. Restricted Assets and Liabilities Payable from 
Restricted Assets 

Most of the amounts reported as Restricted 
Assets in the Enterprise Funds and in the discretelY. 
presented component units represent assets requireo 
to be held and/or used as specified in bond 
indentures and bond resolutions. In the Enterprise 
Funds, Restricted Assets also include amounts 
collected by the Second Injury Fund to pay claims 
for which the Fund has no risk. The amounts held 
by the Second Injury Fund are offset by Liabilities 
Payable from Restncted Assets to demonstrate that 
the Fl;lnd has not assumed any risk for the payment 
of claims. 
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Restricted assets are classified into four 

categories: Cash and Cash Eguivalents, 
Investments, Loans Receivable, and Otfier. The 
State's restricted assets consist primarily of United 
States government secunties\ repurchase 
agreements, and mortgage loans receivable. 

m. Deferred Charges 

Deferred costs to be recovered from future 
revenues of the South Carolina Public Service 
Authority (a regulated utility which is a discretely 
Qresentea component unit) are recorded as Deferreo 
Charges. The Authority's rates are based upon debt 
service and operating fund requirements. The 
Authority recognizes differences between debt 
principaf maturities and straight-line depreciation as 
costs to be recovered from future revenue. The 
recovery of outstanding amounts associated with 
costs to be recovered from future revenue will 
coincide with the retirement of the outstanding long
term debt of the Authority. 

Deferred charges also include the cost of a buy
out option on a coal contract exercised by the 
Authority. The cost is being amortized as a 
component of fuel costs over the remaining life of 
the tormer contract. 

n. Tax Refunds Payable 

Most of the Tax Refunds Payable balance in the 
General Fund relates to Individual Income Tax. 
During the calendar year, the State collects 
employee withholdings and tax_p~ers' payments. 
Taxpayers file returns-by April 15 tor the preceding 
calendar. year. At June 30,t the State estimates the 
amount It owes taxpayers ror ovei]Jayments dunn_g 
the preceding six months. This estimated payable Is 
recorded as Tax Refunds Payable and a reduction of 
Tax Revenues. 

o. Long-Term Obligations 

The State records long-term debt of 
governmental funds in the General Long-Term 
Obligations Account Group. Other governmental 
fund obligations not expected to be financed with 
current available financial resources also are 
recorded in the General Long-Term Obligations 
Account Group. Long-term debt and other 
obligations financed by proprietary funds are 
recorded as liabilities in the appropriate funds. 

The State's debt in the General Long-Term 
Obligations Account Group includes capital 
arpreciation (deep-discount) bonds that were issued 
a stated interest rates significantly below the 
effective interest rate. The resulting discount is 
systematically reduced and the carrying amount of 
the debt is systematically increased over the life of 
the bonds. 

For Governmental Fund Types, bond premiums 
and discounts, as well as Issuance costs...., are 
recognized during the current period. nond 
proceeds are reported as Other Financing Sources 
net of the applicable premium or discount. Issuance 
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costs, whether or not withheld from the actual net 
proceeds received, are reP.orted as exP.enditures. 

For Proprietary Funa. Types ano the .discretely 
P.resented component UllltS, bond premiUmS ana 
oiscountsl as well as issuance costsbare deferred and 
amortizeo over the life of the onds using the 
effective interest method. For current refunoings 
and advance refundings resulting in defeasance of 
debt, the difference between the reacguisition price 
and the net carrying amount of the olO debt is also 
deferred and amortized over the remaining life of the 
old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is 
shorter. Bonds payable are reported net of the 
applicable bond P.remium or discount and deferred 
amount on refunoing. Unamortized issuance costs 
are reported as deferred charges. 

A component unit of an institution reported in 
the State's Higher Education Funds enters into 
interest rate swap agreements to modify interest 
rates on outstanding debt. Other than the net interest 
expenditures resulting from these agreements, no 
amounts are recorded m the financial s1atements. 

p. Compensated Absences 

During their first ten years of service, most full
time permanent State emP.loyees annually earn 
15 days of vacation leave ana 15 days of sicK leave. 
After ten years, most employees earn an additional 
1.25 days of vacation leave for each year of service 
over ten until they reach the maximum of 30 days 
per year. Employees may carrx forward QP to 
~5 days of vacation leave and 180 aays of sick reave 
from one calendar year to the next. Upon 
termination of employment, the State pays 
employees for accumulated vacation leave at the pay 
rate then in effect. Employees do not receive pay for 
accumulated sick leave when they terminate. 
However, at retirement, employees participating in 
the South Carolina Retirement System and the South 
Carolina Police Officers' Retirement System may 
receive additional service credit for up to 90 days of 
accumulated unused sick leave. 

When emQloyees earn vacation leave, the 
Governmental Fund Types record a liabili!Y m the 
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for 
the amount expected to be used or paid in cash. The 
General and Special Revenue Funds record 
expenditures when employees use leave. 

The Proprietary Funds and the discretely 
presented component units record an expense and a 
Iiabili:tY when employees earn vacation leave. 

Tlie State does not record a liability for unpaid 
accumulated sick leave. 

q. lnterfund Transactions 

. The State ac~ounts for the following types of 
mterfund transactions: 

Interfund loans may occur between two State 
funds. Short-term interfund loans outstanding at 
year-end are recorded as Interfund Receiv
ables/Payables. Advances To/From Other Funds 
represent long-term interfund loans receivable and 
payable. 
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Reimbursements result when one fund makes an 
expenditure on behalf of another fund. Reim
bursement transactions reduce expenditures in the 
reimbursed fund and increase expenditures in the 
reimbursing fund. 

Quasi-external transactions involve charges for 
goods or services that one fund delivers or _provides 
fo another. These transactions may resuft in the 
recording of short-term receivables or payables (Due 
From or To Other Funds, Primary Government, or 
Com_ponent Units) at year-end. 

Residual equiD' transfers are nonroutine or 
nonrecurring transfers between funds. 

Operating transfers include all interfund 
transactions that are not loans, reimbursements, 
quasi-external transactions, or residual equity 
transfers. 

The State eliminates material intrafund 
transactions and interfund transactions that occur 
within a single combined financial statement fund 
type. 

r. Escheat Property 

The State accounts for its escheat property in the 
General Fund, the fund to which the property 
ultimately escheats. To the extent it is probable that 
such property will be reclaimed and paid to 
claimants, the State records a liability and reduces 
revenue in the General Fund. 

s. Higher Education Funds 

Financial activities of the State's higher 
education institutions are reported in the Higher 
Education Funds within the State's primary 
government. These funds use generally accepteo 
accounting principles that apply to colleges and 
universities as contained in Aud1ts of Collef!,es and 
Universities published by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants. The Higher Education 
Funds are _presented in a separate column on the 
Combined Balance Sheet. The Combined Statement 
of Changes in Fund Balances-Higher Education 
Funds presents the following_ fund types: 

Current Funds account 1or resources that higher 
education institutions may use for any purpose in 
carrying out their primary objectives. Restricted 
CurrenfFunds incluae resources that donors or other 
outside agencies have restricted for specific current 
Qperatil}g pu!]Joses. All other current funds are 
Unrestncted Current Funds. 

Loan Funds account for resources available for 
loans . to . stu.del}ts, faculty, or staff of higher 
educatiOn mstttutwns. 

Endowment and Similar Funds account for 
endowment and quasi-endowment transactions. 
These funds are similar to trust funds. The State 
must comply with the terms of any applicable 
agreements. 

Plant Funds account for transactions involving 
physical properties of the higher education 
mstitutions. The Unexpended Plant subgroup 
accounts for monies that institutions have available 
to finance the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of physical properties. Resources that 
institutions have set aside for the renewal and 
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replacement of institutional Qroperties are also 
recorded in this subgroup. The Retirement of 
Indebtedness subgroup includes monies to pay debt 
service and to retire indebtedness on institutional 
properties. The Investment in Plant subgrouP. 
accounts for funds that institutions have expendea 
for (and thus have invested in) their properties and 
any related outstanding debt. 

Agency Funds within the Higher Education 
Funds account for amounts that higher education 
institutions hold as custodians or fiscal agents for 
others. 

Foundations and Institutes Funds account for 
certain component units of the State's colleges and 
universities. Most of these component units have 
fiscal years ended June 30, but some have fiscal 
years ended December 31. All component units in 
the Foundations and Institutes Funds meet the 
criteria for blending but are presented in a separate 
column because tfiey use a basis of accountin~ 
different from the one followed by the States 
colleges and J.!niversities. N,lost of tfi.e c.omponent 
umts of higher educatiOn mstituttons are 
governmental entities that follow one of the two 
accounting and financial reporting models defined 
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's 
Statement 29, The Use of Not-for-Profit Accounting 
and Financial Reporting Principles by 
Governmental Entities. A few of the component 
units, however, are non-governmental entities that 
follow g__enerally accepteo accounting J?rinciples for 
non-pro1it entities as _prescribed by the Fmancial 
Accounting Standards Board. 

The Combined Statement of Current Funds 
Revenues, Expenditures, and Other Changes-Higher 
Education Funds is a statement of financial activities 
related to the current reporting period. It does not 
purport to present the results ol operations or the net 
mcome or loss for the period as would a statement of 
income or a statement of revenues and expenses. 

Cash transfers between the higher education 
institutions and the General Fund and Special 
Revenue Funds appear as revenues and expenditures 
on the Combmed Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Chan~s in Fund Balances
Budget ana Actual (~udgetary Basis}-All 
Budgeted Funds. On all other combined operating 
statements, however, such transfers to (from) the 
institutions appear in the Higher Education Funds as 
Operating Transfers In (Out), 

The measurement focus in the Higher Education 
Funds is upon determination of resources received 
and used. The Higher Education Funds use the 
accrual basis. Alfhoug_h certain not-for-profit 
component units in the "Foundations and Institutes 
Fund record depreciation of fixed assets, other 
Higher Education Funds do not. In addition, 
revenues from tuition and student fees of a summer 
session are reported totally within the fiscal year in 
which the session is predominantly conaucted. 
Current Funds used to finance plant assets are 
accounted for as ( 1) expenditures for normal 
replacement of movable equipment and library 
books, (2) mandatory transfers for requireo 
provisions for debt amortization/interest and 
(3) transfers of a nonmandatory nature for all other 
cases. 

Higher Education Funds record exP.enditures 
when tney acquire fixed assets and capitalize those 
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assets within their Plant Funds. These funds 
capitalize interest expenditures during construction 
but do not record depreciation. 

Unamortized bond discounts are netted against 
the related portion of bonds payable in the 
Retirement of Indebtedness subgrouP.. The 
discounts are amortized to interest on inoebtedness 
over the life of the bonds using the straight-line 
method. 

Inventories of the Higher Education Funds are 
valued at the lower of cosf or market using the first
in, first-out method. These funds use the 
consumption method of recording inventories. 

The State's colleges and umversities record an 
expenditure and liabiJity in the Unrestricted Current 
Funds when employees earn credits toward future 
compensated absences. 

t. Totals (Memorandum Only) Columns 

Amounts in the "Totals-Memorandum Only" 
colump.s for rhe primary government ~nd for the 
reportmg entity represent an aggregatiOn of the 
combined financial statement line-Items to facilitate 
financial analysis. Amounts in the "Totals
Memorap.du!TI Only" columns are not comparable to 
a consolidatiOn. 

NOTE 2: BUDGETARY ACCOUNT
ING AND REPORTING 

a. Budgetary Funds 

South Carolina's AQwopriation Act does not 
present budgets by GAAP fund. Instead, it presents 
bud~ts for: 

General Funds. These funds are general 
operating funds. The resources in these funds are 
primarily taxes. The State expends General Funds to 
Qfovide traditional State government services. The 
General Funds column m the A_ppropriation Act 
differs somewhat from the GAAP General Fund. 

Total Funds. The Total Funds column in the 
Appropriation Act includes all budgeted resources. 
Amounts in this column include General Funds as 
well as most Federal and department-generated 
resources. Total Funds include certain Proprietary 
and Capital PrQject Fund activities but exclude 
Pension Trust Funds and most other Trust and 
Agency Fund activities. 

The accompanying financial statements include 
a Combined Statement of Revenues, Expendituresi 
and Changes in Fund Balances-Budget and Actua 
(Budgetary Basis }-All Budgeted }'unds. The 
Budgetary Generaf Fund category on that statement 
corresponds to the General }'unds column in the 
Appropriation Act. The Other Budgeted Funds 
category represents the difference between the Total 
Funds and the General Funds columns in the 
Appropriation Act. 

b. Budgetary Basis of Accounting 

Current legislation states that the General 
Assembly intends to appropriate all monies to 
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operate State government for the current fiscal year. 
Agencies may carry forward UP. to I 0% of 
unexpended Budgetary General Fu_nq appropriations 
to the next fiscar year. Any remammg unexpended 
Budgetary General Fund appropriations lapse on 
July~ I unless the department or agency is given 
specific authorization to carry them forward to the 
next fi~cal y~ar. C~sh-basis accounting for payroll 
expenditures IS reqmred. 

State law does not _precisely define the budgetary 
basis of accounting. fn P.ract1ce, however, it IS the 
cash basis with the following exceptions: 

(i) Departments and agencies charge certain 
vendor and interfund payments against the 
preceding fiscal year's appropriations through 
July 20. 

(ii) Certain revenues collected in advance are 
recorded as liabilities (deferred revenues) 
rather than as revenues. 

(iii) The following taxes in the Combined 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balances-Budget and 
Actmil (Budgetary Basis) are recorded on 
the modified accrual basis: Admissions 
Tax, Alcoholic Liquors Tax, Beer and Wine 
Tax, Business License Tax..., Electric Power 
Tax~ Gasoline Tax, Sales 1 axes (including 
the tducation Improvement Act-I% Sales 
Tax, Excise Tax--=-casual Sales, and Retail 
Sales Tax--4%), Soft Drinks Tax, and 
Commercial Nuclear Waste Tax. 

(iv) All other revenues are recorded only when 
the State receives the related cash. 

c. Budgetary Policies 

State law does not require the use of 
encumbrance accounting. Neither the General Fund 
nor the Budgetary General Fund;. therefore, records 
encumbrances or a reserve ror encumbrances. 
Instead, the General Fund records the authorized 
appropriations to be carried forward as a reserve of 
fund Balance. 

The State maintains budgetary control at the 
level of summary object category of expenditure 
within each program of each department or agency. 
All budgeted departments and agencies except tile 
higher education institutions process their 
disbursement vouchers through a central budgetary 
accounting s_ystem maintained by the Compfroller 
General's Otlice. Departments and agencies rna>-' 
process disbursement vouchers in the State s 
budgetary aCCQUJ1ting syste111 only if enough cash 
and appropnatwns exist. The State's 
I997-9~ Appr9pri!ltion Act has apprqximately 2l920 
~ppropnated hne Items. These hne Items constitute 
tfie level of legal control over expenditures. The 
level of legal control for all agencies is reported in a 
publication ofthe State Comptroller General's Office 
titled ''A Detailed _Report of Appropriations and 
Expenditures," not mcluded herem. Departm~nts 
and agencies may reqJ.Iest transfer~ of appropriatiOns 
among summary obJect categones and/or among 
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programs within the same budgetary fund. No such 
transfer req_uest, however, may exceed twent):' 
Qercent of the program budget. The Budget ano 
Control Board composed of five keY. executive and 
legislative officials, has the authority to approve 
such requests. 

Each year, the General Assembly enacts an 
AppropriatiOn Act that includes initial estimated 
revenue and apprQPriation figures for the Budgetary 
General Fund. The 1997-98 Appropriation Act 
directs the Budget and Control Board to reduce the 
Budgetary General Fund's approR_ri!}tion~ durjng the 
year tf necessary to prevent a delictt. Ltkewtse, the 
State Board of Economic Advisors may approve 
revisions of estimated revenues for the Budgetary 
General Fund duril}g the year. 

For Other Budgeted Funds, the annual 
Appropriation Act presents estimated revenue 
amounts only for Education Improvement Act and 
highway revenues. The Budget and Control Board, 
however, provides estimate<f revenue amounts for 
the other resources in these funds. The 
Appropriation Act includes all appropriation 
amounts for these funds. 

As op~rating conditions clJ.~nge, deparJ:ments 
and agencies may request revlSlons of estimated 
revenues and expenditures in Other Budgeted Funds. 
Such changes require the Budget and Control 
Board's approval: . Departmef1ts and agencies also 
may requ~st revtstons of est!mated revenues . and 
appropnattons for permanent tmP.rovement proJects 
tflat the General Assembly dio not specifically 
authorize. The Budget and Control Board and the 
Joint Bond Review Committee must approve and 
review these changes. During the current fiscal year, 
the State's budget was amenoed in accordance with 
the m-ocedures outlined above. 

The General Assembly enacted a 
1996-97 Supplemental Appropnations Act and 
authorized those unexpended a[lpropriations to cai)"Y 
forward from the 1996-97 tlsca year into the 
1997-98 fiscal year. However, the General 
Assembly did not enact any SupP.Iemental 
Appropnations Acts that directly increased 
appropriations for the 1997-98 fiscal year. 

d. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 the 
Educational function within Other Budgeted Funds 
had $14.197 million of expenditures in excess of 
appropriations at the level of legal control. These 
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overexpenditures were associated with the State's 
technical colleges. The technical colleges maintain 
their own accounting systems. The colleges had 
sufficient budgetary-basis revenue and cash to 
provide for thetr budgetary-basis expenditures. 

e. Legal Limit On Appropriations 

State law imposes a ceiling on appropriations for 
general, school, and hi_ghway pU!lJOSes. The limit 
equals the greater of : ( 1) the hmif for the last fiscal 
year increased by the average percentage rate of 
growth in State personal income for the ~revious 
three completed calendar years, or (2) 9.5 Yo of the 
total personal income of the State for the last 
completed calendar year. 

The 1997-98 ApproP-riation Act included 
apP.ropriations of $5.840 billion for general, school, 
ana h~gh_way purposes-$1.1 00 billion less than the 
legal hmtt. 

f. Legal Limit on Number of State Employees 

The State's Constitution and statutes limit the 
number of emploY.ees that the Budgetary General 
Fund may fund. The number of these emploY.ees 
may not mcrease faster than the State's population. 
On June 30 1998 38,466 employ_ees were funded 
by the State1s Budgetary General -Fund-8,280 fewer 
dian the legal limit. 

g. Reconciliation of Budget to GAAP Reporting 
Differences 

The Combined Statement of Revenues, 
ExP.enditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Buoget and Actual (Budgetary Basis )-:All Budgeted 
Funds presents comparisons of the State's legally 
adopted budget with actual data on the budgetary 
basts of accounting. Bu<!getary accounting 
principles, however, differ signitlcantiy from GAAP 
ac~o4nting principles. .These different ac~ounting 
prmctples result m basts, perspective, enttty, and 
timing differences in the excess of revenues and 
other sources of financial resources over (under) 
expenditures and other uses of financial resources. 
These differences (exQressed in thousands) for the 
fiscal year ended June JO, 1998, were: 
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Excess of Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Uses 

Budgetary Balances Classified Into 
GAAP Fund Structure 

Budgetary Other Total 
General Budgeted Budgeted 

GAAP Fund Type Fund Funds Funds 

General Fund ........................... $ 7,755 $ 11,046 $ 18,801 
Special Re-.enue Funds ............. 99,770 99,770 
Capital Projects Fund ................ (585) (585) 
Enterprise Funds ...................... 1,767 1,767 
Internal Ser.ice Funds ............... 7,103 7,103 
Expendable Trust Funds ............ 44 44 
Nonexpendable Trust Fund ........ 103 103 
Pension Trust Funds ................. 11 11 
ln-.estmeni Trust Fund ............... 
Agency Funds .......................... (10,390) (10,390) 

Higher Education Funds ............ (58,695) (58,695) 

Totals (Memorandum Only) .... s 7,755 s so, 174 s 

NOTE 3: ACCOUNTING AND 
REPORTING CHANGES 

a. Fair Value of Investments 

Effective July 1, 1997, the State adopted the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board's 
(GASB) Statement 31 entitled Accounting and 
Financwl Reporting f9r Certain Investments and for 
External Investment Pools. GASB 31 req_uires the 
State to present investments of all funds at lair value 
rather than at amortized cost. Accordingly, the State 
has reQorted the cumulative effect of applying 
GASB J 1 as a restatement of beginning fund equity 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998. Assets also 
changed in an amount equal to the change in 
beginning fund eguity. 

In addition, GASB 31 requires all governmental 
entities that sponsor external investment pools to 
establish an Investment Trust Fund to report the 

57,929 

Entity 
Differences 

Timing Basis (Unbudgeted GAAP 
Differences Differences Funds) Balances 

$ $ (7,029) $ 9,263 $ 21,035 
147,503 20,247 267,520 

1,032 (12,031) (11,584) 
11,010 8,407 21,184 
(7,323) 20,316 20,096 

65,744 65,788 
2 9 114 

2,144,210 2,144,221 
122,241 122,241 

10,390 
2,623 40,354 176,024 160,306 

s 2,623 s 195,939 s 2,554,430 $ 2,810,921 

external portion of each investment pool. 
Accordingly, the Local Government Investment 
Pool~ p~ev10usly presented in the State's A~ncy 
Funos, ts now presented as an Investment !rust 
Fund. 

The investments of the State's Pension Trust 
Funds have been _presented at fair value since 
July 1, 1995 when tfie State implemented GASB 25, 
Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension 
Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined 
Contribution Plans. 

b. Effects on Beginning Fund Balances and 
Retained Earnings 

The schedule below details changes made to 
beginning fund equity to give effect to the financial 
reporting change described above. The schedule 
(expressed in tliousands) also gives retroactive effect 
to changes in capitalization thresholds for certain 
fixed assets. 
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General Fund .......................................... 
Special Re-.enue Funds ............................ 
Capital Projects Fund ............................... 
Enterprise Funds-Retained Earnings ......... 
Internal Service Funds-Retained Earnings. 
Expendable Trust Funds ........................... 
Nonexpendable Trust Funds ..................... 
ln-.estment Trust Fund .............................. 
Higher Education Funds: 

Unrestricted Current Funds ..................... 
Restricted Current Funds ........................ 
Loan Funds ........................................... 
Endowment and Similar Funds ................ 
Unexpended Plant Funds ....................... 
Retirement of Indebtedness Plant Funds .. 
ln-.estment in Plant Funds ...................... 
Foundations and Institutes Fund ............. 

As Previously 
Reported 

$ 156,453 
875,786 

78,479 
269,787 
282,726 
820,668 

1,519 

311.235 
52,112 
49,759 
76,390 

150,449 
38,774 

2,407,867 
45,796 

Effect of 
Implementing 

GASB 31 

$ (130) 
687 
(50) 

7,677 
8,320 

252 
16 

650,422 

953 
785 
22 

7,825 
165 
158 

215 

Effect of 
Changes in 

Capitalization 
Policy 

$ 

(138) 
(1 ,398) 

(70,628) 

$ 

As 
Restated 

156,323 
876,473 

78,429 
277,326 
289,648 
820,920 

1,535 
650,422 

312,188 
52,897 
49,781 
84,215 

150,614 
38,932 

2,337,239 
46,011 

NOTE 4: DEPOSITS AND INVEST
MENTS 

Combined Balance Sheet 
Cash and cash equivalents .. $ 5.860,850 

17.939.712 
1,580,184 

By law, all deQosits and investments are under 
the control of the State Treasurer except for those 
which by specific authority are under the control of 
other agencies or discretely presented component 
unit~ pnmarily the Public Servtce Authori):y. 

1lie following disQlay reconciles die details 
included within this footnote to the Combined 
Balance Sheet at June 30, 1998 (expressed in 
thousands): 
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kwestments .............................................. . 
kwested securities lending collateral 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents .. 
hvestments... . .......................... .. 

368,694 
202,925 

Total................................................................................... $ 25,952,365 

Disclosure regarding deposits and investments plus 
reconciling items 

Carrying value of depostts . ..... ........ ................ $ 155,368 
Reported amount of investments. 25,795,854 
Cashonhand ................... 1,143 

Total................................................................................... $ 25,952,365 
==~..;....= 
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Amounts on deposit with the United States 
Treasury that relate to the Unemployment 
Compensation Benefits Fund are not cat~orized 
~ec~us~ they ~re neither deposits with financial 
mstttutwns nor mvestments. 

a. Deposits 

Deposits include cash and cash equivalents on 
deposit in banks and non-negotiable certificates of 
deposit. At June 30, 1998; t~e deposits of the State's 
pnmary government ana tts dtscretelY. presented 
component units (expressed in thousanas) were as 
follows: 

Total 

Category Bank Carrying 

2 3 Balance Amount 
Primary 

Government ... $ 303,013 $ 14,819 $ 53,798 $ 371,630 $ 153,863 
Corrjlonent 

Units .... 1.478 27 1,505 1,505 

Totals ............. $ 304,491 $ 14,819 $ 53,825 $ 373,135 $ 155,368 

Category 1 deposits are those covered by 
Federal deposi~ory m~urance or by collateral. held by 
a State entity (t.e., pnmary governm.ent or dtsqetely 
presented comQ.onent umt) or by tts agent m the 
entity's name. Category 2 deposits are collateralized 
with securities held by the pledging financial 
institution's trust department or agent m a State 
entity's name. Category 3 deposits are 
unco11ateralized. All depostts under the control of 
the State Treasurer are fully insured or 
collateralized. 
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b. Investments 

Legally authorized investments vary by fund 
but generally include obligations of the United 
States and certain agencies of the United States1 obligations of the State of South Carolina ana 
certain of its political subdivisions, certificates of 
deposit, collateralized repurchase agreements, 
certain corporate bonds and commercial paper. 

Substantially all of the State's investments are 
presented at fair value. Securities are valued at the 
!ast reported .s~les pric;e as provided py an 
mdependent pncmg servtce. Investment mcome 
consists of realizea and unrealized appreciation 
{depreci,11tion) in the fair value of investments and 
mterest mcome earned. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, the 
State's primary government and its discretely 
presented component units have classified thetr 
mvesttnents into three risk categories. Category 1 
includes investments that were insured or registered 
or for which the securities were held bY. a State 
entity (i.e., primary government or aiscretel~ 
presentea component unit) or its agent in the entity s 
name. Category 1 also includes investments for 
which a Stat~ entity has safeJ<eeping responsibilities 
but no egm):y or ownership mterest or control. 
Category 2: includes uninsured and unregistered 
investments for which the securities were held by the 
counterparty's trust department or agent in a State 
entity's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and 
unregistered investtnents for which the securities are 
held oy the counterparty, or by its trust department 
or agent but not in a State entity's name. The 
investtnents of the State's primary government and 
its discretely presented component units by risk 
category (expressed in thousands) at June 30, 1998, 
were: 
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1 
Primary Government 

U.S. government securities .................. $ 6,983,586 
Corporate bonds ................................... 8,457,319 

Repurchase agreements ...................... 2,161,553 

Collateralized rrortgage obligations ...... 957,878 
Asset-backed securities ...................... 54,578 

Comrercial paper ................................. 1,919,155 

Securities lending program 
Investments from cash collateral 

U.S. government securities .............. 
Corporate bonds ............................... 

Repurchase agreements .................. 

Comrercial paper ............................. 
Other ..................................................... 9,903 

Subtotals ............................................. 
Not categorized: 

Deferred compensation plans--

annuity contracts .............................. 

Securities lending program 

U.S. government securities .............. 
Corporate bonds ............................... 

Unsettled investment transactions ..... 

Mutual funds ....................................... 

Totals --primary government ........ $ 20,543,972 

Discretely Presented 
Component Units 

U.S. government securities .................. $ 199,322 
Repurchase agreements ...................... 225,103 

Subtotals ............................................. 
Not categorized: 

Investment in primary government's 

investment pool. ................................ 
Unsettled investment transactions ..... 
Totals-discretely presented 

component units .......................... $ 424,425 

Totals--reporting entity ................. 

At June 30, 1998, the State held collateralized 
mortgage obligations primarily in its Pension Trust 
FundS. These securities were purchased to protect 
the State's Pension Trust Funds from pnncipal 
prepayment risk during an environment of declinmg 
mterest rates and to provide incremental yield above 
that available on coi]Jorate securities with similar 
terms. These securities also provide diversification 
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Category Reported Fair 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2 3 Amount Value 

304,927 $ 11,458 $ 7,299,971 $ 7,415,047 
20,250 2,393 8,479,962 8,481,037 

1,573 12,870 2,175,996 2,175,996 
957,878 957,878 

54,578 54,578 
1,919,155 1,919,155 

43,714 43,714 43,714 
688,440 688,440 688,440 
816,140 816,140 816,140 

31,889 31,889 31,889 
37,250 11,201 58,354 59,678 

22,526,077 22,643,552 

1,132,237 1,132,237 

1,432,797 1,432,797 
84,515 84,515 

126,524 126,524 
64,460 64,460 

364,000 $ 1,618,105 25,366,610 25,484,085 

$ 4,077 203,399 193,999 

225,103 225,103 

428,502 419,102 

726 726 
16 16 

$ 4,077 429,244 419,844 

$ 25,795,854 $ 25,903,929 

in the Pension Trust Fund investment portfolios 
and maintain the high quality of government
sponsored instruments in the portfofios. It is 
estimated that these securities will provide future 
cash inflows on a time schedule that @proximately 
matches the outflows associated with Pension Trust 
Fund liabilities. These highly marketable securities 
are rated AAA by the major rating agencies. 
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The asset-backed securities held by the State at 

June 30, 1998, were held by the State's Pension 
Trust Funds. These securities, with an average life 
of one to three years and a legal final matunty of 
five to six years, represented an undivtded 
ownership interest in a trust consisting 9f credit-card 
and automobile loan receivables. Most of these 
securities were purchased in 1995 and 1996 when 
short-term interest rates were approximately 5.00% 
and they could provide incremental yields above 
other securities with similar matunties without 
increasing the risk of the investment portfolios. 
Th~se as~et-backeq securities are rated AAA by the 
maJor ratmg agenctes. 

The fiscal year for the Public Service Authority, 
a discretely presented component unit, ends 
December 31. At December 31, 1997, the Public 
Service Authority had held-to-maturitv investments 
carried at amorttzed cost of $111.59"2 million and 
available-for-sale investments carried at fair market 
value of $314.825 million. The _gross unrealized 
holding gains totaled $12.519 million and gross 
unreahzed holding losses totaled $2 thousand on the 
available-for-sale securities. Included in the Public 
Service Authority's available-for-sale investments, 
carried at fair market value, are nuclear 
decommissioning funds of $50.066 million with 
related unrealizeo holding losses of $10.480 million. 

All of the Authoricy' s investments, with the 
exception of decommissioning funds, are limited to 
a maturity of ten years or less. For the year ended 
December 31, 1997, the Authority had P.roceeds of 
$35.433 million from sales of available-for-sale 
securities and realized $658 thousand in gains and 
$34 thousand in losses in connection wtth these 
sales. The gains and losses were computed as the 
difference oetween the proceeds and specifically 
identified amortized cost per security. 

c. Securities Lending Programs 

By law\ the State's primary government may 
lend securities from its investment portfolios on a 
collateralized basis to third parties, primarily 
financial institutions, with a simultaneous agreement 
to return the collateral for the same securities in the 
future. The State may lend United States 
Government securities corporate bonds, and other 
securities for collateraf in tfie form of cash or other 
securities. The contracts with the State's custodians 
require them to indemnify the State if the borrowers 
fail to return the securities (and if the collateral is 
inadequate to reRlace the securities lent) or fail to 
pay the State for income distributions by the 
securities' issuers while the securities are on loan. 

The weighted average maturity of the State's 
collateral investments generally matched the 
maturity of the securities loans durmg the fiscal _year 
and at June 30, 1998. At June 30, 1998, the State 
had no credit risk exposure to borrowers because the 
amounts the State owed the borrowers exceeded the 
amounts the borrowers owed the State. Either the 
State or the borrower can terminate all securities 
loans on demand. There are no restrictions on the 
amount of the loans that can be made. For the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 1998, the State experienced no 
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losses on its securities lending transactions because 
of borrower defaults. 

The State receives primarily cash as collateral 
for its loaned securities. A small portion of the 
collateral received by the State at June 30, 1998, was 
in the form of securities. The market value of the 
required collateral must meet or exceed l 02% of the 
market value of the securities loaned, providing a 
margin against a decline in the market value of1he 
collateral. During the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1998, the State met the 102% requirement. 
The State cannot pledge or sell collateral securities 
unless the borrower deTaults. The lending agent, on 
behalf of the State, invests cash collateral received. 
Accordingly, at June 30, 1998, these investments of 
cash collateral were recorded as assets on the State's 
Combined Balance Sheet. Corresponding liability 
amounts also have been recorded oecause the State 
must return the cash collateral to the borrower u2on 
expiration of the loan. At June 30, 1998, the fair 
value of the State's securities on loan was 
$1.517 billion and they are uncategorized as to 
custodial credit risk in the table in tlie investments 
subsection (Note 4b) above. For the State's cash 
collateral mvestments, the table includes the 
reported amount, fair value, and custodial credit risk 
by investment type. 

NOTE 5: TAXES RECEIVABLE 

Taxes receivable (expressed in thousands) at 
June 30, 1998, were: 

Special Trust and 
General Revenue Agency 

Fund Funds Funds 

Retail sales and use ................. $ 199,629 $ 67,895 $ 
hdividual incorre ....................... 164,918 
Corporate incorre ..................... 6,239 
lklemployrrent. ......................... 35,219 
Gasoli1e and rrotor vehicle ...... 696 33,159 5,393 
Alcoholic beverages and 

tobacco .................................. 14,979 
Other ......................................... 12,736 18,441 

Gross taxes receivable ....... 399,197 119,495 40,612 
Less: Allowance for uncollect-

ible taxes .............................. 43,689 4,774 199 

Net taxes receivable ............. $ 355,508 $ 114,721 $ 40,413 

A total of $373.698 million in net taxes 
receivable pertaining to the General Fund and 
Sfecial Revenue Funds were current receivables as 
o June 30h1998, and were collected within thirty 
days after t at date. 

NOTE 6: FIXED ASSETS 
ProP.eflY, plant and equipment (expressed m 

thousands) at June 30, 1998, consisted of: 
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Primary Government 

Trust General Higher Com-
Enter- Internal and Fixed Educa- ponent 
prise Service Agency Assets tion Units 

Land and improwments ...... $ 18,095 $ 5,377 $ 582 $ 201 '100 $ 120,232 $ 246,888 
Buildings, improwments, 

and utility plant... .............. 3,739 145,017 4,749 1,077,044 1,918,483 3,534,268 
Machinery, equipment. 

and other ......................... 14,299 125,351 4 1,020,937 798,945 41,462 
Construction in progress ..... 1,634 57,824 164,151 114,300 

Property, plant and 
equipment before 
accumulated 
depreciation ................... 36,133 277,379 5,335 2,356,905 3,001,811 3,936,918 

Less: accumulated 
depreciation ................... 10,329 127,508 688 14,137 1,290,198 

Total property, plant 
and equipment, net ....... $ 25,804 $ 149,871 $ 4,647 $ 2,356,905 $ 2,987,674 $ 2,646,720 

Changes in general fixed assets (expressed in thousands) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, were: 

July 1, 1997 
Balance as 
Previously Adjust-
Reported ments 

Land and irrproverrents ... $ 185,222 $ 
Buildings, irrproverrents 
and utility plant... ............. 1,009,633 (321) 

Machinery, equiprrent, 

and other ........................ 1,030,299 (25,286) 
Construction in progress .. 78,695 

Total General Fixed 
Assets .......................... $ 2,303,849 $ (25,607) 

The "Adjustments" column in the table above 
reports amounts that changed as a result of changes 
in fixed asset 9apita~ization policies. . 

ConstructiOn m progress retirements are 
recorded as additions to other categories of assets. 
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Adjusted 
July 1, 1997 June 30, 1998 

$ 

$ 

Balance Additions Retirements Balance 

185,222 $ 15,888 $ 10 $ 201,100 

1,009,312 70,983 3,251 1,077,044 

1,005,013 70,792 54,868 1,020,937 
78,695 47,428 68,299 57,824 

2,278,242 $ 205,091 $ 126,428 $ 2,356,905 

Outstanding commitments for construction of 
fixed assets ana public domain (infrastructure) assets 
at June 30, 1998, totaled $459.586 million for the 
Qrimary government and $23.458 million for the 
State Ports Authority, a discretely presented 
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component unit. The Public Service Authority, a 
discretely presented component unit reported 
commitments for constructiOn of fixed assets of 
$15.188 million at December 31, 1997. 

The primary government recorded capitalized 
constructiOn penocf interest of $258 thousana during 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998. 

NOTE 7: RETIREMENT PLANS 

Note lc describes the basis of accounting that 
the State's five defined benefit pension plans use to 
report Pension Trust Fund activity. Note 4 specifies 
the method used to value Pension Trust Fund 
investments. 

a. Plan Descriptions 

The South Carolina Retirement Systems (the 
System), a part of the State Budget and Control 
Board, admmisters four defined benefit retirement 

~
ans: the South Carolina Retirement S_ystem 

SCRS), the South Carolina Police Otlicers' 
etirement System (PORS), the Retirement System 

for Members of the General Assembly of the State 
of South Carolina (GARS): and tlie Retirement 
System for Judges and Solicitors of the State of 
South Carolina (JSRS). The System issues a 
publicly available Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Re_port that includes required supplementary 
information for all four plans. The report may be 
obtained by writing to: 

The South Carolina Retirement System 
Fontaine Business Center 
202 Arbor Lake Drive 
Columbia, South Carolina 29223 

SCRS, established b_y Section 9-1-20 of the 
South Carolina Code ot- Laws is a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit v.ension_plan that 
benefits employees of public schools, the Slate, and 
its political suodivisions. Membership is required as 
a condition of employment. Both employers and 
employees must contnbute. Benefits vest after five 
years of service. Vested members who retire at age 
sixtv-five or with thirty.: years of service at any age 
receive an annual benefit, payable monthly; for life. 
The benefit is based on lengtn of service ana average 
final compensation, an annualized average of tfie 
employee's highest twelve consecutive quarters' 
compensation. The annual benefit amount is 1.82% 
of average final compensation times years of service. 
Reduce<f benefits are payable as early as age fifty
five. 

PORS, established by Section 9-11-20 of the 
South Carolina Code of Laws is a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan that 
benefits police officers and fire fighters employed by 
the State or its political subdivisions. Membershjp Is 
required as a condition of employment. ffoth 
employers and employees must contribute. Benefits 
vest after five years of service. Vested members 
who retire with twenty-five years of service receive 
an annual benefit, payable monthly for life. The 
benefit is based on length of service and average 
final compensation. an annualized average of tfie 
employee's highest twelve consecutive quarters' 
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compensation. The annual benefit amount is 2.14% 
of avera_.ge final compensation times years of service. 

GARS, establisfled by Section 9-9-20 of the 
South Carolina Code of Laws is a single-employer 
defined benefit pension plan that benefits members 
of the Soutli Carolina General Assembly. 
Membership is required as a condition of taking 
office as a member of the General Assembly. Botfi 
the members of the General Assembly and the State 
must contribute. Benefits vest after eight years of 
service. Vested members who retire at age sixty or 
at anY. age with thirty years of service receive an 
annual Benefit, payable monthly_. for life. The 
annual benefit amount is 4.8L.% of earnable 
compensation times years of service. Earnable 
compensation is defined as forty dl!)'s' pay at the rate 
currently paid to members of the General Assembly 
plus $12 thousand. 

JSRS, established b_y Section 9-8-20 of the 
South Carolina Code of Laws, is a sin_gle-employer 
defined benefit pension plan that benetrts the judges 
of the State's Supreme Court, Court of Apv.eals, 
circuit courts, family courts, and the State's circuit 
solicitors. Membership is required as a condition of 
taking office. Both judges and the State must 
contribute. Benefits vesl after twelve years of 
service in a position as a judge or solicitor. 
Members may retire ~t age seve11tv with fifteen years 
of s~rvice, at age sixty-fiye with twenty years of 
service, or at any age with twenty-five y.:ears of 
service. Members receive a retirement benefit equal 
to 71 )% of th~ current active salary of the position 
occupied at retirement. 

Information regarding the number of 
participating employers at June 30, 1998, was as 
tallows: 

SCRS PORS GARS JSRS 

State and schooL .................... . ---=1~oo=- --1- --1- --1-
Other. . ............... . 505 259 

Total participating employers ---;:6'""'050""""" ~ --1- --1-

===== 

The plans provide retirement, death, and 
disability oenefits to State employees; public school 
employees; emplovees of counties, municipalities, 
and certain other State political subdivisions. Each 
plan is independent. Assets may not be transferred 
from one plan to another or used for any purpose 
other than to benefit each plan's participants. 

b. Funding Policies 

Article X, Section 16 of the South Carolina 
Constitution req:uires that all State-operated 
retirement plans be funded on a sound actuarial 
basis. Title 9 of the South Carolina Code of Laws 
(as amended) prescribes requirements relatin_g to 
membership, benefits, and employee/employer 
contributions for each plan. Tlie followmg 
paragraphs summarize those requirements. 
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By law, employee contribution requirements for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, were as follows: 

Plan Rate 
SCRS 6% of salary 
PORS 6.5% of salary 
GARS 1 0% of earnable 

compensation 
JSRS 7% of salary 

ActuariallY determined employer contribution 
rates for the four plans, expressed as percentages of 
compensation, for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1998, were as follows: 

Plan Rate 
SCRS 7.70% 
PORS 10.70% 
JSRS 40.69% 
GARS 72.08% 

Under certain conditions, new employers 
entering the plans are allowed up to ten years to 
remit matchmg employer contributions resulting 
from their employees' purchase of prior service 
credits. Interest is assessed annually on the unpaid 
balance. The amounts outstanding at June 30, 1998, 
were $1.231 million for SCRS and $2.600 million 
forPORS. 

June 30, 1998 

% 
Required Contributed 

SCRS-State: 

Primary government... .. $ 149,541 100.00% 

Component units .......... 7,397 100.00% 

PORS-State: 

Primary government... .. $ 29,674 100.00% 

Component units .......... 17 100.00% 

The following table presents the Annual Pension 
Cost, percentage of Annual Pension Cost 
Contributed, anothe Net Pension Obligation for the 
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$ 

$ 

c. Annual Pension Cost 

Annual pension cost (dollars expressed in 
thousands) and related actuanal data for the State's 
single-employer defined benefit pension plans were 
as follows: 

Annual penston cost... 
Employer contributions 

made .... 
Actuarial valuation date ... 
Actuarial cost method .. . 
Amortization method .. . 
Remaining amortization 

period ...... . 
Asset valuation method ... 

Actuarial assumptions: 
Investment rate of return ... 
ProJected salary increases ... 
Assumed inflation rate ... 
Assumed cost-of-living 

adjustments .. 

d. Trend Information 

GARS 

$2,796 

$2,796 
July 1, 1997 

Entry age 
Level percent, open 

27 years 
5 year smoothed 

market 

725% 
2.00% 
4.25% 

2.00% 

JSRS 

$4.991 

$4,991 
July 1. 1997 

Entry age 
Level percent. open 

25 years 
5 year smoothed 

market 

7.25% 
5.25% 
4.25% 

4.25% 

Trend information indicates the progress made 
in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits 
when due. 

For the cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plans in which the State participates, 
the State's required contributions in dollars 
(expressed in thousands) and the percentages of 
those amounts contributed for the three latest 
available years were as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30, 1997 June 30, 1996 

% % 
Required Contributed Required Contributed 

142,607 100.00% $ 140,288 100.00% 
7,104 100.00% 6,924 100.00% 

27,851 100.00% $ 25,651 100.00% 
16 100.00% 15 100.00% 

three latest available years for the State's single
employer defined benefit plans (dollars expressed in 
thousands): 



State of South Carolina 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Fiscal Annual 
Year Pension Percentage Net 

Ended Cost ofAPC Pension 
Plan June 30 (APC) Contributed Obligation 

GARS 1996 $ 1,679 100% $ 
1997 2,492 100% 
1998 2,796 100% 

JSRS 1996 $ 4,244 100% $ 
1997 4,771 100% 
1998 4,991 100% 

Actuarial 
Accrued 

Actuarial Actuarial Liability 
Valuation Value of (AAL) 

Date Assets Entry Age 
Plan July 1 (a) (b) 

GARS 1995 $ 30,528 $ 58,577 
1996 31,702 59,914 
1997 33,627 60,052 

JSRS 1995 $ 57,917 $ 94,420 
1996 62,850 101,020 
1997 68,980 112,185 

f. Receivables and Investments 

The principal components of receivables and 
investments (expressed in thousands) at 

e. Funding Status and Progress 

The followin~ schedule ~dollars expressed in 
thousands) descri es the fun ing progress for the 
State's single-em~loyer defined oenefit plans for the 
three latest availa le years: 

UAALas a 
Percentage 

Unfunded of 

$ 

$ 

AAL Funded Covered Covered 
(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 
(b-a) (alb) (c) ((b-a)lc) 

28,049 52.1% $ 4,704 596.3% 
28,212 52.9% 4,771 591.3% 
26,425 56.0% 4,721 559.7% 

36,503 61.3% $ 9,417 387.6% 
38,170 62.2% 10,109 377.6% 
43,205 61.5% 11,221 385.0% 

June 3Q; 1998, for the four ]Jlans administered by the 
South Larolina Retirement Systems were as follows: 
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SCRS 
Receivables: 
Contributions ............................. $ 75,085 $ 
Employer long-term .................. 1,231 
Accrued interest.. ...................... 188,987 
Unsettled investment sales .... 54,987 
Due from other funds ............... 13,695 

Total receivables ....................... $ 333,985 $ 
Investments: 
United States government 
securities .................................. $ 2,655,274 $ 

United States government 

agencies and government-
insured securities ................... 4,164,739 

Corporate bonds ....................... 5,066,486 
Financial and other ................... 2,472,526 
Invested securities lending 
collateral ................................... 1 ,324,477 

Total investments ...................... $ 15,683,502 $ 

g. National Guard Pension System 

Plan Description 

The National Guard Pension System (NGPS) is 
a single-emP.loyer defined benefit pension .Qlan 
admimstered by the State Adjutant General's Otlice. 
That office does not issue a separate financial report 
for the NGPS. 

The NGPS, established b_y Section 25-1-3210 of 
the South Carolina Code of Laws, provides benefits 
to National Guard members who served in South 
Carolina prior to July I, 1993. National Guard 
members are considered to be Federal government 
employees. The Federal government pays Guard 
members' drill P.ay and summer camp pay. In 
accordance with State law, the State's General Fund 
Rays Guard members only if the Governor activates 
the National Guard for service to the State. 

The pension benefit that the State provides is 
intended only to supplement the retirement benefit 
that Guard members receive from the Federal 
government. Members who retire at age sixty with 
fwenty years of military service incluoing at least 
fifteen years of South Carolina National Guard dutyd 
ten of which immediately precede retirement, an 
who have received an ~honorable discharge, are 
entitled to monthly pension benefits. The pension 
amount is equal to $50 per month for twenty years 
of creditable service witli. an additional $5 per month 
for each additional year of servic~ provided that the 
total_pension shall not exceed $1 Ou per month. 

The following table shows the number of 
employees by type of membership as of 
June JO, 1998. 

80 

PORS 

10,620 
2,600 

21,705 

3,217 

38,142 

272,138 

409,712 
612,227 
316,421 

187,096 

1,797,594 

GARS JSRS 

$ 45 $ 291 

472 960 

71 

$ 517 $ 1,322 

$ 8,560 $ 9,894 

8,321 23,103 
11,952 26,210 
4,384 11 ,461 

6,051 8,634 

$ 39,268 $ 79,302 

Retirees and beneficiaries 
receiving benefits ........................ . 

Terminated employees 
entitled to benefits but not 
yet receiving them ...................... .. 

Active employees .......................... . 

Total participants ........................... . 

Number of participating 
employers .................................... . 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Totals 

86,041 
3,831 

212,124 
54,987 
16,983 

373,966 

2,945,866 

4,605,875 
5,716,875 
2,804,792 

1,526,258 

17,599,666 

NGPS 

1,801 

2,064 
9,604 

13,469 

National Guard members who served in South 
Carolina grior to July 1, 1993, are covered by the 
plan. NGPS is closed to new entrants. 

Receivables and Investments 

The assets of the NGPS are com_prised of Cash 
and Cash Eguivalents and Accounts Receivable. At 
June 30, 191J8, all of the $87 thousand in Accounts 
Receivable consisted of accrued interest. 

Contributions and Reserves 
Article X, Section 16 of the South Carolina 

Constitution requires that all State-operated 
retirement plans be funded on a sound actuarial 
basis. Title 25 of the South Carolina Code of Laws 



State of South Carolina 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

prescribes requirements relating to membership, 
benefits, and employer contributions for the NGPS. 

In accordance with State law, the State Adjutant 
General's Office administers the plan. 
Administrative char~s are financed through 
investment earnings. !he State funded the plan on 
an actuarial basis for the fiscal years ended 
June 30 1994, and June 30, 1995. From 
July 1, i 995, throug_h the present time, however, the 
plan has not been -fully funded in accordance with 
actuarial recommendations. Members do not 
contribute. 

The net assets of the National Guard Pension 
System are required to be reserved for the purQ.ose of 
paying the supplemental retirement benelits to 
eligible members. The balance in the reserve at 
June 30, 1998, was $6.600 million. 

Funding Policy and Annual Pension Cost 
The following table provides information 

concerning funding policies and annual pension 
costs (dolrars expressed in thousands): 

Annual pension cost.. ........... . 
Employer contributiOns made .... . 
Actuarial valuation date ............... . 
Actuarial cost method ........ . 
Amortization method ................... . 
Remaining amortization period .. . 
Asset valuation method .. 
Actuarial assumptions: 

lnwstment rate of return ........... . 
Projected salary increases 
Assumed inflation rate ........... . 
Assumed cost-of-li~ng 

adjustments .................. . 

Actuarial 
Actuarial Value of 
Valuation Assets 

Date (a) 

7/1/94 $ 3,760 
6/30/96 6,259 
6/30/98 8,640 

Trend Information 

NGPS 

$3.087 
$2.499 

June 30. 1998 
Entry age 

Lewl percent. open 
30 years 

Market 

$ 

7.25% 
Not applicable 

4.25% 

Not applicable 

Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 
{AAL) 

Entry Age 
(b) 

26,996 
36,756 
41,478 

$ 

Trend information indicates the progress made 
m accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits 

The following represents the components of the 
net pension obhgation (NPO) for the NGPS, at 
June 30, 1998 (expressed m thousands): 

NGPS 
Actuarially required contribution (ARC) ..... . $ 3,200 
Interest on the NPO .................................... . 329 
Adjustment to the ARC .............................. . (442) 

Annual pension cost... ............................... . 3,087 
Contributions made .................................... . 2,499 

Increase in NPO ......................................... . 588 
NPO beginning of year. .............................. . 4,534 
NPO end of year. ....................................... . $ 5,122 

The State recognized $2.499 million of 
expenditures in the General Fund to pay a portion of 
the 9urr~nt fiscal years' actuaria1ly determined 
contnbutwn. 

The following schedule (dollars expressed in 
thousands) describes the funding progress for the 
NGPS for each of the three most recent actuarial 
valuations: 

UAALas a 
Percentage 

Unfunded of 
AAL Funded Covered Covered 

{UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 
(b-a) (alb) (c) ((b-a)lc) 

23,236 13.9% $ 50,766 45.8% 
30,497 17.0% 48,861 62.4% 
32,838 20.8% 40,333 81.4% 

when due. The following table presents the Annual 
Pension Cost, percentage of Annual Pension Cost 
contributed, and the Net Pension Obligation for the 
latest three fiscal years for the plan (dollars 
expressed in thousands): 
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Annual 
Fiscal Year Pension Percentage Net 

Ended Cost ofAPC Pension 
June 30 (APC) Contributed Obligation 

1996 $ 2,982 83.8% $ 4,064 
1997 2,968 84.2% 4,534 
1998 3,087 81.0% 5,122 

h. Supplemental Benefits Funded by General 
Fund 

The State General Assembly has directed the 
peneral Fund to. pay supplemental (cost-of-living) 
mcreases to retirees and has fully funded tl:le 
required amount annually on a pa_y-as-you-go basis. 
During the fiscal year ended June 30 1998, the 
State's General Fund transferred $5.012' million to 
the. South Carolina ~etirement System and .the 
Pohce Officers' Retirement System for retiree 
supplemental benefits. 

i. Defined Contribution Plan 

Certain State employees may elect to participate 
in the Optional Retirement Program (ORP ), a 
defined contribution flan administered by the South 
Carolina Retiremen S_ystems. The ORP was 
established under Title 9, ChaQter 17

6 
of the South 

Carolina Code of Laws. The RP provides 
retirement and death benefits through the purchase 
of individual fixed or variable annuity contracts 
which are issued to and become the property of, the 
participants. The State assumes no fiability for this 
P.laJ;t other . than for paymert of contributions to 
oesignated msurance compames. 

ORP participation is limited to faculty and 
administrative staff of the State's four-year higher 
education institutions who meet all el.igioility 
requirements for membership in the SCRS. To elect 
participation in the ORP, eligible employees must 
Irrevocably waive SCRS membership within their 
first ninety days of employment. 

Under State law, contributions to the ORP are 
required at the same rates as for the SCRS (see 
Section b, "Funding Policies," above). Employer 
and em_ployee contributions to the ORP were 
$10.4 million and $8.2 milliol},. respectively, for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 199o. 

NOTE 8: POST-EMPLOYMENT 
BENEFITS OTHER THAN 
PENSIONS 

In accordance with the South Carolina Code of 
Laws and the annual Appropriation Act, the State 
provides post-employment health and dental benefits 
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to ~ertain _fqrmer State employees and to certain of 
th~If survivmg dependen~s. Generally, retirees are 
eligible for tlie benefits If they have established at 
least five years of retirement service credit, whereas 
other former employees are eligible only if they have 
established at least twenty years of retirement 
service credit. Benefits become effective when the 
former employee retires under a state retirement 
system. C~rr~11t~y, apptoximately 19,170 retirees 
meet these ehgibihty regmrements. 

Eligible retirees cfioose between two health 
insurance plans underwritten by the State the 
E~onomy Plan and the Standard Pian. In accordance 
with contractual _provisions of the plans, participants 
must meet specitled annual deductible req_uirements. 
Thereafter, the Standard Plan P<lYS 85% of allowable 
claims and the Economy Plan pays 80% of 
allowable claims. The State pays 100% of 
allowable claims, however, after the participant has 
paid the annual out-of-pocket limit prescribed by 
each plan. Both plans disallow claims in excess of 
spe~iped annual and lifetime maximums. In 
auditiOn, State health benefits are reduced if the 
participant receives or qualifies to receive Medicare 
benefits. 

The State also underwrites a dental care plan. 
Con~ractual provisions of the plan specify deductible 
requ!rements as well as annual and lifetime 
maximums. 

To complY. with changes in federal law, certain 
benefit provisions for the Econom_y Plan and the 
Standard Plan chang_ed during the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1998. Elfective January 1, r998, both 
plans' pre-existing conditions limitations were 
weakened to comply with the federal Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountabilicy Act of 
1996, and the annual and lifetime maximums for 
mental health services were removed to comply_ with 
the federal Mental Health Parity Act of 1996. These 
changes in benefit provisions are expected to 
significantly increase future claims costs. The 
expected increase in claims cost is not measurable at 
this time because the increase is expected to result 
prim.arily fro.m changes in behavior of participants 
seekmg services because they are now covered by 
insurance. These changes m behavior cannot be 
predicted with accuracy. 

Both health plans and the dental Rlan are 
financed on a pay-as-you-_go basis. During the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 1998_, the State recognized 
expenses (net of participant contributions) of 
$6~.322 million to provide liealth and dental benefits 
to State participants in post-employment status. 

NOTE 9: DEFERRED COMPENSA
TION PLANS 

Several optional deferred compensation plans 
are available to State employees and employees of 
its political subdivisions. The multiPle-employer 
plans, created under Internal Revenue Code Sections 
21-57, 401(k), and 403(b), are accounted for as 
Agency Funds. Employees may withdraw the 
current value of their contributions when the>-' 
terminate employment. With approval of the State s 
Deferred Compensation Commission, employees 
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may also withdraw the current value of their 
contributions prior to termination of employment if 
they meet certain requirements. These reqUirements 
differ among the three plans. Conmensation 
~eferred Ul).der the Section 401(~) al).d 40J(b) plans 
IS placed m trust for the contnbutmg employees. 
The State has no liability for losses under the plans. 

Under the SectiOn 457 plan, all deferred 
compensation, all property or rights of property 
purchased with amounts d"eferred, and any income 
earned on property purchased remain assets of the 
employers subject to the claims of the employers' 
general creditors, one of whom is the employee 
participant. It is unlikely, howeve1;;_ that the State 
would ever use plan assets to satis~y claims of the 
State's general creditors. State law hmits the State's 
financial liability to particiQants. The State 
however, does have the duty or due care that would 
be required of an ordinary prudent investor. Of the 
$691.397 million assets m the Section 457 plan at 
December 31, 1997, $378.063 million was 
~Imlicable to the State while the remaining 
~Jl3.334 million represented assets of other 
participating jurisdictions. 

On August 20, 1996, the provisions of Internal 
Revenue Code Section 457 were amended by adding 
subsection (g). That subsection P.rovides that new 
plans will not be considered eligiole plans unless all 
assets and income of the plans are lield in trust for 
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the exclusive benefit of the participants and their 
beneficiaries. Existing plans also must comply with 
this requirement 6y January I, 1999. On 
July 24, f998, South Carolina clianged its plan to 
comply. After that date, therefore1 the assets and 
income of South Carolina's plan will no longer be 
subject to the claims of employers' general creditors. 

NOTE lO:LEASES AND INSTALL
MENT PURCHASES 

a. Lease and Installment Purchase 
Commitments 

The State leases land, office facilities 
equipment, and other assets under both capital and 
O[>erating I eases. Some of these leases take the form 
or installment purchases of property. The present 
value of future minimum capital lease and 
installment purchase payments and minimum annual 
lease payments for capital leases and installment 
purchases (expressed in thousands) follow: 

Primary Government 

General 
Long-Term 

Internal Obligations Hgher 
Service Account Education Component 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 Funds Group Funds Units Totals 

1999 $ 1,457 $ 2,776 $ 3,632 $ 5,240 $ 13,105 
2000 1,466 2,659 3,366 4,845 12,336 
2001 1,490 2,042 2,835 4,151 10,518 
2002 1,524 1,448 2,371 3,825 9,168 
2003 1,567 41 2,167 3,818 7,593 

2004 and after 6,294 22,718 29,832 58,844 

Total minimum payments .••.••.••......•• 13,798 8,966 37,089 51,711 111,564 

Less: interest and executory costs ...... 3,895 1,110 14,096 12,415 31.516 
Present value of net minimum 
payments •.......•...•.............................. $ 9,903 $ 7,856 $ 22,993 $ 39,296 $ 80,048 

Assets under capital leases at June 30, 1998, were as follows (expressed in thousands): 
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Primary Government 

Internal 
Service 

Assets Acquired Under Capital Leases Funds 

Land and improvements ............................................ $ 
Buildings, improvements, and utility plant. ................. 14,405 
Machinery, equipment, and other .............................. 
Assets acquired under capital leases before 

accumulated amortization ................................ 14,405 

Less: accumulated amortization .............................. 3,206 

Assets acquired under capital leases, net... ... $ 11,199 

Operatin~ lease jayments duri~ the fiscal year 
ended June 0, 199 , totaled $57. 6 million. At 
June 30, 1998, future minimum payments under 
operating leases (expressed in thousands) were as 
follows: 

Operating Leases 

Fiscal Year Ending Primary Component 
June 30 Government Units Totals 

1999 $ 29.175 $ 118 $ 29.293 
2000 26.764 103 26.867 
2001 19.429 97 19.526 
2002 14.614 87 14.701 
2003 7.937 43 7.980 

2004 and after 13.611 13.611 

Total minimum payments. ... $ 111,530 $ 448 $ 111,978 

b. Facilities Leased to Others 

Non-State parties lease land and facilities under 
operating leases from the State Ports Authority, a 
dtscretely J)resented component unit and from 
Enterprise Funds (the Patriots Point Development 
AuthoritY. and the Other Enterprise Funds). At 
June 30, 1998, the State Ports Authority had leased 
to others certain land and facilities havmg_ a cost of 
aQproximately $262.352 million and $75.978 million 
ol related accumulated depreciation. At 
June 30, 1998, the total cost of land and 
improvements leased to others by the Enterprise 
Funds was $9.269 million, with $746 thousand of 
related accumulated depreciation. Future minimum 
rental payments to be received at June 30, 1998, 
under these operating leases (expressed in 
thousands) were: 
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General 
Long-Term 
Obligations Higher 

Account Education Component 
Group Funds Units Totals 

$ $ 3,296 $ $ 3,296 
35,428 97,473 147,306 

14,975 9,119 207 24,301 

14,975 47,843 97,680 174,903 

2,884 65,935 72,025 

$ 14,975 $ 44,959 $ 31,745 $ 102,878 

Fiscal Year 
Ending Enterprise Component 
June 30 Funds Unit 

1999 $ 325 $ 3,822 
2000 325 2,804 
2001 325 411 
2002 325 411 
2003 322 308 

2004 and after 13,170 1,539 

Total.. ........... $ 14,792 $ 9,295 

NOTE ll:BONDS, NOTES, AND 
CERTIFICATES OF 
PARTICIPATION 
PAYABLE 

a. General Obligation Bonds 

General obligation bonds are backed by the full 
faith, credit, and taxing power of the State. General 
obligation bonds (expressed in thousands) 
outstanding at June 30, 1998, were: 
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General Long-Term Obligations Account Group 
Capital irrprovement bonds, 3.50% to 6.80% .... 
State highway bonds, 3.50% to 6.50% ... 
Subtotal-General Long-Term Obligations 

Account Group ................................................... . 

Higher Education Funds 
State institution bonds, 4.10% to 7.00% .. 

Total--general obligation bonds payable .......... . 

$ 813,712 
137,865 

951,577 

84,465 

$ 1,036,042 

Of the $813.712 million in outstanding capital 
improvement bonds, $18.910 million is capital 
appreciation (deep-discount) bonds. 

At June 30, 1998, $244.243 million of capital 
improvement bonds were authorized but unissued. 

At June 30, 1998 future debt service 
reqJ.Iire!llents (expressed in thousands) for general 
obligatiOn bonds were: 

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals 

1999 $ 93,925 $ 51,252 $ 145,177 

2000 95,230 45,895 141,125 

2001 111,398 40,462 151,860 

2002 90,205 35,255 125,460 

2003 106,872 30,704 137,576 

2004 and after 547,298 123,198 670,496 

Total debt service 
requirements ............ 1,044,928 $ 326,766 $ 1,371,694 

Unarrortized discounts ... (8,886) 
Total principal 
outstanding ................ $ 1,036,042 

The Department of Transportation Special 
Revenue Fund pays the debt service for the State 
highway bonds recorded in the General Long-Term 
05ligatwns Account Group. The General Fund paY.s 
debt service for the other general obligation bonas 
recorded in the General LOng-Term Obli~tions 
Account Group. The Higher Education Plant-Funds 
(Retirement or Indebtedness) pay the debt service 
for general obligation bonds recorded in the Higher 
Education Funds. 

The State's legal debt margin at June 30 1998, 
was $5.535 million for institution bonds. Rather 
than directly limiting the amount of other 
outstanding general obligation debt, State law 
imposes a limitation on annual debt service 
exP.enditures. The legal annual debt service margin 
at June 30 1998 was $48.316 million for highway 
bonds and $93.895 million for general obligation 
bonds excluding institution and highway bonds. 
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b. Limited Obligation Bonds 

Limited obligation bonds are not backed by the 
full faith, credit, and taxing power of the State. 
Limited obligation bonds (expressed in thousands) 
outstanding al: June 30, 1998, were: 

Internal Service Funds 
Lease revenue bonds, 4.00% to 6.75% ...................... $ 35,569 

At June 30, 1998, there were no limited 
obligation bonds authorized but unissued. 

The State issued the lease revenue bonds to 
finance the cost of capital facilities for use b_y certain 
State agencies. The Bonds are secured bY. pledges of 
lease rental payments that the agencies wil pa_y from 
their General Fund appropnations and Special 
Revenue Funds. 

At June 30, 1998 future debt service 
reqJ.Iire!llents (expressed in thousands) for limited 
obligatiOn bonds were: 

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals 

1999 $ 2,170 $ 1,743 $ 3,913 
2000 2,655 1,667 4,322 
2001 2,780 1,533 4,313 
2002 2,900 1,374 4,274 
2003 3,035 1,220 4,255 

2004 and after 22,225 5,263 27,488 
Total debt service 
requirements .............. 35,765 $ 12,800 $ 48,565 

Unarrortized discounts ..... (196) 
Total principal 
outstanding .................. $ 35,569 

The General Services Fund, an Internal Service 
Fund, pays all debt service for the lease revenue 
bonds. 

c. Revenue Bonds, Notes, and Certificates of 
Participation 

Revenue bonds notes and certificates of 
participation are not backed by the full faith, credit, 
and taxing power of the State. Revenue bonds, 
notes, and certificates of participation outstanding 
(expressed in thousands) atJune JO, 1998, were: 
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Primary Government: 
Enterprise Funds 
Housing Authortty bonds, 3.50% to 

9.38% ...... 
8:lucation Assistance Authortty 

bonds, 3.50%to7.13% .... 
Jobs-8:onomc Development 
Authority notes, 9.00% .. 

Other Enterprise notes, 6.<Xl% ... 

Totals--Enterprise Funds ..................... 

Internal Service Funds 
Budget and Control Board notes. 
4.52% to 4.91% .. . 

General Long-Term Obligations 
Account Group 

Deaf and Blind School note. 4.59% ... 

Hgher £ducatlon Funds 
Various bonds and notes, 3.00% to 

10.95% ..... 
Drect note obligatkms, 7.09% to 8.79% ... 
Dert~icates of participation. 6.25% 

to7.35% ... 

Totals--Hgher £ducatlon Funds .......... 

Totals--Primary Government ............ 

Discretely Presented Component ~Its 
R.Jblic Service Authoritty bonds, 

3.80% to 7.00% .... 
State Fl:lrts Authortty bonds. 3.75% to 

6.75% ..... 
Enterprise Developrrent, he .. 

notes, 8.00% to 9.50% ... 

Totals-Discretely Presented 
Component ~Its .............................. 

Totals~-revenue bonds, notes, 
and certificates of participa-

Certificates 
of 

Bonds Notes Participation 

471,181 $ 

363,240 

204 
27 

834,421 231 

2,265 

600 

244.682 57.442 
95.000 

21.466 

244,682 152,442 21,466 

1,079,103 155,538 21,466 

2.099,672 

57,467 

345 

2,157,139 345 

tion payable....................................... S 3,236,242 S 155,883 S 21,466 
==~ 

Certain revenue bonds require the individual 
entewrises to provide sufficient revenue to pay debt 
service and to fund all necessary expenses to run the 
enterprises. Additionally, the State Ports Authority, 
a discretely presented component unit\ is required to 
m!llin~ain an irrevocabl~ letter 9f credit e_gual to the 
pnncipal amount of Its Senes 1994 Bonds and 
accrued interest. The letter of credit had an available 
balance of$27.813 million at June 30, 1998. 

University Medical Associates of the Medical 
University o:fSouth Carolina (UMA) is a component 
unit of the Medical University of South Carohna, an 
institution reported in the Higher Education Funds. 
During January 1995, UMA Issued $55.000 million 
in Direct Note Obligations, Select Auction Variable 
Rate Securities. During December 1997, UMA 
issued an additional $40.000 million in Direct Note 
Obligations, Select Auction Variable Rate 
Securities. The variable rate of interest is set every 
35 davs. UMA entered into thirty-year interest rate 
swap "agreements for these obligatiOns. Based on the 
swaP. agreements, UMA owes mterest calculated at a 
fixeo rate of 8.79% on the $55.000 million issue and 
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7.09% on the $40.000 million issue. If the actual 
floating variable interest rates exceed these rates,.~ the 
countel])arty pays the differential to UMA. Ir the 
actual tloatmg variable rates are less than these rates, 
UMA pays tlie counterparty. Only the net difference 
in interest payments is actually exchanged with the 
countel])arties. The $55.000 million and 
$40.000 million in note principal are not exchanged; 
they are only the basis on which the interest 
payments are calculated. UMA continues to pay 
mterest to the note holders at the variable rate 
provided by the notes. However,., during the term of 
the swap agreements, UMA efrectively pays fixed 
rates on the debt. The debt service requirements to 
maturity included in this note are based on those 
fixed rates. UMA will be exposed to variable rates 
if the counterparties to the swaps default or if the 
swaps are terminated. For the year ended 
June 30, 1998, total interest costs incurred were 
$6.386 million. 

The funds that receive the proceeds of revenue 
bonds, notes, and certificates of participation have 
Qledged revenues for payment ol debt service as 
lollows: 

Primary Government: 
Enterprise Funds 

State Housing Authority bonds: State Housing Authority 
Fund revenues 

Education Assistance Authority bonds: loan repayments 
and United States Commissioner of Education funds 

Internal Service Funds 
Budget and Control Board notes: rental payments for 

vehicles and office space 
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group 

Deaf and Blind School notes: client service revenues 
Higher Education Funds 

Various higher education bonds, notes, and certificates of 
participation: vanous specific higher education revenues 

Discretely Presented Component Units: 
Public Service Authority obligations: Public Service 

Authority Fund revenues 
State Ports Authority bonds: State Ports Authority Fund 

revenues 

At June 30, 1998 future debt service 
requirements (expressed in thousands) for revenue 
bonds, notes, and certificates of participation were: 

Primary Government: 

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals 

1999 $ 71,665 $ 74,825 $ 146,490 

2000 81,852 71,198 153,050 

2001 67.950 67,334 135.284 

2002 65,702 62,630 128,332 

2003 65,493 58,655 124,148 

2004 and after 914,228 559,982 1.474,210 

Total debt service 
requlrem ants ........................ 1,266,890 $ 894,624 $ 2,161,514 

lklarrortized discounts .... (10,183) 

Deferred arrount on refunding ... (600) 

Total principal outstanding ... $ 1,256,107 
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Discretely Presented Component Units: 

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Totals 

1999 $ 58,845 $ 132,107 $ 190,952 
2000 73,532 132,451 205,983 
2001 74,562 128,038 202,600 
2002 51,086 124,187 175,273 
2003 44,230 120,971 165,201 

2004 and after 2,189,932 1,697,446 3,887,378 
Total debt service 
requirements........................ 2,492,187 $ 2,335,200 $ 4,827,387 

lklamortized discounts............... (49,199) 
Deferred amount on refunding... (285,504) 

Total principal outstanding... $ 2,157,484 

The fiscal year for the Public Service Authority 
ends December 31 while the fiscal year for the State 
Ports Authority ends June 30. Both entities are 
discretely f.resented comP.onent units. At 
December 3 , 1997, the carrying value of the Public 
Service Authority's debt was :!>2.373 billion while 
the fair value was approximately $2.780 billion. At 
June 30, 1998, the ca!l}'in_g value of the State Ports 
Authority debt was $58.036 million while the fair 
value was approximately $60.322 million. The fair 
values were estimated using current rates available 
to the entities for similar f>orrowing arrangements 
and on the market rate of comparable traded oebt. 

d. Extraordinary Loss on Early Extinguishment 
of Debt 

The $277 thousand of Extraordinary Loss on the 
Early Extinguishment of Debt in tlie Enterprise 
Funds represented a loss on Housing Authority debt 
extiQguisbments that resulted from calling bonds. 

The $3.438 million of Extraordinary Loss on the 
Early Extinguishment of Debt in tlie Discretely 
Presented Component Units represented a loss on 
State Ports Authority debt extinguishments that 
resulted from an in-substance defeasance using 
existing cash reserves. 

e. Defeased Bonds 

During October 1997, the Citadel, an institution 
reported m the State's Higher Education Funds, 
issued $24.350 million in Kevenue Bonds with an 
average interest rate of 5.05%. Of the 
$24.350 milliont $13.289 million was to advance 
refund all of he Citadel's outstanding revenue 
bonds totali11g $14.150 million with average interest 
rates of 5.72% to 6.86%. The proceeds applicable to 
the advance refunding plus an additional 
$1.502 million in funds on hand were used to 
Qurchase United States government securities. The 
Citadel advance refundea these bonds to reduce its 
debt service and to gain flexibilities provided by the 
new bond resolution. As a result o the refunaing, 
The Citadel's total debt service payments over tlie 
next nineteen years will decrease by ~pproximately 
$3.412 million and The Citadel win obtain an 
economic gain (difference between the present 
values of the old and new debt service payments) of 
$262 thousand. 

During January 1998, Clemson University, an 
institution reported in the State's Higher Education 
Funds, issueo $30.135 million in Kevenue Bonds 
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with an average interest rate of 4.63%. Of the 
$30.135 million, $19.177 million was to advance 
refund $18.105 million in Revenue Bonds with an 
average interest rate of 6.52%. The proceeds 
am~licable to the advance refunding plus an 
aooitional $341 thousand in funds on hand were 
used to purchase United States government 
securities. The University advance relunded the 
bonds to reduce its debt service and to remove itself 
from certain restrictive covenants associated with the 
refunded bonds. As a result of the refunding, the 
University's total debt service payments over the 
next fifteen years will decrease lJy approximately 
$2.025 million and the University will obtain an 
economic gain of $1.622 million. 

Durin_g_ March 1998, Clemson University also 
issued $6~985 million in Revenue Bonds with an 
average interest rate of 4.25%. Of the 
$6.985 million, $6.950 million was to advance 
refund $6.480 million in Revenue Bonds with an 
average interest rate of 6.28%. The proceeds 
aP.P.licable to the advance refunding plus an 
aooitional $225 thousand in funds on hand were 
used to purchase United States government 
securities. The University advance relunded the 
bonds to reduce its debt service and to remove itself 
from certain restrictive covenants associated with the 
refunded bonds. As a result of the refunding, the 
University's total debt service payments over the 
next thirteen years will decrease oy approximately 
$888 thousand and the University will obtain an 
economic gain of $677 thousand. 

During June 1998, the Education Assistance 
Authori!Y;:., an entity reported in the EnterPrise Funds, 
issued $21-~.850 million in Guaranteed Student Loan 
Revenue and Refunding Bonds with an auction 
interest rate varying up to 12.00% to advance refund 
$46.300 million in Student Loan Revenue Bonds 
with an average interest rate of 6.00% and to provide 
financing for student loans. The net proceeds of 
$46.300 million (after payment of $3.500 million for 
a bond premium as well as insurance and other 
issuance costs) were used to purchase United States 
government securities. Tlie advance refunding 
resulted in a difference between the reacguisition 
Qrice and the net c~ing amount of the old debt of 
:~>512 thousand. This difference, reported in the 
accompanying financial statements as a deduction 
from lJonds payable, is being charged to operations 
through the year 2002 usin_g the sfraight-hne basis. 
The Authority completed tlie advance refunding to 
have bonds under the 1993 bond resolution insfead 
of the 1979 bond resolution. The refunding 
increases the Authority's total debt payments over 
the next nineteen years by $11.352 million and 
results in an economic gain of $779 thousand. 

During June 1998, the State Ports Authority, a 
discretely _presented component unit, deposited 
$30.443 minion in an irrevocable escrow account to 
effect an in-substance defeasance to maturity of 
$27.970 million in revenue bonds. 

During its fiscal year ended December 31, 1997 
the Public Service Authoricy, a discretely presented 
component unit, issued $214.555 million in 
refunding revenue bonds with an avera_ge interest 
rate of 5:UO% to advance refund $205.82<fmillion in 
revenue bonds with an average interest rate of 
6.03%. The netproceeds of $2<Jl.015 million (after 
payment of $5.698 million in original issue discount 
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and $7.842 million in issuance costs and reserve 
requirements) plus an additional $13.275 million 
were used to purchase United States government 
securities. The advance refunding resulted in a 
difference between the reac~uisition price and the 
net carrying amount of the old debt of 
$16.990 milhon. This difference, reported in the 
accompanying financial statements as a deduction 
from l:ionds payable is being charged to operations 
through the year 2031 using the effective-interest 
method. The Authority refunded these bonds to 
reduce its total debt service payments over the next 
thirty-four years b_y $22.228 million and to obtain an 
economic gain of $11.885 million. The Authority 
also deposited $25.201 million in an irrevocable 
escrow to effect an in-substance defeasance to 
maturity of $29.035 million in revenue bonds. 
Additionally, the Authority issued $58.933 million 
in commercial paper notes with an estimated 
effective interest rate of 3.75% to refund 
$59.885 million in revenue bonds with an average 
interest rate of 7.34%. The refunding is expected lo 
result in cash flow savings of approximately 
$32.500 million over the next nine years and result 
in an economic gain of approximately 
$12.550 million. 

In additioni during prior years the State defeased 
certain genera obligation and other bonds. For 
those defeasances involving advance refundings, the 
proceeds of the new oonds were placed in 
mevocable trusts to provide for all future debt 
service payments on the old bonds. At 
June 30, 199"8, the following outstanding bonds 
(expressed in thousands) are considered defeased: 

Capital improvement 
bonds ..... . 

Education Assistance 
Authority bonds ... 

Public Service Authonty 
bonds ...... . 

Primary Government 

Enterprise 
Funds 

General 
Long-Term 
Obligations 

Account 
Group 

Higher 
Education Component 

Funds Units 

141.000 $ $ 

46,300 

678,030 

Other.... ...---=...- -.-~=:- 53,433 .---::==:-
Totals........................... 46,300 $ 141,000 $ 53,433 $ 678,030 

Since adequate funds have been placed with a 
trustee to pay fully the principal and interest of these 
bonds, tlie liabilities are not recorded in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

f. Conduit Debt 

State Jaw authorizes issuance of certain bonds 
for which the State assumes no responsibility for 
reP.ayment. These bonds, therefore, do not appear as 
liabilities in the accompal!)'ing financial statements. 

The Jobs-Economic Development AuthoritY., an 
Entei]Jrise Fund, issues industrial revenue bonos to 
develop and benefit business enterprises. The bonds 
are payable solely by revenues of the business 
enterpnse and generally are secured by an 
irrevocable Jetter of credit. At June 30, 1998, the 
original amount of bonds issued prior to 
June 30, 1996, was $757.465 million, and the 

88 

outstanding balance of bonds issued after 
June 30, 1996, was $199.967 million. 

The State Housing Finance and Development 
Authority, an Enterprise Fund, issues certain 
mortgage Joan notes and housing revenue bonds for 
devefopers to construct moderate to low income 
housing projects. The bonds are P.ayable solely from 
housing rental payments receiveo by the developer 
and generally are secured by an irrevocable Jetter of 
credit or bond insurance. At June 30, 1998, the 
outstanding balance of bonds issued was 
$185.354 million. 

The Educational Facilities Authority) reported as 
part of the State's primary government, Issues bonds 
to assist nonprofit educatiOnal institutions that do not 
receive State aP..propriations in the acquisition, 
construction ana financing of facilities for 
educational programs. The bonds are payable solely 
from, and secured by, a lease agreement on the 
facihties between the Authority ano the institution. 
When the bonds have been fulfy paid, the Authority 
conve_ys the title for the facility to the institution. At 
June 30, 1998, the outstanding balance of bonds 
issued was $95.296 million. 

g. Resources Authority Debt 
In prior years, the Resources Authority issued 

bonds and used the proceeds to purchase obligations 
of local governmental entities. The local 
governmental entities used the proceeds received 
from the Authority to fund water and sewer projects. 
Periodic principal and interest payments received 
from the focal governmental entities are used by the 
Authority to refire its own debt. The debt issued by 
the Autliority is not a debt of the State and is not 
recorded in the accompanying Combined Balance 
Sheet. The Authonty's outstanding debt at 
June 30, 1998, was $43.920 million. Effective 
October 1994, the General Assembly enacted 
legislation that prohibits the AuthoritY. from issuing 
bonds except to refund bonds previously issued. 

Beginnmg in fiscal year 1993-94, one local 
governmentaf entity has been unable to meet its 
financial obligation under the terms of a 
$5.025 million revenue bond that was purchased by 
the Authority. In June 1990 when the local 
governmentaf entity issued its debt, it estimated that 
the related sewer project would be completed and 
operational by calendar year 1992. Revenue 
generated by the sewer system is pledged for debt 
retirement. At June 30, 1998, tlle system was 
partially operating and producing some revenue but 
construction had not been completed. The State paid 
a total of $1.307 million in the fiscal years 1993-94 
through 1996-97, and $420 thousand m 1997-98 to 
the AuthoriJ:y to offset the loss of revenues from the 
delinquent local entity. The State has appropriated 
$400 thousand in fiscal _year 1998-99 to -oe used, if 
needed, to offset the foss of revenues from the 
delinquent local entity. 

h. Commercial Paper Notes 

The Public Service Authority, a discretely 
presented component unit, has recorded a 
$241.650 million liability for Commercial Paper 
Notes at its fiscal year ended Decem her 31, 1997. 
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The paper is issued for valid corp_grate purpqses with 
a term not to exceed 270 days. The Authonty has a 
$250.000 million revolving credjt agreement to 
support the issuance of commercial paper. There 
were no borrowings under the agreement for the 
Authority's fiscal year ended Dece111ber 31, 1997. 
Effective January 16, 1998, the Authonty executed a 
new revolving credit agreement for 
$500.000 million. 

i. Subsequent Events 

Since June 30, 1998, the State's primary 
government has issued $75.000 J11illion of general 
obligation bonds and $381.975 milhon of revenue 
bonds. Of the revenue bonds,, $106.975 milliqn 
were issued to refund prior bond Issues. The Pubhc 
Service Authority, a discretely_presented compon~nt 
unit has issued $243.980 mifhon of commercial 
paper notes and $127.700 million in revenue ~onds 
to refund prior bond issues. The Pocys Authopty, a 
discretely P,resented component un!.tJ has Issued 
$125.000 million of revenue bonds. 1ne Connector 
2000 Association Inc., a discretely P,resented 
component unit, has issued $200.178 million of 
revenue bonds. . 

On July 28, 1998, the State's Joint Bond Revi~w 
Committee authorized the Transp,ory:attqn 
Infrastructure Bank to issue UP. to $1.483 oilhon Ill 
revenue and/or general obligation bonds. Issuan,ce 
of general obligation bonds, however, would reqmre 
the additional approval of the Budget and Control 
Board. bl . d 

During 1998 the General Assem y I!lcrease 
the Stafe institution bond limitatiOn to 
$120.000 million. 

NOTE 12: CHANGES IN GENERAL 
LONG-TERM OBLIGA
TIONS 

Changes in general long-term obligations 
(expressed in thousands) for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1998, were: 

State of South Carolina 

Balances Balances 

at July 1, 1997 Increases Decreases at June 30, 1998 
Accounts pay able 

and accrued lia-
bil~ies ... $ 2,416 $ 2,920 $ (2,969) $ 2,367 

htergovernmental 
payables ... 21,850 (13,175) 8,675 

hsurance claims 
incurred but not 
reported .... 3,376 (611) 2,765 

Notes payable ..... 600 600 
General obligation 

bonds payable .... 966,808 86,684 (101,915) 951,577 
Cap~allease and 

installment debt 
obligations pay-
able .... 15,494 417 (8,055) 7,856 

Corrpensated ab-
sences payable .. 166,740 91,040 (81,843) 175,937 

Other iabil~ies ...... 25,424 2,612 (7,871) 20,165 

Totals ................ $ 1,202,108 $ 184,273 $ {216,439) $ 1,169,942 

The Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 
the Insurance Claims Incurred bJ.lt I).<?t. Reporte9, and 
$5.95 million of the Other Liabilities cqns~st of 
claims and judgments payable. The m.aJonty of 
Other Liabilities consisfs of claims and _judgments 
payable and the National Guard Pension Systell} ~et 
Pension Obligation. The increase of $86.684 mtlhon 
for General Obligation Bonds Payable inclu9es 
$830 thousand in accretion of interest on capital 
appreciation (deep-discount) bonds. 

NOTE 13: INTERFUND 
BALANCES 

a. lnterfund Assets and Liabilities Within the 
Primary Government 

Interfund assets and liabilities (expressed in 
thousands) for each individual fund within the 
primary government at June 30, 1998, were: 
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lnterfund lnterfund Advances Advances 
Fund Type/Fund Due From Due To Receivables Payables To From 

General 
General Fund .............................................................. $ 55,028 $ 52,588 $ 4,070 $ 5,352 $ 9,623 $ 12,189 
Less: elirrinations ...................................................... (35,305) (35,305) (2, 100) (2,100) 

Adjusted General Fund ........................................ 19,723 17,283 1,970 3,252 9,623 12,189 

Special Revenue 
Departrrental General Operating Fund ....................... 14,116 54.935 155 552 264 
Education lrrproverrent Act Fund ............................... 4,337 1,994 400 100 
Children's Education 8Jdow rrent Fund ...................... 7 
Repair, Maintenance, and Renovation Fund ............... 678 70 

Waste Managerrent Fund ........................................... 1,239 398 
Departrrent of Transportation Special Revenue 

Fund .......................................................................... 45,587 5,498 1,358 4,867 
Local Governrrent Infrastructure Fund ...................... 4,145 302 200 400 
Accomrodations and Local Option Sales Tax Fund .. 38 68 
Energy Settlerrent Fund .............................................. 13 

Ormibus Crirre Fund ................................................... 42 425 
l'v'edicaid Expansion Funa ........................................... 23 
Other Special Revenue Funds .................................... 1,372 560 61 70 200 
Less: elirrinations ...................................................... (26,847) (26,847) (400) (400) 

Adjusted Special Revenue Funds ...................... 44,707 37,446 1,774 322 5,467 264 

Capital Projects 
Capital A"ojects Fund .................................................. 1,120 4,194 

Less: elirrinations ...................................................... (283) (283) 

Adjusted Capital Projects Fund ......................... 837 3,911 

8Jterprise 
Housing Authority ....................................................... 14 
Education Assistance Authority ................................. 269 
Second Injury Fund ..................................................... 157 
Patriots Point Developrrent Authority .......................... 209 
Other Enterprise Funds .............................................. 489 201 14,416 

Enterprise Funds .................................................. 1,138 201 14,416 

Internal Service 
Insurance Reserve Fund ............................................ 928 17 3,881 30,636 
Health and Disability Insurance Fund .......................... 13,858 111 
State Accident Fund ................................................... 2,049 42 
General Services Fund ............................................... 4,946 620 2,150 17,910 
Central Supplies and Equiprrent Fund ........................ 1,024 79 1,000 
1\fotor Pool Fund .......................................................... 1,709 98 
Pension Adrrinistration Fund ...................................... 37 403 
A"ison Industries Fund ................................................ 1,856 224 
Other Internal Service Funds ...................................... 79 645 2,824 2,825 15,002 14,445 
Less: elirrinations ...................................................... (2,239) (2,239) (4,327) (4,327) (24,181) (24,181) 

Adjusted Internal Service Funds ....................... 24,247 2,378 1,648 21,457 8,174 
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lnterfund lnterfund Advances Advances 
Fund Type/Fund Due From Due To Receivables Payables To From 

Trust and Agency 

Expendable Trust: 
Unerrployrrent Corrpensation Benefits Fund ............. $ 7 

Pension Trust: 
South Carolina Retirerrent System ............................ 13,695 

R:llice Officers' Retirerrent System ........................... 3,217 
General Asserrbly Retirerrent System ...................... 
Judges' and Solicitors' Retirerrent System ................ 71 

Agency Funds: 
Federallnterfund Activity Fund .................................. 5 
Payroll Clearing Fund .................................................. 43,982 
Other Agency Funds ................................................. 5,242 

Less: elirrinations ........................................................ (56,443) 

Adjusted Trust and Agency Funds ................... 9,776 

Higher Education 
Unrestricted Current Funds ........................................ 13,624 
Restricted Current Funds ........................................... 7,078 
Endow rrent and Sirrilar Funds ................................... 
Unexpendea Aant Funds ............................................ 545 
Retirerrent of Indebtedness Funds ............................. 
lnvestrrent in Aant Funds ........................................... 

Agency Funds ............................................................ 96 
Foundations and Institutes .......................................... 

Less: elirrinations ...................................................... (110) 

Adjusted Higher Education Funds ..................... 21,233 

Totals-Primary Government.. ........................ $ 120,523 

b. Inequality of Due from Component Units and 
Due To Primary Government 

Due From Component Units was $3.800 million, 
but there was no corresponding Due To Primar:y 
Government. This situation arose because the Public 
Service Author.ity, a discretely pre~ented component 
umtj reports usmg a fiscal year endmg December 31. 
At une 30, 1998; the Authoricy owed the General 
Fund its semi-annual cash distribution, which is 
based primarily on pperating cash flows and 
mandatory reserve reqmrements. 

c. Inequality of Advances To and Advances From 
Other Funds 

Advances From Other Funds exceed Advances 
To Other Funds by $200 thousand because of an 
interfund loan from the Local Government 
Infrastructure Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, to the 
Division of Public Railways (n!ported as part of 
Other Enterprise Funds). The Division of Public 
Railways reports using a fiscal year ending 
December 31, while the Local Government 

$ 

$ 

167 $ $ $ $ 

14,262 
473 

58 

136 

9,432 5 

85,605 
(56,443) 

53,690 5 

6,992 2,101 2,101 
173 

855 
510 

510 
694 34,237 

31,678 
(110) (2, 101) (2,101) (33,043) (33,043) 

7,055 694 1,704 

120,523 $ 6,122 $ 6,122 $ 36,547 $ 36,747 

Infrastructure Fund's fiscal year ends June 30. The 
Division of Public Railways' $200 thousand 
June 1998 loan 8ayment was not reflected in its 
Advances From ther Funds at December 31, 1997, 
but that paYll!ent reduced the Local Government 
Infrastructure Fund's Advances To Other Funds as 
of June 30, 1998. 

d. Inequality of Transfers From Component 
Units and Transfers To Primary 
Government 

Transfers From Component Units exceed 
Transfers To Primary Government by $142 thousand 
because the Public Service Authoncy, a discretely 
presented component unit, reports using a fiscal year 
ending December 31. The $ 42 thousand difference 
represents Transfers From Component Units to the 
General Fund for the fiscal _year ended 
June 30, 1998 less Transfers To PrimarY 
Government from the Public Service Authority for 
its fiscal year ended December 31, 1997. 
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e. Inequality of Residual Equity Transfers In and 
Out 

Residual EHuity Transfers Out of $680 thousand 
in the Capital Projects Fund were recorded as 
additions to ContriDuted CaP.ital in the Enterprise 
Funds. These balances resulted from transfers of 
Capital Improvement Bond proceeds. 

NOTE 14: RESERVATIONS AND 
DESIGNATIONS OF 
FUND EQUITY 

Reserved components of fund equity represent 
amounts legallY. s~gregated and amounts that cannot 
be appropnateo. IJesignated portions of unreserved 
fund equity reflect tentative plans for future use of 
available financial resources. 

The unreserved component of fund equity is 
computed as total fund equity less reserved amounts. 

General 
Fund balances reserved for: 

Pension and other benefits ............ $ 
External investment pool 
participants ....................................... 

Restricted fund balance .................. 
Federal government grants 
refundable ........................................ 

General fund reserve ....................... 130,380 
Inventories .......................................... 14,741 
hlvances to other funds .................. 9,623 
Appropriations to be carried 
forward .............................................. 131,227 

Endowment and similar funds ....... 
Long-term loans and notes 
receivable ......................................... 772 

Debt requirements ............................ 
School building aid ........................... 202 
Encumbrances .................................. 
Other special purposes ................... 
Total reserved fund 
balances ......................................... $ 286,945 
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Although .t~e total fund balance in the General Fund 
was positive at June 30, 1998, the unreserved 
component was negative because the reserve 
reqmrements exceeded total fund balance. 

a. Primary Government-Reserved Retained 
Earnings 

At June 30;.. 1998, the $240.066 million balance 
of Reserve9 Ketain~d Earnings i!l the primary 
government· s pntel])nse Funds consisted entirely of 
Retamed Eammgs Reserved for Debt Requirements. 
The reservations are required by bond indentures 
and other financing agreements. 

b. Primary Government-Reserved and 
Designated Fund Balances 

At June 30, 1998, the following amounts of fund 
bah~_nce (expressed in thousands) were reserved or 
designated: 

Special Trust and Higher 
Revenue Agency Education 

$ $ 19,140,308 $ 

772,663 
186,027 

45,267 

21,495 
5,467 

1,466 54,334 

161,190 66 
12,219 

16,275 
2,623 
5,897 

$ 204,427 $ 19,914,503 $ 306,367 
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Special 
Revenue 

Unreserved fund baiances 
designated for: 

Future years' expenditures .. .. $ 102,193 
Capital expenditures ............ .. 46,605 
Loan funds .............................. .. 
Scholarships ............................. . 16,530 
Endowment and similar funds ... .. 
Plant funds ............................... . 
Special purposes ...... .. 

Total unreserved, desig-

Capital 
Projects 

$ $ 

64,290 

Higher 
Education 

1,870 

645 

46,775 
86,469 
13,688 

nated fund balances.............. $ 165,328 $ 64,290 $ 149,447 

The following subsections contain further 
descriptive information regarding the above reserved 
and designated components of fund balance. 

Reserved for Pension and Other Benefits 
This account includes $18.363 billion reserved 

for P.ension, group life, and accidental death benefits. 
It also includes $777.527 million of reserves to 
recognize the restricted nature of the fund balances 
in the Unemployment Compensation Benefits Fund. 

Reserved for External Investment Pool 
Participants 
Amounts reserved for external investment pool 

J?articipants consist of public monies deposited with 
the State Treasurer bY. local governmental units and 
other political subdivision of the State. The State 
Treasurer invests these monies on the participants' 
behalf in an investment portfolio. 

Reserves in the Higher Education Funds 

Outside sources may restrict certain Higher 
Education Funds' resources. The financial 
statements m-esent restricted fund balances as 
reserves. These reserves include reserves for 
endowments and other higher education restricted 
funds to be used for special purposes. 

Grant monies received from the United States 
government under certain student loan programs are 
recorded as Reserved for Federal Government 
Grants Refundable. The purpose of this reserve is to 
indicate that these amounts can neither be 
appropriated nor expended and to reflect the State's 
ongoing responsibility to lend the resources only in 
ac9ord_ance with applicable Federal program 
gmdehnes. 

General Fund Reserve 

The South Carolina Constitution requires that 
the State maintain a reserve to _])revent deficits in the 
Budgetary General Fund. The reserve is fully 
funcfed whenever it equals three percent of the 
Budgetary General Fund's revenue (oudgetary basis) 
of die latest completed fiscal year. 

If the State withdraws funds from the reserve to 
cover a year-end deficit, it must replace the funds 
within three years. The Constitution requires that at 

State of South Carolina 

least one percent of the Budgetary General Fund 
revenue (oudgetary basis) of lhe latest completed 
fiscal year, if so much is necessary, be restored each 
year following the deficit until full funding is 
achieved. 

At June 30~ 1997, the Reserve was fully funded 
at $130.380 million. During the fiscal year ended 
June 30 1998~ the Reserve remained at 

1
130.38'0 milhon. At June 30, 1998, the reserve was 
7.270 million below the full-fundin_g_ amount of 
137.650 million. On September 1, 1998, however" 
7.270 million of budgetary surP.lus from 1997-9~ 

was added to the reserve to brmg tts balance to 
$137.650 million. 

Reserved for Inventories 

Governmental Funds reserve a portion of fund 
balance equal to year-end inventory balances to 
indicate that the funds are not available for 
appropriation. 

Reserved for Advances to Other Funds and 
Reserved for Long-Term Loans and Notes 
Receivable 

Advances to Other Funds, Long-Term Loans, 
and Notes Receivable are assets that cfo not represent 
expendable available resources. The Governmental 
Funds, therefore, reserve a corresponding portion of 
fund balance. 

Reserved for Appropriations to be Carried 
Forward 

The General Fund does not use encumbrance 
accountin_g. The Reserve for Appropriations to be 
Carried Forward, however, is used in situations 
where the General Assembly has authorized 
Budgetary General Fund appropnations to be carried 
forward to the next fisca1 year. For additional 
information, see Note 2c. 

Reserved for Endowment and Similar Funds 

This reserve recognizes restrictions Qlaced on 
donated resources. In fhe Fiduciary Fund Types, the 
reserve represents amounts donated to State-owned 
secondary schools and to certain other State 
departments. 

Reserved for Debt Requirements 

The amounts recorded as Reserved for Debt 
Requirements in the Higher Education Funds are 
reservations required by financing agreements and 
bond indentures of discretely presented component 
units of the Medical University of South Carofina. 

Reserved for School Building Aid 

Amounts in the General Fund and in the 
Education Improvement Act Fund~ a Special 
Revenue Fund, are reserved if commttted to State 
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school districts to build school buildings or to retire 
debt on such buildings. Such amounts are not 
available for appropriatiOn. 

Reserved for Encumbrances 

Although not required by State law some 
technical colleges reported in the Higher Education 
Funds use encumbrance accounting. These 
institutions also record a reserve for encumbrances. 

Reserved for Other Special Purposes 

Amounts Reserved for Other Special Pul])oses 
in the Higher Education Unrestricted Current Funds 
consist ol resources that are reserved for various 
operating pufPo~es _spt:cific to certain individual 
h1gher eaucatwn mstltutwns. 

Designated for Future Years' Expenditures 

Amounts Designated for Future Years' 
Expenditures in the Special Revenue Funds relate to 
the Department of Transportation's expenditures for 
future highwaY. repair and maintenance. In the 
Higher education Funds the designations were 
reported by discretely presented component units of 
the Medical University of South Carolina for future 
use. 

Designated for Capital Expenditures 

The amount reported in the Special Revenue 
Funds represents amounts that the Department of 
Transportation designated for replacement of 
structurally deficient bridges ana new road 
construction. State Highway Bonds will finance 
these projects. The State reports the entire fund 
balance in the Capital Projects Fund as Designated 
for Capital Expenditures. 

Designated for Loan Funds 

Amounts Designated for Loan Funds in the 
Higher Education Funds consist of resources which 
are designated for loans to students, faculty, or staff 
of higher education institutions. 

Designated for Scholarships 

Of the amount reported as Designated for 
Scholarships in the Special Revenue Funds, 
$16.375 million is to be used for the Teacher Loan 
Program. The program makes loans to students to 
attract talented inaividuals to teach in areas of 
critical need. For each year the borrower teaches in 
a critical need area, 20% to 33% of the loan is 
canceled. If the borrower does not teach, however, 
the loan must be repaid. The remaining 
$155 thousand reported as Designated for 
Scholarships in the -special Revenue Funds is being 
accumulated to establish endowments at public ana 
private colleges and universities. The purpose of 
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these endowments is to provide environmental 
scholarships. 

Designated for Endowment and Similar Funds 

The Designated for Endowment and Similar 
Funds account includes resources that the State's 
higher education institutions intend to use in a 
manner similar to endowments in future years. 

Designated for Plant Funds 

Amounts Designated for Plant Funds in the 
Higher Education Funds consist of resources 
designated to finance the acquisition, constructioni 
improvement, renewal, or replacement of physica 
properties, and to pay deot service ano retire 
mdebtedness on institutional properties. 

Designated for Special Purposes 

Amounts Designated for Special Purposes in the 
Higher Education Unrestricted Current Funds 
consist of resources that are designated for various 
operating pufPO~es _spt:cific to certain individual 
h1gher eaucatwn mstitutwns. 

NOTE 15: RELATED PARTY 
TRANSACTIONS 

These financial statements exclude certain 
related foundations and other organizations. (See 
also Note la, Scope of Reporting Entity.) 

The most significant of these organizations 
include: the UniversitY. of South Carolina 
Development Foundation; the Universi!)' of South 
Carolina Educational Foundation; the University of 
South Carolina Business Partnership Foundation; the 
South Carolina Universities Research and Education 
Foundation; the South Carolina Research Institute; 
the Greater University of South Carolina Alumm 
Association; the Carolina Piedmont 
Foundation, Inc.; the Lancaster County Educational 
Foundation, Inc.; the Clemson University 
Foundation; the Clemson University Real Estate 
Foundation; the Clemson UniversitY. Research 
Foundation; the Clemson Advancement Foundationi 
the Clemson University Continuing Education ana 
Conference Complex CorQoration· the Health 
Sciences Foundation of the Medicaf University of 
South Carolina; the Coastal EducatiOnal 
Foundatiol}_, Inc., of Coastal Carolina University,; the 
College or Charleston Foundation; the Wintnrop 
University Foundation; the Francis Marion 
University Foundation; the Citadel Development 
Foundation; the Citadel Alumni Association: the 
Citadel's Brigadier Foundation; South Carolina 'State 
University Educational Founaation; the S.T.A.T.E. 
Club of South Carolina State University; Greenville 
Technical Foundation, Inc.; Tri-Cou~ty Technical 
College. Foundation; York T~chnical College 
FoundatiOn, Inc.; the South Carolma Student Loan 
C9rporatio% the. Educational Television En~owment 
ot South Larohna, Inc.; the South Carohna State 
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Muse11m Foundation; EDI Ventures, Inc.; the South 
Carohna Research Authority; and the Carolina 
Capital Investment Corporation. 

Those organizations above that are related to 
higher education report total assets of 
$5"60.483 million. During the fiscal year ended 
June 30~ 1998, the State entered into various 
transactions with these organizations. Approximate 
amounts within the State's Higher EducatiOn Funds 
that. represented transa~tions with these related 
Qarttes mclude: recetvable from foundations
$3. 723 million; donations of cash and other assets 
from foundations-$27.668 millioni expenditures 
(rental of foundation-owneo propei1)::)
$3.650 million; and reimbursements to the State for 
exP-enses/expenditures the State incurred on behalf 
offoundations-$9.331 million. 

The South Carolina Education Assistance 
Authority (EAA} an Enterprise Fund has 
designat~d the §outh Carolina Student ' Loan 
CorporatiOn (SLC) as the entity to administer the 
EAA student loan program. During the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 1998L EAA entered into vanous 
transactions with S C. Awroximate amounts 
within the State's Enterprise Funds that represent 
these transactions include: accounts receivable from 
SLC-$6.129 million; notes receivable from SLC-

1327.340 million; program revenue from SLC-
39.191 million; accounts payable to SLC-
5. 717 million; and reimbursements to SCL for 

administrative costs-$5 .469 million. 
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998 the 

Educ1:!tional TelevisiOn Endowment of South 
Carohna, Inc., disbursed $8.879 million on behalf of 
the State for programs development advertising 
and other costs. fn addition, during the fiscal year 
ended J11ne 30, 1995, the State entered into a capital 
lease wtth the Endowment for a building valued at 
$6.450 million. During the fiscal year ended 
June ;3Q, 1998, the State provided funds to retire the 
remammg $5.525 million capital lease liability. No 
capital lease obligation remams at June 30 1998 
. The Jobs-Economic Development Author
tty (JEDA), an Enterprise Fund, maintains a 
management and admmistrative agreement with 
Carohna Capital Investment Corporation (CCIC). 

State of South Carolina 

D4ring_ the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, JEDA 
patd. ~CIG $249 thousand f<;>r management and 
admmtstrative expenses and mcurred payables to 
CCIC of $41 thousand. 

NOTE 16: SEGMENT INFORMA
TION 

a. Enterprise Funds 

Th_e State groups its Entel]J_rise Funds into the 
followmg segments: the State Housing Finance and 
Development Authority (Housing Authority) the 
South Carolina Education Assistance AuthontY. the 
Job_s-~conomic DeyeloQment AuthoriD:~ ana' the 
Patt~nts C_omQ_ensation Fund. In adattion, the 
P8;tnots Pomt Development Authority, the Second 
Injury J:und, and Other Enterprise Funds are 
grou_ped mto an Other segment. 

The Housing Authority provides low-cost 
housmg to the State's citizens "by tssuing bonds/notes 
and by administ~ring_ Federal contracts and grants. 
J'he South Carohna EducatiOn Assistance Authority 
tssues revenue bonds for the pufP.ose of making 
student. loans. T~e Jobs-Ec.onomic Development 
Authonty acts wtth others m the promotion of 
development; eMJecially in areas of the State with 
great~st neeo. The Authority is supported Qrimaril:X 
Q)' mterest on _proJect loans. The Patients 
Coll}pensation Funcfprovides for the payment of that 
por:tton of any m_edical malpractice claim, settlement 
or judgment agamst a health care provider that is in 
excess of $1 OU thousand per incident or in excess of 
$300. thous~nd in tpe aggre!@te for one year. All 
pro~tqers h~ensed m South -carolina are eligible to 
parttctpate m the _Fund upon remitting the annual 
assessll).ent fees m amounts determmed by the 
goverpmg ~>aa~d of the .Fund. 

Fmanctal mformatton (expressed in thousands) 
for these segments for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1998, follows: 
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Education Jobs-Economic Patients' 
Housing Assistance Development Com pen-
Authority Authority Authority sation Other Totals 

Operating revenues ................................. $ 52,825 $ 44,708 $ 2,921 $ 15,226 $ 29,560 $ 145,240 
Depreciation and amortization 

expense ................................................ 292 140 3 949 1,384 
Operating income (loss) .......................... 12,296 16,041 (252) (7,435) 528 21,178 
Federal revenue ...................................... 22,723 22.723 
Operating transfers in .............................. 125 125 
Extraordinary loss .................................... (277) (277) 
Net income (loss) .................................... 12,019 15,888 (158) (7.435) 870 21,184 
Current capital contributions and 

transfers, net. ........................................ 260 3,149 3,409 
Property, plant, and equipment: 

Additions ............................................ 232 2 3,759 3,993 
Retirements ........................................ (462) (2,196) (2,658) 

Net working capital.. ................................ 116,492 182,866 10,815 15,806 17,334 343,313 
Total asseis ............................................. 654,060 483,813 16,686 20,467 120,072 1,295,098 
Bonds and other long-term liabilities 

payable from operating revenues .......... 452,841 361,970 176 25,249 15,991 856,227 
Total fund equity (deficit) ......................... 161,749 107,443 15,735 (9,435) 43,297 318,789 

b. Discretely Presented Component Units 
Public State 

Service Ports 
Authority Authority Other Totals 

The primary segments among the State's 
Operating re\S!"Iues ... $ 727,824 s 80,965 $ 843 s 809.632 
Depreciation and amortization 

discretely presented comsonent units are the Public expense ... 111,034 15,773 43 126,850 

Service Authority and he State Ports Authority. Operating income (loss) ..... 194,617 18,826 (1,518) 211,925 

The remaining entities are reported within an Other Transfers to primary gowmment.... (7,462) (7.462) 
Extraordinary loss ... (3.438) (3,438) 

segment. Net income (loss) ... 6,261 15,498 (1,522) 20.237 

The Public Service Authori-?J sells electric Current capital contributions and 

P.OWer and wholesale water. he State Ports transfers. net ...... (332) (332) 

Authority develops and maintains State harbors and Property. piant. and eqt>pment: 

se~orts and handles the commerce through these Additions ... 93.760 35.599 23 129.382 
Retirements ... (28,788) (673) (44) (29.505) 

po ¥· · I · f, · ( d · h d ~ Net wor1<ing capital ... (112,921) (93) 460 (112.554) 

manc1a m ormatiOn expresse m t ousan s Total assets ... 3.355,148 381,545 1.820 3,738,513 

for these segments for the fiscal year ende Bonds and other long-term liabilities 

June 30, 1998, follows: payable from operating re~enues ... 2.052,599 56,206 315 2,109,120 
Total ti.Jnd equity .... 797,130 303,751 992 1,101,873 
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The Public Servi~e Authority's sale o( electric 

power to two maJOr customers constitutes a 
concentration of credit risk. For its fiscal year ended 
December 31, 1997 the Authority's Revenue and 
Accounts Receivable (expressed in thousands) 
attributable to those customers were: 

%of Total %of Total 
Operating Accounts Accounts 

Customer Revenue Revenue Receivable Receivable 

Central Electric Power 
Cooperative. Inc ... $ 326,000 45.07% $ 31,766 44.40% 

Alumax of South 
Carolina, Inc..... . 65,000 11.66% 7,167 10.05% 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, two 
customers accounted for approximately 10% and 
12% of the State Ports Authonty's revenues. 

NOTE 17:DEFICIT RETAINED 
EARNINGS 

The Patients' Compensation Fund, reP.orted in 
the Enterprise Funds, had a deficit Retained 
Earnings balance of $9.435 million at June 30, 1998. 
This deficit resulted from losses that the Fund has 
experienced over the last three years. The Fund has 
increased _Rremiums in recent year~ and it increased 
them sigmficantly again in June 19~8. The Fund also 
imposed a deficit assessment on the members during 
Aprill998. 

The Patriots Point Development AuthoritY., 
reported in the Enterprise Funds, had a deficit 
retained earnings balance of $1.700 million at 
June 30, 1998. This deficit resulted primarily from 
an interrupted development project and the related 
bankruptcy proceedings in the past. The interrupted 
project left the Authority witli an unfinished liotel 
and marina. During the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1997, the Authority entered mto a lease 
with a private compal!Y that )Jlans to develop the 
unfinished assets. The Authority expects that 
revenues from this agreement and private 
contributions eventually will eliminate the deficit 
retained earnings. 

At June 30, 1998, the Savannah Lakes Regional 
Loan Fund, a discretely presented comP.onenf unit,_ 
reported a deficit retained earnings balance or 
$589 thousand. This deficit resulted from the 
default of a loan that is related to the Lake Russell 
develoP-_ment project. The Fund hopes to eliminate 
this delicit when a developer is found to take over 
the Lake Russell project. 

NOTE18: INSURANCE 
ACTIVITIES 

a. Insurance Reserve Fund 

The State generally does not purchase 
commercial insurance for the risks of losses for 
property damage, including theft of, damage to, and 
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destruction of assets; automobile liability; tort 
liability; and medical professional liability. Instead, 
State management believes it is more economical to 
manage its risks internally and set aside assets for 
claim settlement in its Insurance Reserve Fund 
(IRF), an Internal Service Fund. The IRF services 
claims for risk of loss to which the State is exposed, 
including the following: property insurance on 
government owned buifdings, the contents of such 
ouildings, equipment, and automobiles; automobile 
liability msurance on government owned vehicles 
and school buses; tort liability insurance for 
government premises and operations; and medical 
professional liability for hospitals. Although the 
State is the predominant participant in the IRF, 
county and municipal governments, school districts 
and special put:Qose _political subdivisions also 
participate. The IRF alfocates the cost of providing 
claims serv!c!ng and claims pay_ment bY. charging 
each participant an actuanally aetermmed 
"premium." 

The IRF reports liabilities when it is P.robable 
that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss 
can be reasonabry estimated. Amounts for allocated 
and unallocated claims adjustment expenditures 
have been included in the calculation of the unraid 
claims liability. The liability is reported ne of 
receivables for salvage1 subrogation, and 
reinsurance. The unpaio claims liability of 
$146.778 million at June 30, 1998, includes a 
provision for claims in the process of review and for 
claims incurred but not reported. The liability for 
claims in the process of review is included in 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities, while the 
liability for Insurance Claims Incurred But Not 
Reported is reported separatelY. on the face of the 
financial statements. The liability for claims 
incurred but not reported is an actuarial estimate 
based on the most current historical claims 
experience of previous P.ayments, changes in number 
of members and participants, inflation, and award 
trends. This process does not necessarily result in an 
exact amoun . Estimates of liabilities for incurred 
claims are continually reviewed and revised as 
changes occur. Revisions are reflected in the current 
year's income. 

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities 
~uring the past two years were as follows (expressed 
m thousands): 

Fiscal 

Year Beginning-of 
Ended Fiscal-Year 

June 30 Liability 

1997 $ 153,040 s 
1996 157,306 

Current-Year 

Claims and Balance at 

Changes in Claim Fiscal 

Estimates Payments Year-End 

51.370 $ (47,104) $ 157,306 
23,970 (34,496) 146,776 

The IRF purchases insurance to cover risks 
where it h~s lip1ited expertise (aircraft insurance and 
ocean manne msurance ). 

The IRF P-urchases reinsurance to limit losses in 
the areas of P.roperty, boiler and machinery 
automobile lia15ility, and medical professional 
liability. Reinsurarce for catastrophic losses in the 
area of property msurance is purchased for losses 
above $2.000 million per location and 
$10.000 million per occurrence. For medical 
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professional liabilicy insurance, reinsurance for 
catastrophic losses is acquired for losses exceeding 
$250 thousand per occurrence. Reinsurance permits 
partial recovery of losses from reinsurers; but the 
IRF as direct msurer of the risks, remains P.rimarily 
liabie. The unpaid claims liabilities were reauced by 
$5.000 million and $4.700 million as of June 30, 
1998, and 1997, respectively, for amounts relatin_g to 
mwatd claims estimated to be recoverable tfom 
remsurers. 

b. Health and Disability Insurance Fund 

The Health and Disability Insurance Fund, an 
Internal Service Fund, was established to provide 
health and dental insurance coverage for eligible 
employees and retirees of State agencies and scllool 
districts and group life and long-term disability 
insurance coverage to eligible active State ana 
public school employees. The State the 
predominant participant, retains the risk of loss. 
Under the health insurapce program, participants 
elect coverage through etther a nealth mamtenance 
organization or the State's self-insured plan. All 
dental, group life, and lon_g-term disability coverage 
is through the State's selt=-insured plan. State funos 
and payroll deductions pay health and dental 
premmms for eligible State and public school 
employees. Agenctes and school districts pay the 
employer share of premiums for retirees, and retirees 
directly pay their own share of premiums. Agencies 
and schoor distr:icts .1~ay the premiums for group life 
and long term dtsabtlicy. 

The Health and Disability Insurance Fund 
establishes claims liabilities when information prior 
to the issuance of the financial statements indicates 
that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at 
the date of the financial statements and the amount 
can be reasonably estimated. Amounts for allocated 
and unallocated claims adjustment expenditures 
have been included in the calculation of the unpaid 
claims liabilicy. The unpaid claims liability of 
$101.644 million at June 30, 1998, includes a 
provision for claims in the process of review and for 
claims incurred but not reported. The liability for 
claims in the process of review is included in 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities, while the 
liability for Insurance Claims Incurred But Not 
Reported is reported separately on the face of the 
financial statements. The liability for claims 
incurred but not reported is estimated actuarially 
based on the most current historical claims 
experience of previous payments changes in number 
of members and participants, inflation, award trends, 
and estimates of health care trend changes (cost, 
utilization, and intensity of services). Thts process 
does not necessarily result in an exact amount. 
Estimates of liabilities for incurred claims are 
continually reviewed and revised as changes occur. 
Revisions are reflected in the current year's income. 

Claim costs for group life and long-term 
disability coverage are actuarially calculated using 
the one-year term cost method; tlie cost of coverage 
is the present value of all benefit payments that will 
be maoe on expected claims incurred during the year 
following the valuation date. Claim liabilities are 
equal to the present value, as of the valuation date, 
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of all future pa}'I!lents to be made for disabilities and 
deaths up to that date. Actuarial assumP.tions 
include an interest rate of 5.50% for 1998 and 1997, 
compounded annually. Of the total claims liability 
reported for the Health and Disability Insurance 
Fund at June 30, 1998, $24.626 million relates to 
group life and long-term disability insurance 
coverage. Claims liaBilities for health and dental 
insurance coverage are not discounted to present 
value. 

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities 
9uring the past two years were as follows (expressed 
m thousands): 

Fiscal 
Year Beginning-of 

Ended Fiscal-Year 
June 30 Liability 

Current-Year 
Claims and 
Changes in 
Estimates 

Claim 
Payments 

Balance at 
Fiscal 

Year-End 

1997 $ 
1998 

88,065 $ 513,584 $ (504,089) $ 97,560 
97,560 553,566 (549,482) 101,644 

c. State Accident Fund 

State law established the State Accident 
Fund (the Fund), an Internal Service Fund, to 
provide workers compensation insurance coverage 
to State entities. Altfiough the State is the Fund's 
predominant participant, counties, municipalities, 
and other political subdivisions of the State may also 
elect to participate. The State assumes the full risk 
for workers' compensation claims. 

The Fund investigates, adjusts, and pays 
workers' compensation claims as awarded by the 
Workers' Compensation Commission for job-related 
accidental ini!Iry, disease, or death to covered 
individuals. The Fund annually bills participating 
entities for estimated premiums based on the entitY.'s 
estimated payroll. After the policy period enos, 
policyholders submit the details of the actual salaries 
paid. The Fund then adjusts the premium using the 
act!lal payro~l data and a rating modifier basea on 
clatms e:lg)enence. 

The fund establishes claims liabilities based on 
estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that have 
been reported but not settled, and of claims that have 
been incurred but not reported. The claims liabilities 
include specific incremental claims agjustment 
expenses l:iut not administrative expenses. Estimated 
amounts of salvage and subrogation and reinsurance 
recoverable, if any, on both settled and unsettled 
claims are deducted from the liability for unpaid 
claims to the extent they can be reasonably 
estimated. Claims liabilities are recomputea 
periodically using a variety of actuarial and 
statistical techniq~es to produce current estimates. 
Adjustments to claims expenditures are charged or 
creoited to expense in the period in which tney are 
made. At June 30; 1998, the claims liabili!Y for the 
Fund was $51.32o million. The liability for claims 
reported but not yet P.aid is included m Accounts 
Payable and Accrued Liabilitie~ while the liability 
for Insurance Claims Incurred nut Not ReP.orted ts 
reported separately on the face of the financial 
statements. Because actual claims costs deP.end on 
such complex factors as inflation, changes in legal 
doctrines, and damage awards, computation of the 
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claims liability does not necessarily result in an 
exact amount. 

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities 
~uring the past two years were as follows (expressed 
m thousands): 

Fiscal Current-Year 
Year Beginning-of 

Ended Fiscal-Year 
June 30 Liability 

1997 $ 
1998 

59,791 $ 
58,443 

Claims and Balance at 
Changes in Claim Fiscal 
Estimates Payments Year-End 

25,563 $ (26,911) $ 58,443 
25,227 (32,344) 51,326 

The Fund has entered into a reinsurance 
agreement to reduce its exposure to catastrophic 
losses on insured events. Losses are covered up to 
$45.000 million per event and $2.000 million per 
individualA with the Fund retaining the risk for the 
first $5.0u0 million of loss. Remsurance permits 
partial recovery of losses from reinsurers; but the 
Fund, as direct insurer of the risks, remains 
primarily liable. There were no amounts estimated 
to be recoverable from reinsurers at June 30, 1998, 
or at June 30, 1997. 

d. Patients' Compensation Fund 

The State's EnterPrise Funds include the South 
Carolina Medical MalPractice Patients' 
Compensation Fund (PCF). The PCF is accounted 
for as an insurance enterprise because it is primarily 
composed of non-governmental entities. 
Accordingly, the PCF follows the guidance ofFASB 
Statement 60, "Accounting ana Reporting by 
Insurance Enterprises." 

State law created the PCF to pay that portion of 
any medical malpractice claim settlement, or 
judgment against a licensed heafth care provider 
whtch exceeds $100 thousand per incioent or 
$300 thousand in the aggregate for one year. In the 
event the PCF incurs a liability exceeding 
$100 thousand to any person under a single 
occurrence, the PCF may not pax more tlian 
$1 00 thousand per year unti1 the clatm has been paid 
in full. However, the Board of Governors of the 
PCF may authorize payments in excess of 
$1 00 thousand per year so as to avoid payment of 
mterest. 

Licensed health care providers include 
physicians and surgeons, directors, officers and 
trustees of hosP,itals, nurses, oral surgeons, dentists, 
pharmacists, cliiropractors, hosP,itals, nursing homes, 
and any similar category of licensed health care 
providers. All providers licensed in South Carolina 
are eligible to participate upon remittance of the 
annual assessment fees. 

The PCF actuarially establishes claims liabilities 
based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that 
have been reported but not settled, and of claims that 
have been incurred but not reported. At 
June 30, 1998, the claims liability for the PCF was 
$25.249 million. The liability for claims re_ported 
but not settled is included in Accrued Liabilities 
while the liability for Insurance Claims Incurred But 
Not Reported is reported separately on the face of 
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the financial statements. The PCF does not incur 
claim adjustment expenses because it _provides only 
excess hability coverage. The lengtfi of time for 
which such costs must be estimated varies 
deP,ending on the coverage involved. Because actual 
claims costs depend on such complex factors as 
111e<F<;:al technology, changes in doctrines of legal 
habthty, and damage awards, the process used in 
computmg claims liabilities does not necessarily 
result in an exact amount. Claims liabilities are 
recqmputed ann~ally using a variety of actuari.al and 
statistical techmques to produce current estimates 
that reflect recent settlements, claims frequency, and 
other economic and social factors. A provision for 
inflation in the calculation of estimated luture claims 
costs is implicit because reliance is placed both on 
actual historical data that reflect P,ast mflation and on 
other factors that are considereo to be appropriate 
modifiers of past experience. Adjustments to claims 
liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the 
periods in which tliey are made. 

e. Public Service Authority-A Discretely 
Presented Component Unit 

The Public Service Authority, a discretely 
presented component unit with a December 31 fiscal 
year-end, is exposed to various risks of loss related 
to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; and errors and omissions. The Authority 
rmrchases commercial insurance to cover these risks. 
Settled claims resulting from these risks have not 
exceeded commercial msurance coverage in any of 
the past three years. Policies are subject to 
deductibles ranging from $1 thousand to 
approximately $850 thousand with the exception of 
named storm losses which car:_ry deductibles up to 
$3.000 million. Also a $1.000 million self-insured 
layer exists between the Authority's primary and 
excess liability policies. 

The Autliority self-insures its risks related to 
auto, dental, and environmental incidents that do not 
arise out of an insured event. Automotive exposure 
is up to $2.000 million per incident. Risk exposure 
for the dental plan is 1imited by plan provisions. 
There have not been any third-party claims for 
environmental damages for 1996 or 1997. 

The State reports all of the Authoricy's risk 
management activities within the Public Service 
Authority's accounts. Claims expenditures and 
liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss 
has occurred and the amount of the loss can be 
reasonably estimated. 

At December 31, 1997 the amount of these 
liabilities was $1.293 miflion. Changes in the 
reported liability in each of the past two years were 
as follows (expressed in thousanos): 

Fiscal Current-Year 
Year Beginning-of 

Ended Fiscal-Year 
December 31 Liability 

1996 
1997 

$ 1,634 $ 
1,649 

Claims and Balance at 
Changes In Claim Fiscal 
Estimates Payments Year-End 

984 $ (969) $ 1,649 
402 (758) 1,293 
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NOTE 19: JOINT VENTURES AND 
JOINT OPERATION 

a. Joint Ventures 

In May 1997, the Public Service Authority (tl).e 
Authority}, a discretely P.resent~d component um.t, 
along w1th two unrelateo pubhcly owned. ele~tpc 
utilities formed a wholesale pow~r marketmg JO~nt 
venture (the Venture). The Authonty has a one-th~rd 
ownership interest., which it re<:oras as .an eqm_ty 
investment. The venture provides services to 1~s 
three member organizations, as well as to cert!lm 
non-member organizations, and allocate~ transaction 
savings and operating ex_penses to Its member 
orgamzations pursuant to a Settlement Agreement. 

During its fiscal year endeq Decemo~r 3J, 1997 t
the Authority made net capital contnbutwns. or 
$3.467 million to the Venture and recogn_1zed 
$3.322 million in reductiors to p_ower costs, P!lrtia!ly 
offset by $2.558 million m egmty losses, pnfll!lrily 
attributable to the Venture· s start-up actlvitl~s. 
Regulatory accounting practices allow the Autho~Ity 
to aecrease or increase power costs for rate-makmg 
P.Urp()ses ra,her t~a.n. record net income or loss from 
the Venture s actiVIties. . . 

In addition the Authority provides certam 
guarantees and ' has pledged. certain collatera~ to 
support the Venture's transactiOns. The Authonty· s 
Board of Directors has approved the use . of 
$10.000 million to suQport tlie .V:enture's tradmg 
activities. Of this $10.000 milhqn, pledge, the 
Authority has provided a $5.000 m1lhon guarantee 
to secure Venture trade obligations and. has pledged 
$2.000 million to secure a letter of cr~d1t agreementt
which the Venture had entered mto with a oank as or 
December 31 1997. 

Interested p_arties may obtain . ~ copy of the 
Venture's financial statements by wntmg to: 

The Energy Authority 
76 South Iaura Street 
Jacksonville, Florida 32202 

In M_ay 1998, a blended comp!-:ment unit qf the 
Medical University of South Car9l.ma entered m~o a 
joint venture witli several physicians. and m~d1cal 
practices by P.urchasing a 35 percent mterest m the 
Lowcountry Medical Group, LL~. The Stat.e's 
Higher Education Funds record the mvestment usmg 
the equity me~hod. At Jun~ 30, 1998 the S~at~'s 
Higher Eaucatwn Funds had mvested $3.675 mill.wn 
in the joint venture. The Lowcountry Medical 
Group LLC recorded no income for the period from 
its inceptio~ in May 1998 through June 30, 1998, 
and consequently did not issue financial statements 
for that penod. 

b. Joint Operation 

The Summer Nucle.ar Statior is a joint qperation 
owned by the Pubhc Service Authonty (th~ 
Authority) a discretely presented component u.mt 
and regulated electric utility, and the South Carohna 
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Electric and Gas CompanyfSCE&G), a non
governmental electric utihty. he Autlio~ity owrs 
an undivided one-third interest in the StatiOn while 
SCE&G owns an undivided two-thirds interest. 
SCE&G is solelY. responsible for the Static;m's 
design, constructiOn, management, . b~.~;dgetmg 
operatiOn maintenance, and decommisswmpg; and 
tlie Authority is obligated to mtY its ownt:rship sJ:!are 
of all costs relating thereto. Tlie Authonty receives 
one-third of the nef electricity generated. 

In accordance with regulatory accounting 
practices, the Authority repqrt~a Property, Plant, ana 
Equipment of $505.000 milhon and expen~es qf 
$45.712 million which represel)t its interest m. tlps 
joint operation. The AuthontY. has financea Its 
mterest in the joint oR_eration with long-term debt. 
The Summer Nuclear -station is not a separate legal 
entity and does not prepare separate financial 
statements. . 

Nuclear fuel costs are being amortized based on 
energy exP.ended, which incluaes a comR_onent fqr 
estimated aisposal costs of spent nuclear li.Iel. Th!s 
amortization is included in fuel expense and IS 
recovered through the Authority's rates. . . 

SCE&G has on-site spent fuel storage capability 
until at least 2009 and expects to be able to expano 
its storage cap~city to accommodate t~~ spent fu~l 
output for the hfe of the plant. In additiOn, th.ere IS 
sutlicient on-site storage capacity over the hfe of 
Summer Nuclear Station to permit storage of the 
entire reactor core in the event that complete 
unloading should become desirable or necessary for 
any reason. . 

The Nuclear Regul~tory Commiss1011 ~Rq has 
published final regUlatiOns on decomm1sswmp.g of 
nuclear facilities. These regulatiol)s requJre a 
licensee of a nuclear .react9r to provide fi)In,Imu.m 
financial assurance of Its ab1hty to decomm~ss~on.Its 
nuclear facilities. A site-specific decommissim;nn~ 
study completed in 1991 estimated the Authonty s 
share of decommissionin_g costs for the Summer 
Nuclear Station as $76.266 million in 1990 dollars. 
The Authority: accrues its share o~ tpe e:stimated 
decommissioning costs over the rema~mp.g hfe of the 
facility. These costs are bemg recovered through the 
Authority's rates. . 

To complY. with the NRC regulatiOns, the 
Authority esfaolished an external trusf fund and has 
been making deposits into this fund sin.ce 
September 1990.. In additio~, . th~ Authonty 
established an mternal decpmrmssw"ung ac<;ount. 
The Authority makes deposits mto this fund m the 
amount necessary to fund the difference benyeen the 
1991 site-specific study and the NRC's Imposed 
minimum re~uirement. Based on current 
decommissioning cost estimates developed by 
SCE&G these tunds, which totaled $50.066 million 
(adjusted to market) at December 31, 1997, along 
with future dep9si~s .into both the external ana 
internal decommisswmng ac<:ounts anp mvestment 
earnings, are exP.ected to provide sufficient fuQds for 
the Authoricy's share of the estimated 
decommissioning costs. . . 

The Price-Anderson Indemmficatwn Act has 
established the maximum )iapility for ..QUblic c)ajms 
arising from any nuclear mc1dent as $~.900 piiiJqn. 
This amount would be covered b_y nuclear hab1hty 
insurance of apP.roximately $200.000 million per 
site, with potential retrospective assessments of up 
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to $79.300 million per licensee for each nuclear 
incident occurring at any reactor in the United States 
{payable at a rate not to exceed $10.000 million per 
mc1dent per y<;:ar). Based on its one-third interest in 
the Summer Nuclear Station, the Authority would be 
responsible for a maximum assessment of 
$26.400 million, not to exceed approximately 
$3.300 million per incident per year. This amount IS 
subject to further increases to reflect (i) inflation,_ 
(ii) mcreases in the licensing for operation or 
additional nuclear reactors! and (iii) any increase in 
the amount of commercial iability insurance that the 
Authori!).' must maintain to comP.fY with the NRC. 

SCE&G and the Authority maintain, with 
American Nuclear Insurers (ANI) and Nuclear 
Electric Insurance Limited (NElL), $500.000 million 
P.rimary ~nd. $1.~00 billion excess property and 
aecontammat10n msurance to cover the costs of 
facilicy cleanup in the event of an accident. In 
addition to the premiums paid on the excess policy, 
SCE&G and the Authority also could be assessed a 
retroactive P.remiumh not to exceed five times the 
annual premium, in t e event of property dam_a~ to 
any nuclear generating facility coverea by NEIL. 
Based on tile current annual premium and the 
Authority's one-third interest, the Authorit):'s 
maximum retroactive premium would be 
$2.500 million. 

The Autl.10rity do~s not purchase insural)ce f9r 
any retroactive premmm assessments, claims m 
excess of stated coverage, or cost increases due to 
the purchase of replacement power. 

NOTE 20: CONTINGENCIES AND 
COMMITMENTS 

a. Litigation 

Among the unresolved lawsuits in which the 
State was mvolved at June 30, 1998, were several 
that challenge the legality of certain taxes. The 
challenged revenues mclude license tax on video 
gaming machines and taxes on bingo operations. 
Another suit challenges the legality of tile State's 
enforcement of a referendum provided by State law, 
which allows each county to ban video poker 
operations. The plaintiffs allege that this resulted in 
revenue losses for video poker operators in counties 
where the referendum was P.assed. State losses in 
these cases could have an aaverse impact on future 
revenues. While the State is uncertain as to the 
ultimate outcome of any of these cases, it is 
vigorously defending eacli lawsuit. In the event of 
an unfavorable outcome for these cases

1 
the ultimate 

liability is not expected to exceed $1LJ-.000 million. 
This estimate does not include the impact on future 
revenues. 

The State may incur a liabilicy for attorneys' 
fees in the suit that challenged the single genoer 
education policy at The Citadel. The issue of 
attorney fees is presently on ap_peal to the United 
States Court of Appears for the Fourth Circuit. 
Another case in which the State may incur a liability 
revolves around a contractual agreement. The case 
relates to the State's decision not to renew for a 
second year a contract to operate a juvenile 
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correctionai facility for the State and not to oversee 
the creation and operation of a number of camp 
Qrograms. In the event of an unfavorable outcome 
lor these cases, the ultimate uninsured liability is not 
expected to exceed $17.000 million. 

The South Carolina Retirement Systems are 
involved in a lawsuit filed by four retirea members. 
The plaintiffs challenge the Systems' treatment of 
unused annual leave in the calculation of 
participants' retirement payments. The State's 
liabilicy in the event of an unfavorable outcome 
would be approximately $340.000 million for 
current retirees and $800.000 million for current 
active members of the South Carolina Retirement 
System and the Police Officers' Retirement System. 
Although the Circuit Court determined that the State 
has been providing retirement benefits in accordance 
with the law, tfie Qlaintiffs have apQealed the 
decision to the South Carolina Supreme Court. The 
State continues to vigorously defend its position. 

The State is involved m a number of cases in 
which the amounts of_potential losses, if any, are not 
presently determinable. These cases include one 
contendmg that the funding of public education in 
South Carolina is inequitaf>le and inadequate. The 
State moved to dismiss this case, and the Circuit 
Court granted that motion. The plaintiffs have 
~ppealeo, and an oral argument was held before the 
Slate Supreme Court. A decision is pending from 
that court. 

The State is involved in other legal proceedings 
pertaining to matters incidental to tfie performance 
of routine governmental operations. Such litigation 
includes cases involving possible violations otState 
and Federal laws. Unfavorable outcomes in these 
matters could result in the State incurring losses. 
However, these losses are not expected to have a 
material, adverse effect on the State's financial 
statements. 

Due to the uncertainty involving the ultimate 
outcome of the previously discussed unresolved 
lawsuit~ no provisiOn for potential liability has been 
made ror them in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

The South Carolina Supreme Court has 
concluded that the statutory government liability cap 
provided in the South Carolina Tort Claims Act does 
not afplx to tort cases filed against the State prior to 
July , 1994. During 1997, the General Assembly 
reenacted the government liability caps and made 
the reenactmen1 applicable to all claims or actions 
that had not been reduced to final judgment. Most 
State agencies now purchase enough liability 
insurance to fully cover cases covered oy the South 
Carolina Tort Claims Act. The State has recorded a 
$950 thousand liabilicy in the Department of 
Transportation Special Revenue Fund and a 
$4.400 million liability in its General Long-Term 
Obligations Account Group at June 30, 1998, for 
iudgments against the State in cases filed prior to 
]uly 1, 1994. 

On November 4, 1998, a class action lawsuit 
was filed against the State. The lawsuit challenges 
the taxatwn of federal retirees' income. 
Management estimates that the State's ultimate 
liability would exceed $170.000 million plus interest 
in the event of an unfavorable outcome. This 
estimate does not include the imP.act on future year 
revenues. Because the case is in the preliminary 
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stages, an estimate of the range of loss is not 
presently detef!llinable. While the State is uncertain 
as to the ultimate outcome of this case it is 
vigorously defending its position. ' 

b. Federal Grants 

. The State receives significant Federal grant and 
entitlement revenJ.IeS .. Compliance audits oT Federal 
Qrpgrams may tdentify disallowed eJgJenditures. 
Disallowances by Federal program officials as a 
result of these audits may become liabilities of the 
State. The State records a liability for pending 
disallowances if settlement is prooable and the 
settlement amount is reasonablY. estimable 
Otherwise, the liability is recorded when the Stat~ 
an.d the Federal g~wernment agree upon 
reimbursement terms. It IS presently not possible for 
ma11agetpent to determme the outcome of _pending 
a~dtt . disallowances. Based on an anafysis oT 
htstoncal data, however, the State believes that any 
such reimbursements relating to the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 1998, or earlier years will not have a 
material impact on the State's financial statements. 

c. Education Assistance Loan Guarantees 

Th~ So~th. Carolina Education Assistance 
Authonty wtthm the State's EnterPrise Funds 
guarantees student loans. At June 30 1998 these 
roans totaled $1.081 billion. The United' States 
Department of Education reinsures 100% of losses 
under these guarantees for loans made prior to 
October 1, 1993band 98% of losses for loans made 
on or after Octo er 1, 1993. If the loan default rate 
exceeds 5.0% qf the loans in repayment status, 
however, the Umted States Department of Education 
decreas~s the reinsurance rate. The State's default 
rate dupng the fiscal year ended June 30, 1998, was 
approximately 1.0%. 

d. Federal Housing and Urban Development 
Loan Guarantee Program 

During 1994, Le[(ington County and Berkeley 
~ounty each ~ntered mto a contract for participi!tion 
m ttte Housmg and Urban Development (HUD) 
Section 108 loan guarantee program. Under this 
program, HUD arranges a P.Ublic offering of notes 
guaranteed by federal funos and lends the note 
proceeds to die program participant. The _participant 
guarantees the roan with HUD Community 
Dt::velopment Block. Grant (CDBG) funds. Because 
netther county recetved CDBG funds directly from 
HUD, t~e State cosigned the HUD contracts and 
P.ledged Its future federal CDBG funds on behalf of 
the counties. Each county lent its loan proceeds to 
fund an ~conomic development project. 

Dunn..g 1997, both of the funded projects 
declared oankruptcy. Because neither project will 
make any further loan payments to its respective 
county, the counties will not receive the funds they 
would have used to make the corresponding loan 
Qayments to HUD. Under the l!Meements therefore 
the State must use its federal CTIBG funds to make 
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the loan payments on behalf of the counties to the 
extent that such funds are available. If the State 
does not receive CDBG funds in future years the 
Federal government is responsible for the payments 
to the nole holders. 

At June 30, 1998, $8.675 million remained 
outstanding on the. Lexington County loan. The 
paytpent terms re9m~e the State to repaY. this amount 
m stx years at 8 Yo mterest. Accordmgly, the State 
)las recorded an Intergovernmental PaY.able liability 
m the G~neral LQI!_g_-Term Obligations GrouP. for the 
amount tt owes HOD on this roan to be paid from 
federal CDBG funds. 

During the f!scal year ended June 30, 1998, the 
State received title to real and personal proper.ty 
from the bankrupt Berkeley County project. The 
State sold the asset~ and used the net_proceeds after 
expenses, along wtth current year tederal CDBG 
funds allocated to the State, to pay off the Berkeley 
County loan. Therefore, die liability for the 
BerkeleY. Coun!Y loan has been removed from the 
General Long-Term Obligations Group. 

e. Purchase Commitments 

At . December 31, 1997, the Public Service 
Authqnty,_ ~discretely presented component unit and 
ele~tnc. utihty company,_ })ad outstanding minimum 
obhgattons under extstmg P.urchase contracts 
totalin_g $4~5 .. 008 million for coal and apQroximately 
$97.0UU m~lhon for power. The term or the power 
contras;t ts 37 years. The Authority has 
commitments for nuclear fuel enrichment and 
fabrication contracts which are contingent upon the 
Qperating life of its nuclear umt. As of 
Decemper 31, 1997 the~e. commitments totaled 
approximately $72.:300 mtlhon over the next eight to 
twelve years. 

f. Transportation Infrastructure Bank Loan 
Commitment 

On April 30 1998, the South Carolina 
TransportatiOn Infrastructure Bank entered into an 
Intergovernmental ag~eement with Horry County to 
fund an mterest:beanng loan for $199.416 minion 
for road and bndge construction projects. As of 
June 30, 1998, the State had not yet advanced any 
funds to Horry County for these projects. 

g. Clean Air Act 

The Public Service Authority, a discretely 
presented component umt and electric utility 
company, . endeavqrs to ens.ure that its facilities 
comply wtth applicable environmental regulations 
and stand~rds. Congress has promulgated 
comprehensive amendments to the Clean Air Act 
incl~ding the addition of a new federal program 
relatmg ~o acid precipitation. Although most oT the 
Clean Atr Act Amendment regJJlations are now final 
am~ costs hl;lve been g_~antilied, other regulatory 
actto.ns pendmg under Tttle I of the Clean Air Act 
relatmg to ozone transport and non-attainment are 
not yef final. Therefore, complete compliance costs 
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cannot yet be determined. The Authority has 
installed continuous emissions momtoring 
equipment at a cost of $5.200 million and estimates 
that It will spend approximately $8.200 million more 
to complete necessary combustion upgrades. 

h. Deregulation of Electric Utilities 

The Public Service AuthoritY., a discretelY. 
presented component unit, currently is a regulateo 
electric utilicy. The electnc industry is increasingly 
competitive oue to regulatory changes and market 
developments. As utilities move to a dereg_ulated 
environment where rates are based on marketlorces, 
there may be costs that cannot be recovered bY. 
charging the market rate. Some proposeo 
deregulation measures allow for recovery of some 
portiOn of these costs, but the ultimate regulatory 
treatment of such costs cannot be predicted. 

Bills have been introduced in the United 
States Congress and the South Carolina General 
Assembly to provide for retail customer choice. The 
outcome of these initiatives and the impact on the 
Authority cannot be determined at this time. 

The Authority is implementing a long-term 
strategic plan designed to position it to compete 
effectively in the changing competitive environment. 
Although the Authority is preparing for a 
deregufated market, the effects of increased 
competition on the Authority's operations and 
financial condition cannot be predicted. 

i. Medical University Proposed Sale/Lease 

In October 1995 the Medical University of 
South Carolina (MUSC) signed a letter of intent 
with Columbia!HCA Healthcare Corporation to 
negotiate for the sale of Medical Center assets and 
the lease of certain real estate. During_ 1996j 
MUSC's Board of Trustees, the State's venera 
Assembly, and the State Budget and Control Board 
approved the terms of the proposed agreement. 

In July 1996, a third party filed a suit in Circuit 
Court questionmg (a) whether the rroposed 
transaction is a constitutionally illegal join venture 
and (b) the reasonableness ofthe compensation to be 
Q_aid to the State. In February 1998, the Circuit 
Court ruled that the State statute authorizjn_g_ MUSC 
to enter into this affiliation was invalid. MUSC has 
~pealed the ruling to the South Carolina Su_preme 
Court, and a decision is expected by the end on998. 

j. Lake Russell Project 

The DeJJartment of Commerce's Division of 
Savannah Valley Development (the SVD) is 
involved in a project to develop a resort and 
retirement commumcy at Lake Russell in Abbeville 
County, South Carolina. At June 30, 1998 the 
developer was in default on its contract with SVD, 
and subcontractors had filed mechanics liens totaling 
$5.222 million against property at the project. In 
September 1998, the subcontractors allowed their 
liens to expire without bringing foreclosure actions. 
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The subcontractors may have allowed their liens to 
expire as part of an agreement with the SVD 
wlierein the subcontractors would be deeded some or 
all of the project property if a new developer cannot 
be found. It IS uncertain if such an agreement exists 
and/or if it can be consummated. Further, it is 
uncertain whether a new developer will be found. 
Accordingly, no estimate of loss to the State can be 
made. 

NOTE 21: PLEDGES OF GIFTS
HIGHER EDUCATION 
FUNDS 

The State's Higher Education Funds exP-ect to 
collect pledges (expressed in thousands) as foilows: 

Fiscal Higher Education Funds 

Year Current 
Ending Unre- Current 
June 30 stricted Restricted Totals 

1999 $ 2,005 $ 33 $ 2,038 

2000 10 12 22 

2001 1 

2002 

2003 

Thereafter 20,319 1,628 21,947 

Totals $ 22,334 $ 1,676 $ 24,010 

It is not practicable to estimate the net realizable 
value of such pledges; accordinglY, they are not 
recorded as pledges receivable at June 30, 1998, in 
the accompanying financial statements. 

NOTE 22: THE YEAR 2000 ISSUE 

The year 2000 issue arises because most 
computer software programs allocate two digits to 
the year date field on the assumption that die first 
two digits will be 19. Without reprogramming, such 
programs will interpret, for example, the year 2000 
as the year 1900. Also, some programs may be 
unable to recog_nize that the year 2000 is a leap year. 

The year --zooo issue may affect electronic 
equipJ11e.nt containing computer chips tha~ have date 
recogmtwn features-such as envuonmental 
systems, elevators, and vehicles-as well as 
computer software .Qrograms. In addition, the 
year 2000 issue atlecfs not only computer 
applications and equipment under the State's direct 
control but also the systems of other entities with 
which the State transacts business. Some of the 
State's systems/equipment affected bY. the year 2000 
issue are critical fo the continued ano uninterrupted 
operations of State government. 

Because of the unprecedented nature of the 
year 2000 issue, its effects and the success of related 
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remediation efforts will not be fully determinable 
until the year 2000 and thereafter. Management 
cannot assure that the State is or will be year 2000 
ready, that the State's remediation efforts will be 
successful in whole or in part, or that parties with 
whom the State does busmess will be year 2000 
ready. 

In 1997, the South Carolina General Assembly 
charged the State's Budget and Control Board with 
the responsibility of coordinating a continuing 
assessment of the _year 2000 issue and its effects on 
the operations of State government. While the 
Budget and Control Boardllas assumed a leadership 
role, individual State agencies are wholly 
responsible for making _programming changes 
needed to address the year 2000 tssue with respecf to 
systems under their control. On a quarterly basis, 
the Budget and Control Board is monitonng the 
need for, and progress of, agency remediation elforts 
and the status of agency-developed contingency 
Qlans to address the possibility that year 2000 
failures might adversely affect systems critical to 
agency operattons. 

State emQloyees have performed substantially all 
of the work fhat has been undertaken to date toward 
addressing the State's year 2000 issue. Although the 
State contracted during the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1998, with external vendors for assistance 
in addressing such issues, there were no substantial 
unpaid commitments associated with these contracts 
as of June 30, 1998. Subsequent to June 30, 1998, 
however, the State entered mto some new vendor 
contracts for year 2000 assistance. 

In September 1998, State agencies were asked to 
submit to the Budget and Control Board certain data 
regarding systems they deemed critical to their 
agency operations. Agencies identified and 
described 514 such systems. Management believes 
that 259 of these systems are critical to conducting 
the State's operations. Some of these systems affect 
most State agencies {"central State government") 
whereas others ( espectally those related to colleges 
and universities) affect only a single agency. 
Systems critical to conducting the State·s operations 
include, but are not necessarily limited to, those that 
would affect the ~tate's abihty to prqvid~ primary 
government servtces, meet Its obhgatwns, and 
generally carry on other essential operatwns. 

At any given time, work to address the 
year 2000 tssue with respect to each system deemed 
mission-critical (i.e. critical to conducting the 
State's operations) fails predominantly within one of 
the following stages of work: 

(i) Awareness stage-Establishing a budget and 
project plan for dealing with the year 2000 
ISSUe. 

(ii) Assessment stage-Identifving the systems 
~nd components for which year 2000 work 
ts needed. 

(iii) Remediation. stage-Making changes to 
systems/eqmpment. 

(iv) Val!dation'!testinf{ stage-Validating and 
testmg cpanges that were made dunng the 
remediatiOn stage. 

The following paragraphs summarize year 2000 
stage-of-work data for the State's mission-critical 
systems/equipment as of June 30, 1998. Systems 
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having similar functions that are in the same sta_ge of 
work have been combined for purposes oC this 
disclosure. 

At June 30, 1998, the State was in the awareness 
stage with respect to mission-critical 
~ysl:ems/eqJ.!iP.ment relating to the following: 
Winthrop University operattons; tracking of student 
transfers among techmcal colleges; appellate case 
management and county docketmg; and attendance 
and grade tracking, Scliool for the Deaf and Blind. 
For these systems/equipment, the assessment, 
remediation1 and validation/testmg stages have not 
yet been adoressed. 

The State had completed the awareness stage 
and was performing work in the assessment stage at 
June 30, 1998, for mission-critical systems and 
equipment relating to the following: offender 
management for JUVeniles and for adult prison 
inma~es; vitl;ll records-b.irths, deaths, adoptions, 
marnages, diVorces; trackmg of health department 
patients and handlers of controlled substances; fire 
marshal, pyrotechnic, and elevator inspections; food 
service establishment health certifications; home 
health care and long-term personal care programs· 
licenses of nurses and engineers; pyrotechmc and 
environmental certification licensesi the Local 
Government Investment Pool; Feoeral surplus 
property; business filings manag_ed by the Secretary 
of State; Medicare billing, -Medtcaid issuance 
P.remium, and child supQ_ort P.ayments managed by 
the Department of 'Social Services; oilling 
Departments of Agriculture and Health and 
Environmental Control; Department of Insurance 
licensing, taxation, and complaints; vocational 
rehabilitation centers; opinions and 
trusts/foundations data managed by the Attorney 
General's Office; union mediation; liuman resources 
and energy monitoring, College of Charleston; 
Qhysical lacilities, Umversity of South Carolina; 
Denmark Technical College operations; accounting, 
HoiJY-Georgetown Tecnnica1 College· student 
registration/billing, Tri-County Techmcai Collegei· 
tefephones, Lowcountry and Trident Technica 
Colleges; and energy management, Lowcountry 
Techmcal College. ror these systems/equipment, 
the remediation and validation/testing stages have 
not yet been addressed. 

At June 30, 1998, the State had completed the 
awareness and assessment stages and was 
performing remediation work for mission-critical 
~ystems and equipment relating to . the following: 
mvestment managementhtax accountmg, tax records 
management, and tel~p one switching for central 
State government; Medicaid-processing,_payments, 
and eligibility· client history for Temporary 
Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) and Fooo 
Stamp programs; unemployment clatms/benefits 
processing and tax collectwn; individual income and 
property taxes; alcoholic beverage and residential 
home fmilders licenses; video poker monitoring~ 
inspection of amusement rides: Department or 
Transportation project and shop ·management; job 
availability information; work SUP.port case trackmg 
111anag~d by. the Department ol Social .S~rvices; 
dtsability cfatms processmg of the Commtsswn for 
the Blino; high school equivalency certification; case 
management for the Attorney General's Office; 
billing and procurement contract managemet;tt of the 
Governor's Office; generatiOn of reapportiOnment 
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data; operations of Francis Marion Universi~; 
9perations other than radiologY. information for tfie 
Medical Universicy of Soutli Carolina; accounting 
for Clemson University, the University of Soutfi 
Carolina, Florence-Darlington Technical College, 
and Ptedmont Techmcal College· student 
information for The Citadel, Central Carolina 
Technical College, Florence-Darlin~on Technical 
College

1 
HoJTY.-Georgetown Technical College, 

Midlanos Technical College, and Piedmont 
Technical College; payroll for all sixteen technical 
colleges; and human resources management for The 
Citadd and all sixteen technical colleges. For these 
systems/equipment, the validation/tesling stage has 
not y_et been addressed. 

The State had completed the awareness, 
assessment, and remediation stages and was 
performing, or had completed, validation/testing 
work at June 30, 1998, for missiOn-critical systems 
and equipment relating to the fol)owing: accounting1 payroll, budgetmg, employee retuement benefits ano 
records, tax receivables/collections, debt 
management, human resource management, and risk 
management for central State government; 
reimoursement payments to local governments; 
driver and vehtcle registration; statewide voter 
registration; State grana jury selection; offender 
management for probation parole, and pardon; 
electronic issuance of food stamp benefits; sales 
taxes;_ business taxpayer registration; work SI.!Pport 
benents managed by the Department of Social 
Services; forest fire management; State Department 
of Education operations, exce_pt for higli school 
equivalency programs; chifd care voucher 
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Q_rocessing and p~ment; client information, 
CommissiOn for the Blind; vocational rehabilitation 
client services; Department of Social Services child 
welfare, except . for cl:lild support payments; 
Department of Socml Servtces day care meals; foster 
care and victim assistance client information 
managed by the Governor's Office; employer-filed 
claims and check reconciliation mformation 
managed by the EmploY.ment Security Commission; 
licenses and/or vtolations relating to hunting 
fishing, boats, motors, and real estate; professional 
and occupational hcenses not hsted above; 
operations, Workers' Compensation Commission; 
transmission of reapportionment data; student 
information, School tor the Deaf and Blind; 
QPerations of Aiken Chesterfield-Marlboro 
GreenvillehOrangeburg-Calhoun, Williamsburg, and 
York Tee nical Colleges; operations, except for 
accounting and physical facilities, of the UniversitY. 
of South Carolina; operations, except telephones, of 
Trident Technical College· operations except 
student registration/billing, of Tri-Counrx technical 
College; accounting for fhe College of Charleston, 
Central Carolina Technical College, Lowcountry 
Technical College, and Midlands Technical Collegei 
paY.roll for Clemson Universicy; P.Urchasing ano 
buogeting_ for The Citadel; student information for 
Clemson~University, the College of Charleston, and 
Lowcountry Techmcal College; human resources 
management for Clemson University and 
Lowcountry Technical College; radiology 
information, Medical University oCSouth Carolina

1
· 

and library management, Midlands Technica 
College. 
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Thomas Sumter 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

A daring brigadier general during the Revolutionary War, Thomas Sumter (1734-1832) 
followed a brilliant military career with an equally distinguished career in public service. 
He was a member of both the South Carolina House and Senate, and he also served in the 
United States House and Senate. 
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National Guard Pension System 
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

Last Six Fiscal Years 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Fiscal Actuarial 
Year Ended Valuation 

June 30 Date 

1993 July 1 , 1992a 

1994 July 1, 1993 

1995 July 1, 1994 

1996 June 30, 1996 

1997 June 30, 1996b 

1998 June 30, 1998b 

Actuarial 
Accrued 

Actuarial Liability 
Valuation (AAL) 
of Assets Entry Age 

(a) (b) 

$ 0 $ 23,701 

2,499 26,200 

3,760 26,996 

6,259 36,756 

6,259 36,756 

8,640 41,478 

UAAL 
As a 

Unfunded Annual Percentage 
AAL Funded Covered of Covered 

(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll 
(b-a) (alb) (c) ((b-a)lc) 

$ 23,701 0.0% $ 50,404 47.0% 

23,701 9.5% 48,385 49.0% 

23,236 13.9% 50,766 45.8% 

30,497 17.0% 48,861 62.4% 

30,497 17.0% 41,264 73.9% 

32,838 20.8% 40,333 81.4% 

a Before July 1, 1993, the National Guard Pension System operated on a pay-as-you-go basis. 

b The State Adjutant General's Office administers the plan. Effective June 30, 1996, the plan's administrator 
implemented a biennial valuation schedule. 

The unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
expressed as a percentage of covered payroll is a 
measure of the significance of the unfunded 
actuarial liability relative to the State's capacity to 
pay it. The funded ratio represents die assets 
expressed as a percentage of tlie actuarial accrued 
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liability. The trend in those two ratios provides 
information about whether the financial strength of 
the plan is imP.roving or deteriorating over time. An 
improvement is indtcated when the funded ratio is 
increasing and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial 
liability to active covered payroll is decreasing. 



National Guard Pension System 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

Last Six Fiscal Years 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

State of South Carolina 

Employer Contributions 
Fiscal Year Annual 

Ended Required Percentage 
June 30 Contribution Contributed 

1993 $ 2,499 46.8% 
1994 2,499 100.0% 
1995 2,499 100.0% 
19968 3,085 81.0% 
19978 3,085 81.0% 
19988 3,200 78.1% 

a The State Adjutant General's Office administers the plan. Effective June 30, 1996, the plan's administrator 
implemented a biennial valuation schedule. 

The schedule of employer contributions 
provides information about the required 
contributions of the State and the extent to which 
those contributions are bein_g made. The schedule 
gives an indication of tile progress made in 

accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when 
due. 

The information P.resented above was 
determined as part of the actuarial valuations. 
Additional information as of the latest actuarial 
valuation follows: 

Actuarial valuation date ................................ . 
Actuarial cost method .................................. . 
Amortization method ................................... . 
Remaining amortization period ...................... . 
Asset valuation method ................................ . 
Actuarial assumptions: 

ln'l.€stment rate of return ............................ . 
Projected salary increases ........................ . 
Assumed inflation rate ............................. . 
Assumed cost-of-living adjustments ........... . 

June 30, 1998 
Entry age 

Le'l.€1 percent, open 
30 years 

Market 

7.25% 
Not applicable 

4.25% 
Not applicable 
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Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

L DeQuincey Newman 
Born on a Darlington County farm, young "1. D." Newman (1911-1985) would become one 
of the most important civil rights leaders in South Carolina. An ordained minister, Newman 
was also instrumental in establishing the NAACP. He retired from the leadership of the 
NAACP in 1969 and returned to ministerial duties as well as numerous volunteer and state 
positions. Later, Newman was elected to the South Carolina Senate, the first black man to 
serve there since Reconstruction. 
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(See Accompanying Independent Auditors' Report) 
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John Laurens 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Colonel John Laurens (1754-1782) was born in America and educated in England. Upon his 
return to America, Laurens was an outspoken patriot and received a colonel's commission. 
He joined George Washington's staff as aide-de-camp in 1777 and also served as a liaison 
officer between French and Patriot forces in 1778. The progressive and audacious Laurens 
was an early advocate of emancipation. 



Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds account for specific 
revenue sou~ces (other ~han for Capital Projects, 
Trust, and Higher 'EducatiOn Funds) that are legally 
restricted for SP.ecified purposes. The State uses the 
following Special Revenue Funds: 

Departmental General Operating Fund. This 
fund accounts for resources that are part of a 
particular State agency's General Fund but are not 
part of the State's General Fund. These resources 
mclJ!de significant amounts of Federal grant 
receipts. 

Education Improvement Act Fund. This fund 
accounts for the special additional one-percent sales 
tax levied to be used exclusively for improvements 
in elementary and secondary education, including 
academic loans for future teachers. 

Children's Education Endowment Fund. This 
fund accounts for low-level radioactive waste fees 
collected from the Barnwell waste facilitY. that are 
not required to be deR._osited to the General Fund or 
remitted to Barnwell County. These funds are to be 
used for public school facilities assistance and 
higher education scholarship grants. 

Repair, Maintenance and Renovation Fund. 
This fund accounts for State bond proceeds and 
other permanent improvement project resources to 
be exp~nded for approved. repatr, maintenance, 
renovation, and alteratiOn proJects. 

Waste Management Fund. This fund accounts 
for fees collecteo from consumers, generators of 
solid and hazardous wastes, and owners and 
operators of solid waste and hazardous waste 
storage facilities. These fees must be used for the 
purposes set forth in the State's Solid Waste Policy 
and Management Act of 1991 and to cover the 
State's costs in governmental actions involving 
uncontrolled hazardous waste sites. 

Department of Transportation Special 
Revenue Fund. This fund accounts for the various 
gasoline taxes fees, fines, and Federal grant 
resources used by the Department of Transportation 
for its general operations. These operations include 
highway maintenance and repair. 

State of South Carolina 

Local Government Infrastructure Fund. This 
fund accounts for grants, loans, and other financial 
assistance to Jocar governments for infrastructure 
Qurposes. It is funded by certain motor fuel taxes, 
Federal funds, and transfers from other funds. 

Accommodations and Local Option Sales 
Tax Fund. This fund accounts for: (I) a special 
additional two-percent sales tax on the gross 
proceeds on the rental of transient accommodations 
and (2) a special one-percent sales tax applicable in 
some focahties within the State. The State allocates 
these revenues to counties and municipalities in 
accordance with State law. 

Energy Settlement Fund. Revenues received 
from court-ordered settlements resulting from oil 
overcharges by various oil companies are accounted 
for in this fund. These resources must be used for 
energy-related programs designed to benefit all 
categories of the State's petroleum product 
consumers. 

Omnibus Crime Fund. This fund accounts for 
court fees remitted to the State by local court 
~stems under the Omnibus Crime Act of 1985. 
These fees must be used for certain _programs 
administered by the Department of Prooation, 
Parole & Pardon Services. 

Medicaid Expansion Fund. Resources of this 
fund include county assessments for indi~nt 
medical care and a tax on licensed hospitals. The 
fund was established to provide Medicaid coverage 
to persons formerly ineligible for such coverage and 
to provide additwnal State matching funds for 
Medicaid. 

Other SP-ecial Revenue Funds. These funds, 
aggregated for reporting purposes, account for 
vanous other revenues which must be used for 
spe~ific purposes. These. include operations. of 
vanous employment services, water recreatiOn, 
agricultural boards, forest renewal programs, certain 
housing programs, and medical and dental 
scholarships. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Battle of Kings Mountain (Robert Windsor Wilson) 
The Battle of Kings Mountain, on October 7, 1780, is perhaps the most famous Revolutionary War 
military engagement in South Carolina. A large force comprised primarily of farmers surrounded the 
British troops. The Americans won a tremendous victory as the British suffered over 1,000 casualties. 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Repair, Department 
Depart- Education Mainte- of 
mental Improve- Children's nance, Waste Transportation 
General ment Education and Manage- Special 

Operating Act Endowment Renovation ment Revenue 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents ............................ $ 174,178 $ 59,472 $ 79,330 $ 20,941 $ 75,378 $ 181,058 
Investments ................................................... 372 
Invested securities lending collateral. ............ 8 9 69 2 63 172 
Receivables, net: 
Accounts ...................................................... 46.416 1,903 902 23 960 5,819 
Taxes ........................................................... 2,364 46,433 14,651 32,835 
Student loans ............................................... 14,813 
Loans and notes .......................................... 256 

Due from Federal government 
and other grantors ....................................... 312,378 146 37,174 

Due from other funds ..................................... 14,116 4,337 678 1,239 45,587 
lnterfund receivables ..................................... 155 400 1,358 
Advances to other funds ................................ 4,867 
Inventories ..................................................... 10,813 46 10,636 
Other assets .................................................. 82 

Total assets ............................................. $ 561,138 $ 127,367 $ 94,952 $ 21,790 $ 77,686 $ 319,506 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued 

liabilities ..................................................... $ 217,464 $ 2,333 $ 2,188 $ 2,645 $ 5,426 $ 72,858 
Tax refunds payable .................................... 2 243 441 
Intergovernmental payables ......................... 66,816 2,918 809 
Due to other funds ....................................... 54,935 1,994 7 70 398 5,498 
lnterfund payables ....................................... 552 100 
Advances from other funds .......................... 264 
Deferred revenues ....................................... 35,395 5,211 127 21,241 
Securities lending collateral. ........................ 8 9 69 2 63 172 
Other liabilities, including retainages 

payable ...................................................... 4 9 1,473 3 24,197 

Total liabilities ...................................... 375,440 12,817 2,264 4,317 6,699 124,407 

Fund balances: 
Reserved for: 

Inventories ................................................. 10,813 46 10,636 
Advances to other funds ............................ 4,867 
Long-term loans and notes 

receivable ................................................ 255 10,958 
School building aid ..................................... 16,275 

Unreserved: 
Designated for future years' 

expenditures ............................................ 102,193 
Designated for capital expenditures ........... 46,605 
Designated for scholarships ....................... 16,375 155 
Undesignated ............................................ 174,630 70,942 92,688 17,473 70,786 30,798 

Total fund balances ............................. 185,698 114,550 92,688 17,473 70,987 195,099 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances ...................................... $ 561,138 $ 127,367 $ 94,952 $ 21,790 $ 77,686 $ 319,506 
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State of South Carolina 

Accommoda-
Local tions and Other 

Government Local Option Energy Omnibus Medicaid Special Elimina-
Infrastructure Sales Tax Settlement Crime Expansion Revenue tions Totals 

$ 197,030 $ 25,820 $ 19,276 $ 2,018 $ 6,410 $ 62,219 $ $ 903,130 
372 

170 17 2 17 529 

2,445 177 45 208 58,898 
16,767 1,671 114,721 

14,813 
163,064 2,497 165,817 

2,040 351,738 
4,145 38 42 1,372 (26,847) 44,707 

200 61 (400) 1,774 
400 200 5,467 

21,495 
82 

$ 369,494 $ 42,625 $ 19,470 $ 2,060 $ 6,457 $ 68,245 $ (27,247) $ 1,683,543 

$ 5,401 $ $ 659 $ 660 $ 72 $ 4,226 $ $ 313,933 
185 1 872 

24,178 631 95,352 
302 68 13 425 23 560 (26,847) 37,446 

70 (400) 322 
264 

1,831 19 63,824 
170 17 2 17 529 

3 25,689 

5,873 26,263 689 1,085 97 5,527 (27,247) 538,231 

21,495 
400 200 5,467 

147,528 2,449 161,190 
16,275 

102,193 
46,605 
16,530 

215,693 16,362 18,781 975 6,360 60,069 775,557 

363,621 16,362 18,781 975 6,360 62,718 1,145,312 

$ 369,494 $ 42,625 $ 19,470 $ 2,060 $ 6,457 $ 68,245 $ (27,247) $ 1,683,543 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Revenues: 
Taxes: 

Depart
mental 

General 
Operating 

Retail sales and use ............................................................ $ 651 
Other................................................................................... 42,642 

Licenses, fees, and permits.................................................. 61,415 
Interest and other investment income................................... 854 
Federal.................................................................................. 2,863,117 
Departmental services.......................................................... 166,151 
Contributions......................................................................... 116,279 
Fines and penalties............................................................... 21,230 
Other. .................................................................................... __ ___;6_2.:....,1;....;5..;;;2;.... 

Total revenues................................................................. 3,334,491 
--'----'---

Expenditures: 
Current: 
General government.. ........................................................ . 
Education ........................................................................... . 
Health and environment.. ................................................... . 
Social services ................................................................... . 
Administration of justice ..................................................... . 
Resources and economic development. ............................. . 
Transportation .................................................................... . 

Capital outlay ....................................................................... . 
Debt service: 

61,034 
120,507 

1,993,817 
547,269 

50,570 
87,751 

Principal retirement............................................................. 484 
Interest and fiscal charges.................................................. 59 

Intergovernmental. ................................................................ ___ 4_1_6.:.;;;,2;...;6..;;.6_ 

Total expenditures .......................................................... _.......;;..3.:.;;;,2:.;..7..;..7~,7...:5..;..7_ 

Revenues over (under) expenditures .................................. ___ 5_6.:....,7_3_4_ 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Proceeds from bonds and notes........................................... 300 
Lease and installment debt proceeds.................................... 99 
Operating transfers in............................................................ 100,043 
Operating transfers out. ........................................................ ___ (:....2_8.:...,9_5_8:...) 

Total other financing sources (uses) ............................. ___ 7_1.:....,4....;.8_4_ 

Revenues and other sources over (under) 
expenditures and other uses ............................................. . 

Fund balances at beginning of year (restated) .................. . 
Increases (decreases) in reserve for inventories ............... . 

128,218 
56,456 

1,024 
Residual equity transfers in ................................................. ------

$ 

Education 
Improve

ment 
Act 

433,972 

6,432 
74 

825 

441,303 

12,086 
18,637 

898 
4,315 
1,555 

390,636 

428,127 

13,176 

164 
(5,689) 

(5,525) 

7,651 
106,899 

Repair, 
Mainte-

Children's nance, 
Education and 

Endowment Renovation 

$ 
56,355 

6,296 

62,652 

3,092 

47,956 

51,048 

11,604 

400 
(13,969) 

(13,569) 

(1,965) 
94,653 

$ 

138 
739 
384 
231 

1,250 
39 

2,781 

18,278 
1,203 
6,591 

21 
3,481 
2,293 

31,867 

(29,086) 

26,161 
(1,248) 

24,913 

(4,173) 
19,771 

1,875 

$ 

Waste 
Manage

ment 

1,769 

24,552 
2,964 

268 

46 
3,551 

33,150 

4 

22,643 

5,898 

28,545 

4,605 

22 
(409) 

(387) 

4,218 
66,748 

21 

Fund balances at end of year ............................................... $ 185,698 $ 114,550 $ 92,688 $ 17,473 $ 70,987 ======= 
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State of South Carolina 

Department 
of Accommoda-

Transportation Local tions and Energy Omni- Other 
Special Government Local Option Settle- bus Medicaid Special Elimina-

Revenue Infrastructure Sales Tax ment Crime Expansion Revenue tions Totals 

$ $ $ 149,202 $ $ $ $ $ $ 585,594 
339,694 18,000 22,188 14,538 493,417 

7,763 93,730 
22,022 15,548 1,230 327 1,932 57.743 

243,757 37,825 3,145,512 
67,404 163 304 25 234,699 

29,749 7,505 906 154,670 
13,107 10,668 46,301 

3,942 43 7 84 70,644 

676,819 101,285 149,202 1,577 13,114 30,020 35,916 4,882,310 

423 23 834 17,749 110,431 
143,439 

29,071 173 2,053,193 
2,095 553,700 

13,402 188 69,196 
40 2,570 92,654 

281,021 281,021 
396,801 396,801 

2,405 118 3,007 
5,526 1 5,586 
9,500 11,999 146,491 126 4,738 1,033,610 

695,253 12,462 146,514 960 13,402 29,071 27,632 4,742,638 

(18,434) 88,823 2,688 617 (288) 949 8,284 139,672 

47,572 47,872 
64 163 

945 11,119 3,187 (62,183) 79,858 
(5,836) (363) (1 ,079) (57) (4,620) 62,183 (45) 

42,681 10,756 {1,079) (57) {1,369) 127,848 

24,247 99,579 1,609 560 (288) 949 6,915 267,520 
172,453 264,042 14,753 18,221 1,263 5,411 55,803 876,473 

(1 ,601) (556) 
1,875 

$ 195,099 $ 363,621 $ 16,362 $ 18,781 $ 975 $ 6,360 $ 62,718 $ $ 1,145,312 
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Wade Hampton 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

A native of Charleston, Wade Hampton (1818-1902) had a long and distinguished career. 
He was a member of the General Assembly from 1852-1861 until he resigned to accept a 
colonel's commission in the Confederate Army. He eventually rose to the rank of a 
lieutenant general by the war's end. Following his military service, Hampton became 
Governor of South Carolina and a United States Senator. 



Enterprise Funds 

Enterprise Funds account for business-like State 
activities that J:?rovide goods and/or services to the 
public. These funds are financed primarily through 
user charges. The State's primary government 
maintains the following Enterprise Funds: 

Housing Authority. The State Housing Finance 
and Development Authority facilitates medium
income and low-income housing opportunities b>-' 
providing reasonable financing fo the States 
citizens. To provide such financing, the Authority 
issues bonds and notes and admmisters Federal 
gr~nts .and contracts. . The Authority is supported 
pnmanly by mortgage mterest. 

Education Assistance Authority. The South 
Carolina Education Assistance Authority issues 
bonds for the purpose of making loans to students of 
the State to enable them to attend higher education 
institutions. Resources include interest charges,_ 
subsidies from the United States Department or 
Education, and investment earnings. 

Jobs-Economic Development Authority. The 
Jobs-Economic Development Authority acts in 
conjunction with other organizations in the 
promotion and advancement of industrial 
commercial, agricultural and recreational 
development in the State. The Authority's emphasis 

State of South Carolina 

is on those areas of the State with the greatest 
economic need and to those pro~cts providing the 
greatest economic benefit. The Authority is 
supported primarily by interest charges on project 
loans. 

Patients' Compensation Fund. This fund 
provides medical malpractice insurance to any 
Qublic or _private health care P.rovider within the 
State. . Tfiis fund is reporteo as an insurance 
enterpnse. 

Second Injury Fund. This fund serves as a 
claims processor for insurance carriers, self
insurers, and the State Accident Fund. The fund 
processes claims of employees with existing 
permanent physical impairment who are further 
mjured in the course of their subsequent 
employment. 

Patriots Point Development Authority. The 
Patriots Point Development Authority is responsible 
for developing and operating the Patriots Point area 
near Charleston, including a naval museum. The 
Authority is supported by user fees. 

Other Enterprise Funds. Other enterprise 
activities of the State include: the Savannah ValleY
Development and the Public Railways Divisions of 
the South Carolina Department of Commerce, and 
the Canteens Fund. 

The Angel of Marye's Heights 
Sergeant Richard Kirkland (1843-
1863) of the Second South Carolina 
Regiment became one of the most 
revered soldiers of the Civil War for 
his actions at the Battle of 
Fredericksburg on December 14, 
1862. Thousands of Union soldiers 
lay dead or wounded below Marye's 
Heights as their cries for water went 
unanswered. In a selfless act of 
courage, Kirkland went out into the 
fierce battlefield time after time 
taking the soldiers water. For his 
efforts he was termed the "Angel of 
Marye's Heights" and was awarded 
the Confederate Medal of Honor by 
the Sons of Confederate Veterans. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ................................................. $ 
Investments ........................................................................ . 
Invested securities lending collateral. ................................. . 

Receivables. net: 
Accounts ......................................................................... . 
Student loans ................................................................... . 
Loans and notes ............................................................... . 

Due from Federal government and other grantors .............. . 
Inventories .......................................................................... . 
Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents .............................................. . 
Loans receivable .............................................................. . 
Other ................................................................................ . 

Housing 
Authority 

2,805 

173 

402 
1,302 

134,569 
10,711 
6,000 

Other current assets ............................................................ ------

155,962 Total current assets ......................................................... ___ ,;,;,;,.:,.;....;...._ 

Long-term assets: 
Investments ........................................................................ . 

Receivables, net: 
Student loans ................................................................... . 
Loans and notes .............................................................. . 5,141 

Servicing rights, net. ........................................................... . 

Restricted assets: 
Investments ...................................................................... . 45,131 
Loans receivable .............................................................. . 446,154 
Other. ............................................................................... . 921 

Other long-term assets ....................................................... . 

Deferred charges ................................................................. ------

497,347 Total long-term assets ..................................................... ___ ,;,;,;,.:,.;__ 

Property, plant, and equipment: 
Land and improvements ..................................................... . 
Buildings and improvements ............................................... . 
Machinery, equipment, and other........................................ 1 ,055 
Less: accumulated depreciation ......................................... ----~<.::.30=-4:..!..) 

Total property, plant, and equipment, net. ....................... ----~75=-1:.... 

Total assets ................................................................ ='$'===6=54=·=06=0= 
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$ 

$ 

EdLication 
Assistance 
Authority 

104,831 

25 

7,937 
4 

63,000 
1,614 

19,650 

205 

197,266 

6,758 

13 
264,340 

14,171 

1,265 

286,547 

483,813 

Jobs
Economic 

Development 
Authority 

$ 11,490 

71 

29 

11,590 

867 

3,929 

300 

5,096 

$ 16,686 

Patients' 
Compensation 

$ 

$ 

20,050 

17 

392 

20,459 

31 
(23) 

8 

20,467 



$ 

$ 

Second 
Injury 

1,653 

47 

50,991 

675 

53,366 

216 
(131) 

85 

53,451 

Patriots 
Point 

Development 
Authority 

$ 1,313 

638 

328 

142 

9 

2,430 

5,845 
1,629 
7,957 

(6,363) 

9,068 

$ 11,498 

Other 
Enterprise 

$ 15,665 
74 
8 

2,174 

1,553 

2,832 

16 

22,322 

818 

13,816 
1,955 

320 

16,909 

12,250 
2,110 
5,040 

(3,508) 

15,892 

$ 55,123 

$ 

$ 

State of South Carolina 

Totals 

157,807 
74 
97 

11,385 
4 

63,431 
2,916 
1,881 

208,184 
10,711 
6,675 

230 

463,395 

8,443 

13 
287,226 

1,955 

59,302 
446,154 

921 
620 

1,265 

805,899 

18,095 
3,739 

14,299 
(10,329) 

25,804 

1,295,098 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued) 
June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities........................... $ 
Due to other funds ............................................................ . 
lnterfund payables ............................................................ . 
Deferred revenues ............................................................ . 
Deposits ........................................................................... . 
Securities lending collateral. ............................................. . 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets .......................... . 
Notes payable .................................................................. . 
Revenue bonds payable ................................................... . 
Compensated absences payable ...................................... . 

Housing 
Authority 

491 
14 

20,264 

18,340 
361 

Other current liabilities, including retainages payable ........ ------

39,470 Total current liabilities ...................................................... ___ ......;;..;;..:..;..;..;;..... 

Long-term liabilities: 
Accrued liabilities .............................................................. . 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported ....................... . 
Advances from other funds ............................................... . 
Notes payable .................................................................. . 
Revenue bonds payable .................................................... ___ ...:..45:.:2:.:.,8.:...4;...;1_ 

Total long-term liabilities .................................................. ___ ...:..45:.:2:.:.,8.:...4;...;1_ 

Total liabilities ............................................................. ___ 4...:..9:.:2:.:.,3.:...1;...;1_ 

Fund Equity (Deficit): 
Contributed capital. ............................................................ . 
Retained earnings (deficit): 
Reserved for debt requirements........................................ 152,041 
Unreserved ........................................................................ ____ 9;..:.•.;_70:.:8;.... 

Total fund equity (deficit) ............................................ ___ ...:..1.:..61.:..:•.:...74.:..:9;.... 

Total liabilities and fund equity ................................ =$====6=54::•::06=0= 
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$ 

$ 

Education 
Assistance 
Authority 

12,776 
269 

25 

1,270 
60 

14,400 

361,970 

361,970 

376,370 

86,035 
21,403 

107,443 

483,813 

Jobs
Economic 

Development 
Authority 

$ 132 

598 

28 

17 

775 

176 

176 

951 

260 

15,475 

15,735 

$ 16,686 

Patients' 
Compensation 

$ 

$ 

558 

4,050 

17 

28 

4,653 

15,998 
9,251 

25,249 

29,902 

(9,435) 

(9,435) 

20,467 



$ 

$ 

Second 
Injury 

1,577 
157 

47 
51,512 

74 

53,367 

53,367 

84 

84 

53,451 

Patriots 
Point 

Development 
Authority 

$ 271 
209 

748 

161 

1,389 

1,389 

11,809 

(1 ,700) 

10,109 

$ 11,498 

Other 
Enterprise 

$ 3,937 
489 
201 

36 

8 
891 

397 
68 

6,028 

1,549 

14,416 
26 

15,991 

22,019 

8,210 

1,990 
22,904 

33,104 

$ 55,123 

State of South Carolina 

Totals 

$ 19,742 
1 '138 

201 
4,834 

598 
97 

72,667 
29 

19,610 
1,098 

68 

120,082 

17,547 
9,251 

14,416 
202 

814,811 

856,227 

976,309 

20,279 

240,066 
58,444 

318,789 

$ 1,295,098 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Fund Equity 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services ........................................................................ . 
Interest and other investment income .............................................. . 

Total operating revenues ............................................................ . 

Operating expenses: 
General operations and administration ............................................ . 
Benefits and claims ......................................................................... . 
Interest. ........................................................................................... . 
Depreciation and amortization ......................................................... . 
Other operating expenses ................................................................ . 

Total operating expenses ............................................................ . 

Operating income (loss) ............................................................ . 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest income ................................................................................ . 
Federal revenue ............................................................................... . 
Interest expense .............................................................................. . 
Other nonoperating expenses .......................................................... . 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) .................................. . 

Income (loss) before operating transfers 
and extraordinary items .......................................................... . 

Operating transfers in ........................................................................ . 

Income (loss) before extraordinary items ................................ . 

Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt... ......................... . 

Net income (loss) ....................................................................... . 

Retained earnings (deficit) at beginning of year (restated) .......... . 

Retained earnings (deficit) at end of year ...................................... . 

Contributed capital at beginning of year ........................................ . 
Additions to contributed capital ..................................................... . 
Deductions from contributed capital .............................................. . 

Fund equity (deficit) at end of year ................................................. . 
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$ 

Housing 
Authori!l 

3,888 
48,937 

52,825 

5,099 

33,629 
292 

1,509 

40,529 

12,296 

22,723 

(22,723) 

12,296 

12,296 

(277) 

12,019 

149,730 

161,749 

$ 161,749 

Education 
Assistance 

$ 

Authority 

35,764 
8,944 

44,708 

7,320 

20,275 
140 
932 

28,667 

16,041 

(153) 

(153) 

15,888 

15,888 

15,888 

91,555 

107,443 

$ 107,443 

Jobs-
Economic 

Development 
Authority 

$ 2,158 
763 

2,921 

2,972 

201 

3,173 

(252) 

65 

(12) 
(84) 

(31) 

(283) 

125 

(158) 

(158) 

15,633 

15,475 

260 

$ 15,735 

$ 

$ 

Patients' 
Com pen-

sation 

14,253 
973 

15,226 

291 
22,367 

3 

22,661 

(7,435) 

(7,435) 

(7,435) 

(7,435) 

(2,000) 

(9,435) 

(9,435) 



State of South Carolina 

Patriots 
Point 

Develop-
Second ment Other 
Injury Authori~ Enterprise Totals 

$ 1,232 $ 5,223 $ 23,105 $ 85,623 
59,617 

1,232 5,223 23,105 145,240 

1 '166 4,746 22,034 43,628 
22,367 
53,904 

26 424 499 1,384 
52 83 2 2,779 

1,244 5,253 22,535 124,062 

(12) (30) 570 21,178 

7 1,748 1,820 
22,723 

{1,137) (1 ,149) 
(276) (23,236) 

7 335 158 

(12) (23) 905 21,336 

125 

(12) (23) 905 21,461 

(277) 

(12) (23) 905 21,184 

96 (1,677) 23,989 277,326 

84 (1,700) 24,894 298,510 

11,809 5,061 16,870 
3,190 3,450 

(41) (41) 

$ 84 $ 10,109 $ 33,104 $ 318,789 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) .................................................................... . 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization .................................................... . 
Provisions for loan losses and bad debts ..................................... . 
Provisions for loss on development project. ................................. . 
Loss on disposition of property and equipment... .......................... . 
Issuance of loans and notes ......................................................... . 
Collection of loans and notes ...................................................... . 
Interest payments ......................................................................... . 
Interest on investments ................................................................ . 
Amounts received for payment of claims ...................................... . 
Payment of claims ........................................................................ . 
Other nonoperating revenues ....................................................... . 
Other nonoperating expenses ...................................................... . 
Other. ........................................................................................... . 

Change in assets--decreases (increases): 
Accounts receivable, net. ............................................................. . 
Student loans receivable, net.. ..................................................... . 
Loans and notes receivable, net. .................................................. . 
Due from other funds .................................................................... . 
Inventories .................................................................................... . 
Other current assets .................................................................... . 

Change in liabilities--increases (decreases): 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ...................................... . 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported ................................... . 
Due to other funds ........................................................................ . 
Deferred revenues ....................................................................... . 
Deposits ....................................................................................... . 
Liabilities payable from restricted assets ...................................... . 
Compensated absences payable ................................................ . 
Other liabilities, including retainages payable ............................... . 

Net cash provided by 
operating activities ................................................................. . 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Principal payments made to other funds ....................................... . 
Proceeds from sale of notes payable ........................................... . 
Principal payments on notes payable ........................................... . 
Proceeds from sale of revenue bonds .......................................... . 
Principal payments on revenue bonds .......................................... . 
Interest payments ......................................................................... . 
Payment of bond issuance costs .................................................. . 
Federal revenue ........................................................................... . 
Payments from Federal grants ..................................................... . 
Operating transfers in .................................................................. . 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
noncapital financing activities .............................................. . 
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Housing 
Authority 

12,296 

292 

(50,696) 
62,732 
33,340 

(11 ,592) 

(183) 

(898) 

678 
5 

659 

4,095 

(141) 

25 
(3,027) 

47,585 

19,926 
(37,375) 
(33,601) 

(158) 
22,723 

(22,723) 

(51,208) 

Education 
Assistance 

$ 

Authority 

16,041 

140 

(46,417) 
73,239 
20,275 
(7,871) 

403 

1,124 
2 

(580) 

(205) 

2,012 

59 
(92) 

18 

58,148 

49,850 
(78,165) 
(21 ,361) 

(707) 

(50,383) 

Jobs-
Economic 

Development 

$ 

Authority 

(252) 

182 

(290) 
1,600 

(460) 

(55) 
5 

87 

38 

67 

498 

(2) 

1,418 

220 
(16) 

(12) 

125 
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State of South Carolina 

Patriots 
Point 

Patients' Second Development Other Elimina-
Compensation Injury Authority Enterprise tions Totals 

$ (7,435) $ (12) $ (30) $ 570 $ $ 21 '178 

3 26 424 499 1,384 
99 281 

505 505 
8 8 

(97,403) 
137,571 
53,615 

(973) (20,896) 
61,768 61,768 

(59,412) (59,412) 
664 664 

(678) (733) 
(3) (25) 197 

(249) 5 (542) (659) (1, 132) 
2 

678 
(4) (579) 

(119) 165 46 
26 518 

7,387 526 (261) 751 14,577 
5,326 5,326 

(2) 201 31 4 293 
1,350 690 1,807 

498 
(76) (76) 

6 (1) 17 45 108 
(35) (3,062) 

5,413 2,897 388 1,882 117,731 

(20) (277) (297) 
1,139 1,359 
(560) (576) 

69,776 
(115,540) 

(1 ,059) (56,033) 
(865) 

22,723 
(22,723) 

125 

(20) (757) (102,051) 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
ENTERPRISE FUNDS (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 

Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment... ............................ . $ 

Principal payments on notes payable ......................................... . 

Interest payments ........................................................................ . 

Proceeds from the sale of capital assets ...................................... . 

Contributions of capital. ................................................................ . 

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and 
related financing activities ...................................................... . 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Proceeds from sale of investments ............................................... . 

Purchase of investments ............................................................. . 

Interest on investments ................................................................ . 

Issuance of loans ........................................................................ . 

Collection of loans ...................................................................... . 

Net cash provided by 

investing activities ................................................................. .. 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents .................................... . 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (restated) .......... . 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ...................................... . $ 
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Housing 
Authority 

(232) 

(232) 

790 

10,543 

11,333 

7,478 

129,896 

137,374 

Education 
Assistance 

$ 

$ 

Authority 

15,293 

(6,011) 

8,269 

17,551 

25,316 

99,165 

124,481 

Jobs-
Economic 

Development 

$ 

$ 

Authority 

260 

260 

520 

553 

1,073 

3,068 

8,422 

11,490 



State of South Carolina 

Patriots 
Point 

Patients' Second Development Other Elimina-
Compensation Injury Authority Enterprise tions Totals 

$ (2} $ (14) $ (293) $ (978) $ $ (1,519) 
(201) (201) 
(162) (162) 

1,140 1,140 
680 940 

(2) (14) (293) 479 198 

16,083 
(990) (7,001) 

994 4,515 7 1,709 26,557 
(1,175) (1,175) 

560 1,113 

994 4,515 7 104 35,577 

6,405 7,398 82 1,708 51,455 

13,645 45,246 1,373 16,789 314,536 

$ 20,050 $ 52,644 $ 1,455 $ 18,497 $ $ 365,991 
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Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

John Rutledge (Charles Mason Crowson) 
John Rutledge ( 1739-1800) was the first and only President of South Carolina following the 
ratification of the South Carolina Constitution of 1776. He was elected Governor of South 
Carolina in 1779 and also served as the first Chief Justice of the South Carolina Supreme 
Court. 



Internal Service Funds 

Internal Service Funds provide goods/services 
to other func~s, other agencies, or other governments 
on a cost-reimbursement basis. The Sfate uses the 
following Internal Service Funds: 

Insurance Reserve Fund. This is a risk 
!llanagementfreinsurance fund. . )t underwrites 
msurance nsks on _public bmldmgs and their 
contents and tort liabiiity, medical malpractice and 
automobile liability for public employees. State law 
limits the F_up.d's cu!'t~mers to certain governmental 
persons/entities withm the State and certain 
associated parties. 

. Health and Disability Insurance Fund. This is 
a nsk management fund that underwrites the grouP. 
health, denfal2 long-term disability, and relateo 
benefits provided to State and public school 
employees and retirees. 

State Accident Fund. This is a risk 
management fund that provides workers' 
compensation ben~fits predominantly to State 
employees. Premmms are collected from State 
agencies. 

General Services Fund. This fund accounts 
for various services provided to State and local 
governmental units for which user fees are charged. 
These services include telecommunication and 
computer services, rental of office buildings 
janitorial servic~s, building maintenance, and 
procurement services. 

State of South Carolina 

Central Supplies and Eguipment Fund. This 
fund sells office sup_plies and equipment~ food, and 
paper P.roducts to oll1er governmental umts. It also 
stores lood and paper products for State agencies. 

Motor Pool Fund. This fund provides dailY- and 
perm~nent lease assignm.ent~ of vehicles to State 
agencies. It also mamtams an inventory of 
autqmotive parts to provide maintenance of these 
vehicles. 

qepartment o~ Transportation Internal 
Se~Ice Fun~ .. . This fund accounts for various 
service a~tivities of the. Department of 
Transp_ort:atwn. The fund provides data processing 
and pnn~mg ~ervices, eguipment rentals, and office 
and engmeermg SUQPhes to other divisions and 
county offices oTthe Department. 

~~nsion Admi~istration Fund. This fund 
admmisters the pubhc employee retirement SY.Stems. 
Revenues of the fund primarilY consist of 
assessments charged to the Pension Trust Funds. 

Prison Industries Fund. This fund accounts 
for goods prodJ.Iced by inmate labor. These goods 
are sold pnmanly to State agencies. 

Other Internal Service Funds. These funds, 
aggregated for rep_or:f~ng Qurposes, account for other 
miscellaneous. activities thaf meet the definition of 
Interp.~l Servic~ .Funds. Such activities include 
provisiOn of t_rammg programs for State employees 
work activity centers of the VocatiOnal 
Rehabilitation Department and the Governor's 
School for th.e Arts Foundation, Inc., a blended 
component umt. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Francis Marion, the Swamp Fox (D. L. Eklund) 
Colonel Francis Marion (1732-1795) gained lasting fame in South Carolina lore 
through his use of guerrilla tactics and daring cavalry raids during the Revolutionary 
War. He was given the nickname "Swamp Fox" because his cunning battle strategies 
kept British troops constantly on guard. 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Central 
Health and State Supplies 

Insurance Disability Accident General and Motor 
ASSETS Reserve Insurance Fund Services Egui(!ment Pool 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ............................................ $ 94,051 $ 151,921 $ 51,768 $ 48,038 $ 1,054 $ 4,292 
Invested securities lending collateral. ............................ 36,461 130 45 8 
Accounts receivable, net.. .............................................. 18,816 2,523 18,901 357 6 78 
Due from other funds ..................................................... 928 13,858 2,049 4,946 1,024 1,709 
lnterfund receivables ...................................................... 3,881 
Inventories ...................................................................... 1,629 2,293 11 
Other current assets ...................................................... 2,394 2 

Total current assets ..................................................... 156,531 168,434 72,763 54,978 4,377 6,090 

Long-term assets: 
Investments .................................................................... 176,141 22,861 
Advances to other funds ................................................ 30,636 

Total long-term assets ................................................. 206,777 22,861 

Property, plant, and equipment: 
Land and improvements ................................................ 5,048 329 
Buildings and improvements ......................................... 143,890 1,127 
Machinery, equipment, and other. ................................. 865 1,133 9,607 66,536 25,049 
Construction in progress ................................................ 1,634 
Less: accumulated depreciation .................................... (441) (545) (1,176) (97,364) (15,040) 

Total property, plant, and equipment, net... ................. 424 588 8,431 119,744 11,465 

Total assets ............................................................. $ 363,732 $ 191,883 $ 81,194 $ 174,722 $ 4,377 $ 17,555 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 
Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ..................... $ 98,938 $ 29,681 $ 14,012 $ 7,656 $ 718 $ 545 
Insurance ciaims incurred but not reported ................. 53,233 76,280 14,632 
Due to other funds ....................................................... 17 111 42 620 79 98 
lnterfund payables ........................................................ 2,150 1,000 

Deferred revenues ....................................................... 38,494 2,185 17,762 
Securities lending collateral ......................................... 36,461 130 45 8 
Notes payable .............................................................. 94 254 
Limited obligation bonds payable ................................ 2,170 
Capital lease and installment debt 

obligations payable .................................................... 722 
Compensated absences payable ................................ 248 251 305 2,387 114 
Other current liabilities, including retainages payable. 545 43 

Total current liabilities ............................................... 227,391 108,638 47,343 15,850 1,797 1,011 

Long-term liabilities: 
Accrued liabilities ......................................................... 10,718 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported ................. 15,430 
Advances from other funds .......................................... 17,910 
Notes payable .............................................................. 671 1,246 
Limited obligation bonds payable ................................ 33,399 
Capital lease and installment debt 
obligations payable .................................................... 9,181 

Total long-term liabilities ........................................... 26,148 61,161 1,246 

Total liabilities ........................................................ 227,391 108,638 73,491 77,011 1,797 2,257 

Fund Equity: 
Contributed capital ......................................................... 46 62,536 305 
Retained earnings .......................................................... 136,341 83,199 7,703 35,175 2,580 14,993 

Total fund equity .................................................... 136,341 83,245 7,703 97,711 2,580 15,298 

Total liabilities and fund equity .......................... $ 363,732 $ 191,883 $ 81,194 $ 174,722 $ 4,377 $ 17,555 
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State of South Carolina 

Department of 
Transportation Pension Other 

Internal Admin is- Prison Internal Elimina-
Service tration Industries Service tions Totals 

$ 17,476 $ 982 $ 2,722 $ 1,828 $ $ 374,132 
1 36,645 

16 1,148 5,910 47,755 
37 1,856 79 (2,239) 24,247 

2,824 (4,327) 2,378 
2,511 6,444 

5 2,401 

17,476 1,036 8,237 10,646 (6,566) 494,002 

5,590 204,592 
15,002 (24, 181) 21,457 

20,592 (24,181) 226,049 

5,377 
145,017 

10,041 2,935 9,093 92 125,351 
1,634 

~5,834) (1,280) (5,779) (49) (127,508) 

4,207 1,655 3,314 43 149,871 

$ 21,683 $ 2,691 $ 11,551 $ 31,281 $ (30,747) $ 869,922 

$ $ 729 $ 1,448 $ 78 $ $ 153,805 
144,145 

403 224 645 (2,239) 
2,825 (4,327) 1,648 

58,441 
36,645 

348 
2,170 

722 
794 458 18 4,575 

588 

1,927 2,130 3,566 (6,566) 403,087 

10,718 
15,430 

14,445 (24,181) 8,174 
1,917 

33,399 

9,181 

14,445 (24,181) 78,819 

1,927 2,130 18,011 (30,747) 481,906 

10,041 5,211 133 78,272 
11,642 764 4,210 13,137 309,744 

21,683 764 9,421 13,270 388,016 

$ 21,683 $ 2,691 $ 11,551 $ 31,281 $ (30,747) $ 869,922 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes 

. 
Fund Equity Ill 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Health Central 
and State Supplies 

Insurance Disability Accident General and 
Reserve Insurance Fund Services Egui~ment 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services ................................................................. $ 66,498 $ 624,628 $ 39,283 $ 74,316 $ 10,905 
Contributions ............................................................................. 
Interest and other investment income ........................................ 22,890 14,786 

Total operating revenues ••••...........................••..•......•••••••••.• 89,388 639,414 39,283 74,316 10,905 

Operating expenses: 
General operations and administration ...................................... 37,121 119,573 5,306 59,628 11,077 
Benefits and claims ................................................................... 23,971 553,566 31,438 
Depreciation ............................................................................. 147 121 638 6,529 
Other operating expenses ......................................................... 137 338 

Total operating expenses .................................................... 61,239 673,260 37,519 66,495 11,077 

Operating income (loss) ..................................................... 28,149 (33,846) 1,764 7,821 (172) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Interest income .......................................................................... 3,257 305 
Federal revenue ......................................................................... 9 
Interest expense ........................................................................ (3,326) 

Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) ................................. ~39) ~64) ~430) 12 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) ...••...•.••••••••••••.••• (39) (64) 3,257 (3,442) 12 

Income (loss) before operating transfers •.........•.•........... 28,110 (33,910) 5,021 4,379 (160) 

Operating transfers in ................................................................. 7 3,166 
Operating transfers out. .............................................................. (393) (252) (1,342) 

Net income (loss) ................................................................ 27,717 (34, 162) 5,028 6,203 (160) 

Retained earnings at beginning of year (restated) ............... 108,624 117,361 2,675 28,972 2,740 

Retained earnings at end of year ••••••••••••.••.•.•••••••••••••.•.•••••••••• 136,341 83,199 7,703 35,175 2,580 

Contributed capital at beginning of year ••••••••....................... 7 62,553 
Additions to contributed capital ••••••••••••••......••••••••••••...••••••••.. 39 8 
Deductions from contributed capital ...............•••••••••••.••••••••••• j25) 

Fund equity at end of year ......•••••••••••••.••...•••••••••.....•••••••.....•••• $ 136,341 $ 83,245 $ 7,703 $ 97,711 $ 2,580 
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State of South Carolina 

Department of 
Transportation Pension Other 

Motor Internal Admin is- Prison Internal Elimina-
Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals 

$ 12,030 $ 2,427 $ 11,041 $ 19,336 $ 1,295 $ $ 861,759 
93 11,137 11,230 

157 37,833 

12,030 2,427 11,134 19,336 12,589 910,822 

6,485 876 11,067 17,430 1,620 270,183 
608,975 

4,130 70 497 521 11 12,664 
5 2 111 11 6 610 

10,620 948 11,675 17,962 1,637 892,432 

1,410 1,479 !541! 1,374 10,952 18,390 

22 117 1,703 5,404 
9 

(23) (1,379) (4,728) 

{92) {144) {18) 1,273 498 

!93! !27! !18! 1,597 1,183 

1,317 1,479 (568) 1,356 12,549 19,573 

9 (2,654) 528 

{237) {150) {285) 2,654 {5) 

1,089 1,479 (718) 1,356 12,264 20,096 

13,904 10,163 1,482 2,854 873 289,648 

14,993 11,642 764 4,210 13,137 309,744 

327 9,652 8 3,857 133 76,537 
33 2,688 1,354 4,122 

!55! !2,299! !8! !2,387! 

$ 15,298 $ 21,683 $ 764 $ 9,421 $ 13,270 $ $ 388,016 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Operating income (loss) ............................................................... . 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) 

to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation ............................................................................ . 
Provision for loan losses and bad debts ................................... . 
Amortization of deferred gain on sale of capital leaseback ....... . 
Loss on disposition of property and equipment. ....................... . 
Interest on investments and interfund loans ............................. . 
Other nonoperating revenues ................................................... . 
Other nonoperating expenses .................................................. . 
Other ........................................................................................ . 

Change in assets--decreases (increases): 
Accounts receivable, net. ......................................................... . 
Due from Federal government and other grantors ................... . 
Due from other funds .............................................................. . 
Inventories ............................................................................... . 
Other current assets ................................................................. . 

Change in liabilities--increases (decreases): 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities .................................. . 
Insurance claims incurred but not reported ............................... . 
Due to other funds .................................................................... . 
Deferred revenues .................................................................. . 
Compensated absences payable ............................................. . 
Other liabilities, including retainages payable ........................... . 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities ........................................................... .. 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Principal payments received from other funds .......................... . 
Principal payments made to other funds .................................. . 
Receipt of interest from other funds ......................................... . 
Interest payments made to other funds .................................... . 
Loans made to other funds ....................................................... . 
Federal revenue ....................................................................... . 
Operating transfers in ............................................................... . 
Operating transfers out. ............................................................ . 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
noncapital financing activities .......................................... . 
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Insurance 
Reserve 

28,149 

147 

(22,890) 

(39) 
256 

2,390 

(478) 

57 

(1 ,257) 
(9,263) 

(5) 
4,992 

7 

2,066 

6,470 

2,557 

(1.139) 

(393) 

7,495 

$ 

Health 
and 

Disability 
Insurance 

(33,846) 

121 

(14,786) 

9 

620 

(794) 

(5,325) 
9,600 

(59) 
1,567 

(31) 

(42,924) 

(252) 

(252) 

State 
Accident 

Fund 

$ 1,764 

638 

23 

16,935 

654 

352 
(8,238) 

(68) 
(16,578) 

39 
316 

(4, 163) 

7 

7 

$ 

General 
Services 

7,821 

6,529 

(572) 

59 
(2) 

(32) 

44 
(1,246) 

(60) 

1,715 

(238) 

220 
2 

14,241 

420 
(1 ,494) 

8 
(947) 

9 
3,166 

(1,342) 

(180) 



State of South Carolina 

Central Department of 
Supplies Transportation Pension Other 

and Motor Internal Admin is- Prison Internal Elimina-
Equipment Pool Service tration Industries Service tions Totals 

$ (172) $ 1,410 $ 1,479 $ (541) $ 1,374 $ 10,952 $ $ 18,390 

4,130 70 497 521 11 12,664 
311 311 

(572) 
23 

(37,676) 
12 4 18 1,285 1,378 

(12) (12) (65) 
(1) (8) (39) 186 

30 13 (16) 23 (5,901) 14,095 
44 

(164) 334 (37) (945) 72 319 (2,285) 
349 (1) (30) 258 

(5) 52 

(193) (85) (295) 535 (107) (4,660) 
(7,901) 

55 (8) 292 5 145 (319) (200) 
(1 0,019) 

3 78 51 (37) 330 
318 

(83) 5,799 1,550 (12) 1,483 6,714 (15,329) 

4,701 11,591 
(4,719) (6,213) 
1,703 4,268 

(1 ,379) (2,326) 
(1,139) 

9 
9 (2,654) 528 

(237) (150) (285) 2,654 (5) 

(228) (150) 21 6,713 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Acquisition of property, plant, and equipment... ........................ . 
Proceeds from sale of notes payable ....................................... . 
Proceeds from sale of limited obligation bonds ........................ . 
Principal payments on limited obligation bonds ........................ . 
Interest payments .................................................................... . 
Principal payments on capital leases and 

installment debt obligations payable ....................................... . 

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and 
related financing activities ................................................ . 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Proceeds from sale of investments .......................................... . 
Purchase of investments .......................................................... . 
Interest on investments ............................................................ . 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
investing activities ............................................................. . 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............ .. 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ...................... . 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ................................ .. 

Noncash capital and financing activities: 
Acquisition of property and equipment through: 

Transfers from other funds ..................................................... . 
Donations ............................................................................... . 

Total noncash capital and financing activities ................ . 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

Insurance 
Reserve 

(28) 

(28) 

75,119 
(51 ,642) 
17,916 

41,393 

50,926 

43,125 

94,051 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Health 
and 

Disability 
Insurance 

(48) 

(48) 

315 
(601) 

14,289 

14,003 

(29,221) 

181,142 

151,921 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

State 
Accident 

Fund 

(4,520) 

(4,520) 

3,024 

3,024 

(5,652) 

57,420 

51,768 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

General 
Services 

(4,270) 

765 
8,577 

(2,000) 
(2,364) 

(669) 

39 

297 

297 

14,397 

33,641 

48,038 



$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Central 
Supplies 

and 
Equipment 

(83) 

1,137 

1,054 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Motor 
Pool 

(5,601) 
1,500 

{4,101) 

1,470 

2,822 

4,292 

20 
20 

Department of 
Transportation Pension 

Internal Admin is-
Service tration 

$ $ (329) 

(329) 

117 

117 

1,550 (374) 

15,926 1,356 

$ 17,476 $ 982 

$ 2,688 $ 

$ 2,688 $ 

Prison 
Industries 

$ (259) $ 

(259) 

1,224 

1,498 

$ 2,722 $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

State of South Carolina 

Other 
Internal 
Service 

(8) $ 

(8) 

(5,590) 

{5,590) 

1,137 

691 

1,828 $ 

$ 

$ 

Elimina-
tions 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Totals 

(15.063) 
2,265 
8,577 

(2,000) 
(2,364) 

(669) 

(9,254) 

75,434 
(57,833) 
35,643 

53,244 

35,374 

338,758 

374,132 

2,688 
20 

2,708 
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Archibald Rutledge 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Archibald Rutledge (1883-1973 ), a native of Charleston, was the first person to be 
designated Poet Laureate of South Carolina. 



Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary Funds account for resources the State 
holds as trustee or agent for individuals, private 
organizations, or other governmental units. 

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 

Expendable Trust Funds account for resources 
the State holds as trustee. Both the princ~pal and 
earnings of Ex))endable Trust Funds may oe used 
for purposes allowed under the trust agreements. 
The State uses the following Expendable Trust 
Funds: 

Radioactive Waste Contingency Fund. A 
private company o_perates a low-level radioactive 
waste disposal facifity within the State. The State 
and the company have entered into a trust agreement 
with the State Treasurer as trustee. The company 
has deposited monies into the trust fund to provide 
for site cleanup in the event that there is seepage 
into the groundwater or the site is abandoned. 

Unem~loyment Compensation Benefits 
Fund. Thts fund accounts for the State's 
unemployment compensation benefits. Revenues 
consist of taxes assessed on employers to pay 
benefits to qualified unemployed persons. 

Other Expendable Trust Funds. These funds, 
aggregated for presentation purposes, account for 
oilier miscellaneous expendaole trust funds. These 
are generally resources given to the State through 
trust agreements and provide for such items as 
scholarship funds, mamtenance and operation of 
specific properties, and construction of monuments. 

NONEXPENDABLETRUSTFUNDS 

These funds account for resources the State 
holds as trustee. The principal of these funds must 
be preserved and only the earnings may be used for 
the rurposes allowed under the trust agreement. 
Mos of the resources in these funos were 
bequeathed to the State via wills of deceased 
persons. 

PENSION TRUST FUNDS 

Pension Trust Funds account for the following 
five publi.c . employee retirement systems that the 
State admmtsters: 

South Carolina Retirement System. This is a 
multiple-employer pension system that benefits 
employees of tlie State, public schools, and political 
subdivisions of the State. 

Police Officers' Retirement System. This is a 
multiple-employer pension system that benefits 

State of South Carolina 

police officer~ !ind fire. f1gpters employed by the 
State or Its pohttcal subdiviSions. 

General Assembly Retirement System. This 
is a single-employer ~ension system that benefits 
members of the South Carolina General Assembly . 

. Ju.dges' ~nd Solicitors' Retirement System. 
Thts IS a smgle-employer penswn system that 
benefits the judges of tlie State's Supreme Court 
Court of Appeals, circuit courts, famify courts, and 
the State's circuit solicitors. 

National Guard Pension System. The State 
administers this single-employer pension system 
that provides a suppfemental retirement benefit to 
members of the South Carolina National Guard. 
The State is a nonemployer contributor to the 
system. 

INVESTMENT TRUST FUND 

Local Government Investment Pool. Excess 
public monies are deposited into this fund by 
various local governmental units and otheLJJolitical 
subdivisions of the State. The State Treasurer 
invests these monies in order to allow these 
participating go~ernp1ental units to realize. a high~r 
!ncome on fuetr mvestments by poolmg their 
mvestments. 

AGENCY FUNDS 

Agency Funds are custodial in nature. They 
generally represent amounts held by the State on 
Behalf ol third parties. The State uses the following 
Agency Funds: 

Deferred Compensation Plans. This fund 
accounts for the Section 457, Section 401(k) and 
Section 403(b) deferred compensation plans o¥fered 
to employees of the State, its component units, and 
various local governmental units. 

Insurance Company Deposits Fund. This 
fund accounts for deposits whtch are required to be 
made by insurance companies in lieu of surety 
bonds. 

Federal lnterfund Activity Fund. This fund 
accounts for Federal grants and" entitlements that are 
first received by one State agency and eventually 
will be distributed to another State agency. 

Payroll Clearing Fund. This fund accounts for 
employee deductions and contributions for the short 
penod of time between the issuance of payroll 
checks and payment to the proper recipient. 

Other Ag_ency Funds. Balances in these funds, 
aggregated Tor pres~ntation purpo~es, reQresent 
amounts held for pnsoners and patients ol State 
institutions, cash bonds, miscellaneous clearing 
accounts, and other deposits. 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents ...................................... 
Cash on deposit with fiscal agents ........................... 
Investments .............................................................. 
Invested securities lending collateral ...................... 
Receivables, net: 
Accounts ................................................................ 
Taxes ..................................................................... 
Loans and notes ..................................................... 

Due from Federal government... .............................. 
Due from other funds ................................................ 
Other assets ............................................................. 
Property, plant, and equipment: 

Land and improvements ......................................... 
Buildings and improvements .................................. 
Machinery, equipment, and other ........................... 
Less: accumulated depreciation ............................ 

Total assets ........................................................ 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............... 
Tax refunds payable ............................................... 
Intergovernmental payables ................................... 
Due to other funds .................................................. 
lnterfund payables .................................................. 
Deferred revenues ................................................. 
Deposits ................................................................. 
Amounts held in custody for others ........................ 
Deferred compensation .......................................... 
Securities lending collateral. .................................. 

Total liabilities ................................................ 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for: 

Pension and other benefits .................................. 
External investment pool participants .................. 
Endowment and similar funds .............................. 
Long-term loans and notes receivable ................. 

Unreserved, undesignated ..................................... 

Total fund balances ........................................ 

Total liabilities and fund balances .................... 
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EXPENDABLE TRUST 

Radioactive Unemployment 
Waste Compensation 

Contingency Benefits 

$ 90,293 $ 17,318 
733,586 

79 13 

850 723 
35,040 

1 '191 
7 

$ 91,222 $ 787,878 

$ 2,492 $ 6,511 
2,819 

167 

841 

79 13 

2,571 10,351 

777,527 

88,651 

88,651 777,527 

$ 91,222 $ 787,878 

Other 
Expendable NON EXPENDABLE 

Trust TRUST 

$ 20,639 $ 1,626 

269 

256 23 

66 

$ 21,230 $ 1,649 

$ 431 $ 

269 

700 

1,466 
66 

20,464 183 

20,530 1,649 

$ 21,230 $ 1,649 



State of South Carolina 

PENSION TRUST 

Judges' 
South Police General and National 

Carolina Officers' Assembly Solicitors' Guard 
Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement Pension 

System System System System System 

$ 1,767,912 $ 195,403 $ 5,527 $ 10,211 s 6,512 

14,359,025 1,610,498 33,217 70,668 
1,324,477 187,096 6,051 8,634 

320,290 34,925 517 1,251 8? 

13,695 3,217 71 

524 54 1 3 
4,279 437 13 20 

4 
(617) (63) (2) (3) (3) 

$ 17,789,585 $ 2,031,567 $ 45,324 $ 90,855 $ 6,600 

$ 59,250 $ 842 $ $ 6 $ 

14,262 473 58 

1,324,477 187,096 6,051 8,634 

1,397,989 188,411 6,110 8,640 

16,391,596 1,843,156 39,214 82,215 6,600 

16,391,596 1,843,156 39,214 82,215 6,600 

$ 17' 789,585 $ 2,031,567 $ 45,324 $ 90,855 $ 6,600 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS (Continued) 
June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents ............................................................. . 
Cash on deposit with fiscal agents .................................................. . 
Investments ..................................................................................... . 
Invested securities lending collateral .............................................. . 
Receivables, net: 
Accounts ........................................................................................ . 
Taxes ............................................................................................. . 
Loans and notes ........................................................................... .. 

Due from Federal government. ....................................................... .. 
Due from other funds ....................................................................... . 
Other assets .................................................................................... . 
Property, plant, and equipment: 
Land and improvements ................................................................ . 
Buildings and improvements ......................................................... . 
Machinery, equipment, and other ................................................. .. 
Less: accumulated depreciation ................................................... . 

Total assets ............................................................................... .. 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ...................................... .. 
Tax refunds payable ..................................................................... .. 
Intergovernmental payables .......................................................... . 
Due to other funds ........................................................................ .. 
lnterfund payables ......................................................................... . 
Deferred revenues ......................................................................... . 
Deposits ......................................................................................... . 
Amounts held in custody for others .............................................. .. 
Deferred compensation ................................................................. . 
Securities lending collateral.. ......................................................... . 

Total liabilities ........................................................................ . 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for: 

Pension and other benefits .......................................................... . 
External investment pool participants .......................................... . 
Endowment and similar funds ...................................................... . 
Long-term loans and notes receivable ........................................ . 

Unreserved, undesignated ........................................................... .. 

Total fund balances .............................................................. .. 

Total liabilities and fund balances .......................................... .. 
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INVESTMENT 
TRUST 

Local 
Government 
Investment 

Pool 

$ 786,806 

270 

$ 787,076 

$ 14,413 

14,413 

772,663 

772,663 

$ 787,076 

Deferred 
Compensation 

Plans 

$ 

1,127,905 

1,817 

30,142 

5,574 

$ 1,165,438 

$ 

1,165,438 

1,165,438 

$ 1,165,438 



State of South Carolina 

AGENCY 

Insurance Federal 
Company lnterfund Payroll Other 
Deposits Activity Clearing Agency Eliminations Totals 

$ $ 41 $ 9,525 $ 225,734 $ $ 3,137,547 
733,586 

347,561 19,264 17,568,138 
113 1,526,732 

2,686 363,695 
5,373 40,413 

95 30,303 
205 1,396 

5 43,982 5,242 (56,443) 9,776 
5,574 

582 
4,749 

4 
(688) 

$ 347,561 $ 251 $ 53,507 $ 258,507 $ (56,443) $ 23,421,807 

$ $ $ 221 $ 4,410 $ $ 88,577 
158 2,977 
130 130 

136 9,432 85,605 (56,443) 53,690 
5 5 

841 
526 526 

347,561 115 43,849 167,565 559,090 
1,165,438 

113 1,526,732 

347,561 251 53,507 258,507 (56,443) 3,398,006 

19,140,308 
772,663 

1,466 
66 

109,298 

20,023,801 

$ 347,561 $ 251 $ 53,507 $ 258,507 $ (56,443) $ 23,421,807 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Plan Net Assets 
PENSION TRUST FUNDS 

June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Judges' 

South Police General and National 

Carolina Officers' Assembly Solicitors' Guard 

Retirement Retirement Retirement Retirement Pension 

System System System System System Totals 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents .......................... $ 1,767,912 $ 195,403 $ 5,527 $ 10,211 $ 6,512 $ 1,985,565 

Receivables: 

Contributions ............................................. 75,085 10,620 45 291 86,041 

Employer long-term ................................... 1,231 2,600 3,831 

Accrued interest.. ...................................... 188,987 21,705 472 960 87 212,211 

Unsettled investment sales ....................... 54,987 54,987 

Due from other funds ................................. 13,695 3,217 71 16,983 

Total receivables ..................................... 333,985 38,142 517 1,322 87 374,053 

Investments, at fair value: 

United States government securities ......... 2,655,274 272,138 8,560 9,894 2,945,866 

United States government agencies and 

government-insured securities .................. 4,164,739 409,712 8,321 23,103 4,605,875 

Corporate bonds ........................................ 5,066,486 612,227 11,952 26,210 5,716,875 

Financial and other .................................... 2,472,526 316,421 4,384 11 ,461 2,804,792 

Total investments .................................... 14,359,025 1,610,498 33,217 70,668 16,073,408 

Invested securities lending collateral ......... 1,324,477 187,096 6,051 8,634 1,526,258 

Property and equipment, net of 

accumulated depreciation ........................... 4,186 428 12 20 4,647 

Total assets ....................................... 17,789,585 2,031,567 45,324 90,855 6,600 19,963,931 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable-unsettled investment 

purchases ................................................... 56,279 56,279 

Due to other funds ...................................... 14,262 473 58 14,793 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ..... 2,971 842 6 3,820 

Securities lending collateral.. ....................... 1,324,477 187,096 6,051 8,634 1,526,258 

Total liabilities .................................. 1,397,989 188,411 6,110 8,640 1,601,150 

Net assets held in trust 

for pension benefits .................... $ 16,391,596 $ 1,843,156 $ 39,214 $ 82,215 $ 6,600 $ 18,362,781 
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Statement of Net Assets 
INVESTMENT TRUST FUND 

June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents .................................................. . 

Accrued interest receivable .................................................. . 

Total assets ............................................................... . 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............................. . 

Total liabilities ........................................................... . 

Net assets held in trust 

for pool participants .................................... . 

Local Government 

Investment Pool 

$ 786,806 

270 

787,076 

14,413 

14,413 

$ 772,663 

State of South Carolina 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balances 
EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Radioactive Unemployment Other 
Waste Compensation Expendable 

Contingency Benefits Trust 

Revenues: 
Taxes, other..................................................... $ $ 177,069 $ 
Licenses, fees, and permits.............................. 627 50 
Interest and other investment income................ 5,687 47,687 1,327 
Federal. ........................................................... . 7,499 
Contributions ................................................... . 319 
Othe~ .............................................................. . 1,508 199 

Total revenues............................................ 6,314 233,763 1,895 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government. ..................................... . 174,017 1,150 
Education ...................................................... . 2 
Health and environment. ................................ . 20 
Social services .............................................. . 19 
Administration of justice ................................. . 34 
Resources and economic development. ......... . 6 

I nterg overn menta I. ........................................... . 4 

Total expenditures .................................... .. 174,017 1,235 

Revenues over expenditures .......................... .. 6,314 59,746 660 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Operating transfers in ...................................... . 46 
Operating transfers out. ................................... . (928) (50) 

Total other financing uses ........................ . (928} (4) 

Revenues and other sources over 
expenditures and other uses ......................... 6,314 58,818 656 

Fund balances at beginning of year (restated) 82,337 718,709 19,874 

Fund balances at end of year ........................... $ 88,651 $ 777,527 $ 20,530 
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Totals 

$ 177,069 
677 

54,701 
7,499 

319 
1,707 

241,972 

175,167 
2 

20 
19 
34 
6 
4 

175,252 

66,720 

46 
(978) 

{932} 

65,788 
820,920 

$ 886,708 



State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
AGENCY FUNDS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS 
Assets: 

Investments................................................................... $ 
Accounts receivable ..................................................... . 
Loans and notes receivable .......................................... . 
Other assets ................................................................. . 

Balance 
July 1, 1997 

986,719 
3,207 

25,069 
5,306 

1,020,301 Total assets............................................................... $ 

============= 
Liabilities: 

1,020,301 Deferred compensation................................................. ...:.$---'---'--

1,020,301 Totalliabilities........................................................... $ ======== 
INSURANCE COMPANY DEPOSITS 
Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ........................................... $ 22,924 
Investments ................................................................... 314,168 

Total assets ............................................................... $ 337,092 

Liabilities: 
Amounts held in custody for others ............................... $ 337,092 

Total liabilities ........................................................... $ 337,092 

FEDERAL INTERFUND ACTIVITY 
Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ........................................... $ 
Due from Federal government. ...................................... 645 
Due from other funds ..................................................... 

Total assets ............................................................... $ 645 

Liabilities: 
Intergovernmental payables .......................................... $ 10 
Due to other funds ......................................................... 262 
lnterfund payables ......................................................... 343 
Amounts held in custody for others ............................... 30 

Total liabilities ........................................................... $ 645 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Additions 

169,187 $ 
92,106 
5,073 

18,012 

284,378 $ 

191,188 $ 

191,188 $ 

58,154 $ 
157,243 

215,397 $ 

134,319 $ 

134,319 $ 

17,570 $ 
205 

5 

17,780 $ 

27 $ 
164 

16,183 

16,374 $ 

Deductions 

28,001 
93,496 

17,744 

139,241 

46,051 

46,051 

81,078 
123,850 

204,928 

123,850 

123,850 

17,529 
645 

18,174 

37 
290 
343 

16,098 

16,768 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Balance 
June 30, 1998 

1,127,905 
1,817 

30,142 
5,574 

1,165,438 

1,165,438 

1,165,438 

347,561 

347,561 

347,561 

347,561 

41 
205 

5 

251 

136 

115 

251 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
AGENCY FUNDS (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

PAYROLL CLEARING 
Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents........................................... $ 
Due from other funds .................................................... . 

Balance 
July 1, 1997 

9,296 
41,495 

50,791 Total assets............................................................... $ ========= 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities....................... $ 192 
Due to other funds ........................................................ . 9,175 
lnterfund payables ........................................................ . 5 
Amounts held in custody for others .............................. . 41,419 

50,791 Totalliabilities........................................................... $ ========= 
OTHER AGENCY 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents ........................................... $ 229,811 
Investments ................................................................... 16,507 
Invested securities lending collateral. ............................ 3,150 
Accounts receivable ...................................................... 2,424 
Taxes receivable ........................................................... 
Loans and notes receivable ........................................... 78 
Due from other funds ..................................................... 4,257 
Other assets .................................................................. 4 

Total assets ............................................................... $ 256,231 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ....................... $ 4,447 
Tax refunds payable ...................................................... 
Intergovernmental payables .......................................... 525 
Due to other funds ......................................................... 85,081 
Deposits ........................................................................ 526 
Amounts held in custody for others ............................... 162,502 
Securities lending collateral. .......................................... 3,150 

Total liabilities ........................................................... $ 256,231 

Additions Deductions 

$ 939,845 $ 939,616 
43,982 41,495 

$ 983,827 $ 981,111 

$ 221 $ 192 
9,437 9,180 

5 5 
803,426 800,996 

$ 813,089 $ 810,373 

$ 1 ,720,185 $ 1,724,262 
2.794 37 

113 3,150 
3,091 2,829 
5,373 

95 78 
5,795 4,810 

4 

$ 1,737,446 $ 1,735,170 

$ 4,948 $ 4,985 
158 
130 525 

90,185 89,661 
526 526 

1,323,080 1,318,017 
113 3,150 

$ 1,419,140 $ 1,416,864 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Balance 
June 30, 1998 

9,525 
43,982 

53,507 

221 
9,432 

5 
43,849 

53,507 

225,734 
19,264 

113 
2,686 
5,373 

95 
5,242 

258,507 

4,410 
158 
130 

85,605 
526 

167,565 
~ 13 

258,507 

Continued on Next Page 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 
AGENCY FUNDS (Continued) 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

TOTALS--ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents ........................................... 
Investments ................................................................... 
Invested securities lending collateral. ............................ 
Accounts receivable ...................................................... 
Taxes receivable ........................................................... 
Loans and notes receivable ........................................... 
Due from Federal government. ...................................... 
Due from other funds ..................................................... 
Other assets .................................................................. 

Total assets ............................................................... 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ....................... 
Tax refunds payable ...................................................... 
Intergovernmental payables .......................................... 
Due to other funds ......................................................... 
lnterfund payables ......................................................... 
Deposits ........................................................................ 
Amounts held in custody for others ............................... 
Deferred compensation ................................................. 
Securities lending collateral. .......................................... 

Total liabilities ........................................................... 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Balance 
July 1, 1997 

262,031 
1,317,394 

3,150 
5,631 

25,147 
645 

45,752 
5,310 

1,665,060 

4,639 

535 
94,518 

348 
526 

541,043 
1,020,301 

3,150 

1,665,060 

Additions Deductions 

$ 2,735,754 $ 2,762,485 
329.224 151,888 

113 3,150 
95,197 96,325 

5,373 
5,168 78 

205 645 
49,782 46,305 
18,012 17,748 

$ 3,238,828 $ 3,078,624 

$ 5,169 $ 5,177 
158 
157 562 

99,786 99,131 
5 348 

526 526 
2,277,008 2,258,961 

191,188 46,051 
113 3,150 

$ 2,574,110 $ 2,413,906 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Balance 
June 30, 1998 

235,300 
1,494,730 

113 
4,503 
5,373 

30,237 
205 

49,229 
5,574 

1,825,264 

4,631 
158 
130 

95,173 
5 

526 
559,090 

1,165,438 
113 

1,825,264 

151 



152 

Edgar Allan Brown 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Born in Aiken, Edgar Allan Brown (1888-1975) began a career of more than 50 years in the 
General Assembly in 1921. In 1942 Brown was elected President Pro Tempore of the 
Senate and Chairman of the Finance Committee, positions he held until 1971. Brown was 
noted for fiscal responsibility in state expenditures as well as for establishing a modern 
highway system and the educational television network. 



State of South Carolina 

General Fixed Assets Account Group 

The General Fixed Assets Account GrouP. is 
maintained to account for fixed assets acquireo or 
constructed for use by the State for general 
governmental purposes. These include air fixed 

assets except those accounted for in the Proprietary 
Funds_, Discretely Presented Component Units, 
Fiductary Funds, and Higher Education Funds. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Solomon Blatt (Charles Mason Crowson) 
The son of poor Jewish immigrants, Sol Blatt (1896-1986) became one of the most powerful South Carolina 
lawmakers of his generation. A native of Barnwell, Blatt served in the South Carolina House of Representatives 
for 56 years and was speaker of the House for over three decades from 193 7-1946 and from 1951-1973. 
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State of South Carolina 

Schedule of General Fixed Assets by Function 
June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Buildings, 
Land and Improvements, 

Function Improvements and Utility Plant 

General government. ............................... $ 12,146 $ 153,984 

Education ................................................. 5,570 111 '152 

Health and environment... ........................ 13,103 206,974 

Social services ......................................... 813 15,256 

Administration of justice ........................... 6,275 457,499 

Resources and economic development.. .. 159,857 69,167 

Transportation .......................................... 3,336 63,012 

Total general fixed assets allocated 
to functions ....................................... $ 201,100 $ 1,077,044 

Construction in progress ........................... 

Total general fixed assets ................... 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Henry Timrod 

Machinery, 
Equipment, 
and Other 

$ 83,665 

338,058 

136,427 

43,937 

119,646 

91,981 

207,223 

$ 1,020,937 

A member of the "Charleston School" of antebellum intellectuals, Henry Timrod's 
(1828-1867) nationalistic and sentimental verse concerning the Civil War and its 
aftermath garnered for Timrod the title of Poet Laureate ofthe Confederacy. 
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Totals 

$ 249,795 

454,780 

356,504 

60,006 

583,420 

321,005 

273,571 

2,299,081 

57,824 

$ 2,356,905 



State of South Carolina 

Schedule of Changes in General Fixed Assets by Function 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

July 1, 1997 
Balance as Adjusted 
Previously Adjust- July 1, 1997 June 30, 1998 

Function Re~orted mentsa Balance Additions Retirements Balance 

General government.. .............. $ 224,293 $ (5, 179) $ 219,114 $ 39,938 $ 9,257 $ 249,795 

Education ................................ 439,738 (3,091) 436,647 22,357 4,224 454,780 

Health and environment.. ......... 354,104 (6,476) 347,628 25,058 16,182 356,504 

Social services ......................... 57,798 (2,959) 54,839 7,396 2,229 60,006 

Administration of justice ........... 577,581 (3,362) 574,219 18,525 9,324 583,420 

Resources and economic 
development. ......................... 303,188 (4,540) 298,648 27,023 4,666 321,005 

Transportation .......................... 268,452 268,452 17,366 12,247 273,571 

Construction in progress .......... 78,695 78,695 47,428 68,299 57,824 

Total general fixed assets ... $ 2,303,849 $ {25,607} $ 2,278,242 $ 205,091 $ 126,428 $ 2,356,905 

aThe adjustments resulted from changes in fixed asset capitalization policies. 

Ann Pamela Cuningham 
Born in Laurens, Ann Cuningham ( 1816-
1875) founded the Mt. Vernon Ladies 
Association of the Union in 1853. Largely 
through her lobbying and fundraising efforts, 
Mt. Vernon was preserved as a national 
shrine to George and Martha Washington. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 
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Modjeska Simkins 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Modjeska Simkins (1899-1992), a native of Columbia, fought a lifelong battle to protect the 
civil liberties of all people. After beginning a career in education, Mrs. Simkins took on a 
major leadership role in the state NAACP where she served as Secretary for 15 years and 
saw the number of branches increase from 10 to 110. 



Higher Education Funds 

Financial activities of the State's higher 
education institutions are reported in the Higher 
Education Funds. The four-year institutions are: 

The Citadel 
Clemson University 
Coastal Carolina University 
The College of Charleston (including an 

Undergraduate School, known as tfie 
College of CharlestonUand a Graduate 
School, known as the niversity of 
Charleston) 

Francis Manon University 
Lander Universicy 
The Medical University of South Carolina 
South Carolina State Universi:tY 
The Universicy of South Carohna 
Winthrop University 

Area technical colleges include: 

Aiken Technical College 
Central Carolina Techmcal Colleg_e 
Chesterfield-Marlboro Technical "College 
Denmark Technical College 
Florence-Darlington Technical College 
Greenville Technical College 
Hor:ry-Georgetown Technical College 
Midlands Technical College 
Orangebur_g-Calhoun Tecfinical College 
Piedmont Technical College 
~partanburg Technical Coflege 
Technical Colle_ge of the Lowcountry 
Tri-Councy Tecnnical College 
Trident Technical Colle_ge 
Williamsburg TechnicarCollege 
York Technical College 

Higher Education Funds include the following 
indivicfual funds: 

CURRENT FUNDS 

Current Funds account for resources that higher 
educ'!tion instit!Jtiot;~s may 4se .for any purpose in 
carrymg out their pnmary objectives. 

Unrestricted Current Funds. These funds 
account for currently expendable resources. The 
majority of these funds are completely unrestricted. 
Certain institutions, however, have reserved or 
designated small portions of available resources for 
yaripus. operating purposes specific to the individual 
mstttutwn. 

Restricted Current Funds. These funds 
account for resources that donors or other outside 
agenci~s have restricted for specific current 
operatmg purposes. 

State of South Carolina 

LOAN FUNDS 

Loan Funds account for resources available for 
loans .to . stu~en.ts, faculty, or staff of higher 
educatiOn mstitutwns. 

ENDOWMENT AND SIMILAR FUNDS 

These funds account for endowments and quasi
endowments. These funds are similar to trust funds. 
The State must comply with the terms of any 
applicable agreements. 

PLANT FUNDS 

Plant Funds account for transactions involving 
phy~ic<!l properties of the higher education 
mstltuhons. 

Unexpended Plant Funds. The Unexpended 
Plant Funds subgroup accounts for resources that 
institutions have avairable to finance the acquisition, 
construction,. or tmprov~ment of physical. proQerties. 
Resources tnat mst1tut10ns have set aside lor the 
renewal and replacement of institutional properties 
are also recorded in this fund. Assets under 
construction may be accounted for in this fund or in 
the Investment in Plant Funds. 

Retirement of Indebtedness Funds. The 
Retirement of Indebtedness Funds subgroup 
includes amounts to pay debt service and to retire 
indebtedness on institutiOnal properties. 

Investment in Plant Funds. The Investment in 
Plant Funds subgroup accounts for resources that 
the institution lias expended for (and thus has 
invested. in) its properties and any related 
outstandmg debt. 

AGENCY FUNDS 

Agency Funds account for amounts that higher 
education mstitutions hold as custodians or fiscal 
agents for others. 

FOUNDATIONS AND INSTITUTES FUNDS 

Foundations and Institutes Funds account for 
certain component units of the State's colleges and 
universities. All component units meet the criteria 
for blending but are presented in a separate column 
because they use a basis of accounting different 
fro.m tl1e. one followed by the State's colleges and 
umversities. 
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State of South Carolina 

Combining Balance Sheet 
HIGHER EDUCATION FUNDS 
June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) CURRENT FUNDS 

ENDOWMENT 
LOAN AND SIMILAR 

Unrestricted Restricted FUNDS FUNDS 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents ................................................ $ 265,333 $ 11,831 $ 4,560 $ 51,086 
Investments ....................................................................... 15,802 5,159 714 48,001 
Invested securities lending collateral .................................. 98 18 5 15 
Receivables, net: 
Accounts .......................................................................... 10,505 942 102 104 
Patient and student. ......................................................... 81,776 
Student loans ................................................................... 46,690 
Loans and notes .............................................................. 114 

Due from Federal government and other grantors ............. 849 51,560 112 
Due from other Higher Education Funds ........................... 67,211 11,937 49 7 
Due from other funds ........................................................ 13,624 7,078 
lnterfund receivables .......................................................... 2,101 
Advances to other funds .................................................... 855 
Inventories ......................................................................... 23,962 
Prepaid long-term operating lease ..................................... 
Other assets ...................................................................... 19,735 369 107 1,784 
Investment in joint venture ................................................. 
Property, plant, and equipment, net.. ................................. 

Total assets ................................................................... $ 500,996 $ 89,008 $ 52,339 $ 101,852 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 
Liabilities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............................ $ 65,394 $ 7,227 $ 216 $ 482 
Due to other Higher Education Funds ................................ 20,115 24,289 1 228 
Due to other funds ............................................................. 6,992 173 
lnterfund payables ............................................................. 2,101 
Advances from other funds ................................................ 
Deferred revenues ............................................................. 36,786 432 
Deposits ............................................................................. 3,597 
Amounts held in custody for others .................................... 
Securities lending collateral.. ............................................. 98 18 5 15 
Notes payable .................................................................... 195 
General obligation bonds payable ...................................... 
Revenue bonds payable ..................................................... 
Certificates of participation payable ................................... 
Capital lease and installment debt obligations payable ....... 
Compensated absences payable ....................................... 81,547 15 
Other liabilities, including retainages payable ..................... 875 18 

Total liabilities ............................................................. 217,700 32,154 222 743 
Fund Balances: 

Investment in plant. ............................................................ 
Reserved for: 

Restricted fund balance ................................................... 56,854 6,205 
Federal government grants refundable ............................ 45,267 
Endowment and similar funds .......................................... 54,334 
Debt requirements ........................................................... 
Encumbrances ................................................................. 2,623 
Other special purposes .................................................... 

Unreserved: 
5,116 

Designated for future years' expenditures ........................ 
Designated for loan funds ................................................ 645 
Designated for endowment and similar funds .................. 46,775 
Designated for pian! funds .............................................. 
Designated for special purposes ...................................... 7,744 
Undesignated ................................................................... 267,813 

Total fund balances ................••...........................•••••••• 283,296 56,854 52,117 101,109 
Total liabilities and fund balances •.............•............ $ 500,996 $ 89,008 $ 52,339 $ 101,852 
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State of South Carolina 

PLANT FUNDS 
Retirement Investment FOUNDATIONS 

of in AGENCY AND 
Unex~ended Indebtedness Plant FUNDS INSTITUTES Eliminations Totals 

$ 152,822 $ 45,135 $ $ 3,523 $ 53,741 $ $ 588,031 
4,794 4,332 39,851 118,653 

77 14,393 6 14,612 

2,749 427 601 1,352 16,782 
24,347 106,123 

14 46,704 
114 

1,489 857 54,867 
17,164 689 1,588 4,208 (102,853) 

545 96 (110) 21,233 
(2,101) 

510 31,678 (33,043) 
402 24,364 

17,673 17,673 
477 199 14,544 37,215 

3,675 3,675 
40,082 2,877,627 69,965 2,987,674 

$ 220,199 $ 61,353 $ 2,877,627 $ 10,146 $ 262,307 $ (138,107) $ 4,037,720 

$ 17,237 $ 6,139 $ $ 3,024 $ 11,657 $ $ 111,376 
3,420 6,453 38 48,309 (102,853) 

(110) 7,055 
694 (2,101) 694 

510 34,237 (33,043) 1,704 
412 873 1,219 39,722 

3,597 
7,070 7,070 

77 14,393 6 14,612 
3,826 33,099 115,322 152,442 

15,428 69,037 84,465 
9,571 19 221,425 13,667 244,682 

21,466 21,466 
20,420 2,573 22,993 

4,596 86,158 
5,070 231 8 1,299 7,501 

55,551 27,877 379,143 10,146 220,108 (138, 107! 805,537 

2,498,484 2,498,484 

87,700 23,174 12,094 186,027 
45,267 
54,334 

12,219 12,219 
2,623 

781 5,897 

1,870 1,870 
645 

46,775 
76,167 10,302 86,469 

5,944 13,688 
10,072 277,885 

164,648 33,476 2,498,484 42,199 3,232,183 

$ 220,199 $ 61,353 $ 2,877,627 $ 10,146 $ 262,307 $ (138,107! $ 4,037,720 
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Arthur Middleton 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

A wealthy planter, Arthur Middleton (1742-1787) was elected in 1776 to the Continental 
Congress, where he signed the Declaration of Independence. Middleton also helped to draft 
the South Carolina Constitution of 1776 and was a member of the South Carolina Senate. 



State of South Carolina 

Schedules--Budgetary General Fund 

The Budgetary General Fund, which 
corresponds to the General Funds column in the 
Appropriation Act, is the State's general operating 
fund. The Budgetary General Fund differs 
significantly from tlie GAAP-basis General Fund. 

The schedules in this section have been 
prepared using the budgetary basis of accounting. 
In South Carolina, the budgetary basis of accounting 
is the cash basis with certam exceptions. The Notes 
to the Financial Statements include a more detailed 
description of the budgetary basis of accounting. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Battle of Cowpens (William Ranney) 
The Battle of Cowpens, on January 17, 1781, was a major victory over the British in the southern campaign of 
the Revolutionary War. Colonel Daniel Morgan defeated a much larger British force under Banastre Tarleton by 
the use of innovative battlefield tactics amidst the cow pens of a Spartan district farmer. 
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State of South Carolina 

Appropriation Activity 
BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Function 

Legislative ................................................................................. . 
Judicial. ................................................................................... . 
Executive and administrative ................................................... . 
Educational. .............................................................................. . 
Health ....................................................................................... . 
Social rehabilitation services ..................................................... . 
Correctional and public safety ................................................... . 
Conservation, natural resources, and development. ................... . 
Regulatory ................................................................................ . 
Transportation ........................................................................... . 
Debt service .............................................................................. . 
Miscellaneous ........................................................................... . 

Totals--appropriations for expenditures ........................... . 

Transfer to designation for capital and nonrecurring .................. . 

Totals--appropriations for expenditures and 
intrafund transfers ............................................................ . 

Original 
A(!(!rO(!riations 

$ 28,729 
36,811 

155,372 
2,185,075 

777,572 
119,009 
477,739 
113,685 

54,684 
586 

149,892 
487,834 

4,586,988 

86,920 

$ 4,673,908 

Note: See Note 2 to the Financial Statements for information on budgetary accounting and reporting. 

3 The adjustments shown above (expressed in thousands) may be summanzed as follows: 

Appropriations brought forward from 1996-97 ...................... . 
Open-ended appropriations ................................................. . 

Total adjustments ........................................................ . 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Adjustments3 

4,374 
3,386 

19,828 
83,665 
40,172 
22,027 
44,313 
33,965 

3,266 
(3) 

707 
47,715 

303,415 

303,415 

294,761 
8,654 

303,415 



$ 

$ 

Adjusted lntrafund 
Appropriations Expenditures Transfer 

33,103 $ 28,500 $ 
40,197 36,704 

175,200 134,223 
2,268,740 2,245,397 

817,744 805,797 
141,036 135,420 
522,052 488,235 
147,650 140,257 
57,950 55,332 

583 583 
150,599 150,574 
535,549 533,357 

4,890,403 4,754,379 

86,920 86,920 

4,977,323 $ 4,754,379 $ 86,920 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

State of South Carolina 

Appropriations 
To Be Lapsed 

Carried Forward Appropriations 

$ 

$ 

4,588 $ 15 
3,476 17 

38,851 2,126 
22,944 399 
11,947 
5,616 

33,817 
7,370 23 
2,618 

25 
2,192 

131,227 4,797 

131,227 $ 4,797 

Mary McLeod Bethune (Simmie L. 
Knox) 

From humble beginnings in rural South 
Carolina, Mary McLeod Bethune (1875-
1955) became one of the foremost black 
educators and leaders of her time. In 
1904 she founded \vhat \vould later 
become Bethune-Cookman College in 
Florida, and in 1935 she was appointed 
to the Advisory Board of the National 
Youth Administration. She later became 
head of the Administration's Negro 
Division. 
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State of South Carolina 

General Fund Reserve Activity 
BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Article III, Section 36, of the South Carolina 
Constitution establishes requirements relating to the 
General Fund Reserve, a reserve primarily designed 
to prevent Budgetary General Fund deficits. On 
November 4, 1984, a Constitutional amendment 
changed the funding requirement from five to four 
percent of the Budgetary General Fund revenue of 
the latest completed fiscal year. Provisions of the 
amendment also allowed the percentage rate to be 
reduced to three or increased to five percent by a 
special vote of the General Assembly. An act that 
took effect on March 9, 1988, reduced the 
percentage rate to three percent. On 

Start-of-
Fiscal Year Ended Year 

November 4, 1988, a Constitutional amendment was 
passed which permanently changed the funding 
requirement for the Reserve to three percent of the 
Budgetary General Fund revenue of the latest 
completed fiscal year. 

If amounts are withdrawn from the Reserve, the 
State Constitution establishes a schedule for 
restoring the Reserve to full funding within three 
years. 

Key amounts (dollars in thousands) for the 
General Fund Reserve for the last ten fiscal years 
are: 

End-of-Year Full-Funding Year% 
June 30 Balance Deposits Withdrawals Balance Amount• Fundedb 

1989 $ 86,092 $ 7,217 $ (5,310) $ 87,999 $ 
1990 87,999 87,999 
1991 87,999 6,115 (60,687) 33,427 
1992 33,427 4,729 (38,156) 

1993 66,832 66,832 
1994 66,832 43,346 110,178 
1995 110,178 10,557 120,735 
1996 120,735 6,271 127,006 
1997 127,006 3,374 130,380 
1998 130,380 130,380 

aEquals 3% of the Budgetary General Fund revenues for the latest completed fiscal year. 
hEquals (End-of-Year Balance/Full Funding Amount) x 100. 

87,999 100% 
94,114 94% 
98,843 34% 
99.163 0% 

100,248 67% 
110,178 100% 
120,735 100% 
127,006 100% 
130,380 100% 
137,650 95% c 

cAs required by Part III of the 1998-99 Supplemental Appropriations Act, $7,269,750 was transferred to the 
Reserve on September I, 1998, to provide full funding. 
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State of South Carolina 

Funds Earmarked for Public Education 
BUDGETARY GENERAL FUND 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Part I, Section I, of the 1997-98 Appropriation 
Act and Sections 12-21-1130, 12-33-30, 12-33-50, 
61-4-250, 61-6-4260, and 61-6-4270 of the South 
Carolina Code of Laws require that the State's 
portion of those Budgetary General Fund revenues 
shown below be expended only to support the 
specific public education agencies listed below 
(mcluding debt service on capital improvement 

bonds applicable to those agencies) and for other 
school purposes. These legal requirements are 
considered to be satisfied if the expenditures from 
Budgetary General Funds and Capital Reserve 
Funds for these particular agencies and for other 
school purposes exceeds the State's portion of the 
specified revenues. 

Gross budgetary-basis revenues: 
Retail sales tax (4%) and excise tax--casual sales ................................... . 
Alcoholic liquors tax--60% portion ............................................................ . 
Beer and wine tax--penalties and fines ..................................................... . 
Soft drinks tax ....................................................................................... . 

Budgetary-basis revenues available for appropriation ........................ . 

Total budgetary-basis revenues earmarked for public 
education (95.5% of budgetary-basis revenues 
available for appropriation) ................................................................ .. 

Budgetary-basis expenditures: 
Department of Education ........................................................................ . 
State Board of Technical and Comprehensive Education ............................ . 
Educational Television Commission ......................................................... . 
Wil Lou Gray Opportunity School. ........................................................... . 
School for the Deaf and Blind .................................................................. . 
John De La Howe School ........................................................................ . 
Debt service on capital improvement bonds applicable to 

above agencies .................................................................................... . 
Other school purposes ........................................................................... . 

Total budgetary-basis expenditures for public education ...................... .. 

Excess of budgetary-basis expenditures over revenues 
earmarked for public education ......................................................... .. 

$ 1,741,801 
20,400 

293 
19,295 

1,781,789 

1,701,608 3 

1,479,274 
158,117 
21,343 

2,898 
12,507 
3,832 

23,853 
12,487 b 

1,714,311 

$ 12,703 

•Title 6, Chapter 27 of the South Carolina Code of Laws is known as the State Aid to Subdivisions Act. That Act requires the 
State to appropriate not less than four and one-half percent (4.5%) of the latest completed fiscal year's total budgetary 
General Fund revenues to local governments. Accordingly, the State's portion of the above revenues is ninety-five and one
half percent (95.5%) of the budgetary-basis revenues available for appropriation. 

bThe Other School Purposes expenditure category includes: (1) a State supplement to school districts to help pay the district 
contribution toward public school employee benefits, (2) State expenditures for the Palmetto Unified School District, 
(3) State expenditures for the Department of Juvenile Justice's education program, and (4) State expenditures for the 
Governor's Office Division of Education. 
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Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

L. Mendel Rivers (Diane Roberts) 
L. Mendel Rivers ( 1905-1970), a native of Gum ville, served South Carolina on both the state 
and national levels, including 29 years in the United States House ofRepresentatives. 



Statistical 
Section 

This section presents certain economic and 
social data and financial trends over a 
ten-year period. 



State of South Carolina 

Expenditures by Function 
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPESa 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Function 1989 

General governmentb·································· $ 261,929 

Education .................................................. 240,491 

Individual and family servicesc .................... 1,417,641 

Health and environ men(· d .......................... 

Social services c ........................................... 

Administration of justice .............................. 256,358 

Resources and economic development. ..... 113,672 

Transportation ............................................ 249,285 

Miscellaneous ............................................. 70 

Capital outlaye ............................................. 38,634 

Debt service: 

Principal retirement. .................................. 84,680 

Interest and fiscal charges ........................ 46,077 

Intergovernmental ....................................... 1,746,987 

Total expenditures .................................. $ 4,455,824 

a General Governmental Fund Types include General and Special Revenue Funds. 

$ 

$ 

1990 1991 1992 

314,764 $ 251,692 $ 234,092 

270,237 262,697 241,230 

1,811,417 2,097,614 2,489,321 

282,580 300,250 304,488 

128,101 132,970 128,059 

265,443 274,895 274,957 

30 

25,854 25,166 22,819 

62,482 66,715 94,538 

47,902 50,825 53,911 

1,969,425 2,007,557 2,033,486 

5,178,235 $ 5,470,381 $ 5,876,901 

b Until July 1, 1990, General Government expenditures included premiums for retiree health and dental insurance for all functional areas. Since July 1, 
1990, the total premium cost has been allocated among the various functional areas. This resulted in a decrease in General Government expenditures 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1991 . 

c Beginning July 1, 1993, Individual and Family Services expenditures were divided into two new functional expenditure categories--Health and 
Environment expenditures and Social Services expenditures. Prior years were not restated for this change. 

d 

e 

Before July 1, 1995, the State used an Agency Fund to account for Medicaid assistance that the South Carolina Department of Health and Human 
Services paid to other State agency providers. Effective July 1, 1995, the State began classifying these transactions as quasi-external transactions in the 
Governmental Fund Types. Prior years were not restated for this change. 

Until July 1, 1993, all highway construction projects were included as Capital Project expenditures. Since July 1, 1993, these projects have been 
recorded rn the Special Revenue Funds. 
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State of South Carolina 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 

$ 247,452 $ 399,456 $ 352,015 $ 330,519 $ 351,156 $ 352,065 

254,464 293,158 322,219 379,984 326,103 318,558 

2,682,162 

2,166,088 2,320,642 2,946,457 3,032,995 3,121,887 

678,772 697,958 709,747 700,442 662,912 

312,961 405,503 457,008 488,425 543,456 592,556 

131,021 138,937 139,635 155,302 150,131 160,242 

290,740 214,574 203,837 218,366 230,384 281,021 

24,572 391,848 385,698 398,776 436,798 396,801 

104,316 82,602 88,765 82,997 97,728 110,076 

53,316 49,107 48,796 50,574 53,493 51' 132 

2,096,679 2,157,866 2,358,823 2,636,440 2,805,584 3,032,018 

$ 6,197,683 $ 6,977,911 $ 7,375,396 $ 8,397,587 $ 8,728,270 $ 9,079,268 
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State of South Carolina 

Revenues by Source 
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPESa 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Sources 1989 

Taxes: 

Individual income .................................... $ 1,225,648 

Retail sales and use ............................... 1,359,200 

Other ...................................................... 958,058 

Licenses, fees, and permits ...................... 150,859 

Interest and other investment 

income .................................................... 75,535 

Federal. .................................................... 1,202,502 

Departmental services b ............................ 105,484 

Contributions ........................................... 30,316 

Fines and penalties ................................... 24,235 

Other ........................................................ 44,971 

Total revenues ...................................... $ 5,176,808 

a General Governmental Fund Types include General and Special Revenue Funds. 

b 

1990 1991 1992 

$ 1,361,839 $ 1,377,825 $ 1,386,724 

1,464,989 1,463,941 1,515,223 

918,270 914,729 911,036 

163,202 198,235 218,726 

82,954 77,602 55,634 

1,650,917 1,821,552 2,140,272 

111,985 118,209 137,112 

31,812 54,337 81,232 

31,034 31,643 43,610 

37,775 32,045 43,552 

$ 5,854,777 $ 6,090,118 $ 6,533,121 

Before July 1, 1995. the State used an Agency Fund to account for Medicaid assistance that the South Carolina Department of Health and 
Human Services paid to other State agency providers. Effective July 1, 1995. the State began classifying these transactions as quasi-external 
transactions in the Governmental Fund Types. Prior years were not restated for this change. 
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State of South Carolina 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 

1993 1994 1995 1996 1997 1998 

$ 1,481,592 $ 1,519,030 $ 1,646,375 $ 1,809,287 $ 1,927,600 $ 2,103,799 

1,628,766 1 ,756,157 1,892,801 2,034,484 2,141,864 2,304,004 

983,546 999,077 1,059,846 1 '149,342 1 '163,889 1 '190,605 

300,699 307,939 255,570 243,502 258,960 281,242 

44,702 48,596 82,412 98,728 113,199 130,155 

2,228,180 2,582,498 2,787,132 2,907,661 3,087,312 3,213,004 

153,781 161,375 215,485 535,117 533,395 540,047 

101,242 82,507 89,797 106,606 115,739 155,137 

44,182 51,926 54,881 55,340 58,170 61,744 

52,796 53,195 59,716 73,639 70,424 81,067 

$ 7,019,486 $ 7,562,300 $ 8,144,015 $ 9,013,706 $ 9,470,552 $ 10,060,804 
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State of South Carolina 

Income and Sales Tax Rates 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal 
Year Individual 

Ended Income 
June 30 Tax 

1989 3-7% 

1990 3-7% 

1991 2.75-7% 

1992 2.50-7% 

1993 2.50-7% 

1994 2.50-7% 

1995 2.50-7% 

1996 2.50-7% 

1997 2.50-7% 

1998 2.50-7% 

Corporate Retail 
Income Sales 

Tax Taxa 

5% 5% 

5% 5% 

5% 5% 

5% 5% 

5% 5% 

5% 5% 

5% 5% 

5% 5% 

5% 5% 

5% 5% 

aExcludes the 2% accommodations tax and the local option sales tax. 

Source: The Department of Revenue. 
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Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Joseph Brevard Kershaw 
Born in Camden and educated at home, 
Joseph Kershaw (1822-1894) practiced 
law and became a judge. His military 
service began in the Mexican War in 
1846 and reached its zenith during the 
Civil War when Kershaw attained the 
rank of major general in the Confederate 
Army. He also served in the South 
Carolina House and Senate. 



State of South Carolina 

Net General Obligation Bonds and Notes Per Capita 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Debt Payable Net General 
Gross From Higher Net General Bonded 

Fiscal Bonded Education Bonded Debt 
Year Ended Population a Debtb Funds Debtc Per 

June 30 (Thousands) (Thousands) (Thousands) (Thousands) Capita 

1989 3,444 $ 709,165 $ 25,925 $ 683,240 $ 198.39 

1990 3,486 807,911 28,071 779,840 223.71 

1991 3,556 828,650 28,560 800,090 225.00 

1992 3,595 876,305 44,570 831,735 231.36 

1993 3,625 884,025 43,230 840,795 231.94 

1994 3,654 929,571 40,420 889,151 243.34 

1995 3,683 898,047 44,345 853,702 231.80 

1996 3,717 1,007,394 41,900 965,494 259.75 

1997 3,760 1,052,173 85,365 966,808 257.13 

1998 3,822 1,036,642 84,465 952,177 249.13 

a Office of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board. 

b Includes general obligation bonds payable and general obligation bond anticipation notes of both the General Long
Term Obligations Account Group and the Higher Education Funds and notes payable in the General Long-Term 
Obligations Account Group. 

c 
Net general bonded debt is the gross general bonded debt less the general obligation debt payable not expected to 
be repaid through general governmental resources (e.g., the debt payable from Higher Education Funds). 

Note: Assessed value data is not presented because the State of South Carolina does not receive property tax 
revenue. 
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State of South Carolina 

Computation of Legal Debt Margin 
June 30, 1998 
(Expressed in Thousands) 

Section 59-107-90 of the South Carolina Code 
of Laws limits State institution bonds legally 
outstanding to $90 million. 

Section 57-11-240 of the South Carolina Code 
of Laws and Article X, Section 13 of the South 
Carolina Constitution state that highway bonds may 
be issued if such bonds are additionally secured by a 
pledge of revenues designated by the General 
Assembly for State highway purposes from taxes or 
licenses imposed for using the public highways of 
the State. The maximum annuaf debt service on all 
highway bonds shall not exceed fifteen percent of 

the proceeds received from the designated revenues 
for the fiscal year next preceding. 

Furthermore, Section 11-11-430 states: "The 
issuance of general obligation bonds of the State 
must be limited so that the maximum annual debt 
service on all general obligation bonds of the State 
(excluding highway bonds, State institution bonds, 
tax anticipation notes, and bond anticipation notes) 
may not exceed five percent of the general revenues 
of the State for the fiscal year next preceding 
(excluding revenues which are authorized to be 
pledged for State highway bonds and State 
mstitution bonds)." 

State institution bond limitation...................................................................................................... $ 90,000 
84,465 Less: State institution bonds outstanding at June 30, 1998 ............................................................ . 

Legal debt margin at June 30, 1998-institution bonds............................................................... $ 5,535 

1996-97 rewnues deriwd from use of public highways ................................................. ................... $ 509,031 

Less: rewnues designated for specific purposes a.......................................................................... 100,592 

1996-1997 rewnues pledged for highway bonds............................................................................... $ 408,439 
===== 

1996-1997 Budgetary General Fund rewnues pledged for highway bonds.......................................... $ 101,704 
1996-1997 other rewnues pledged for highway bonds...................................................................... 306,735 

1996-1997 rewnues pledged for highway bonds............................................................................... 408,439 

15% of 1996-1997 rewnues pledged for highway bonds.................................................................... 61,266 

Less: maximum annual debt sel"ltice for highway bonds b................................................................ 12,950 

Legal debt service margin at June 30, 1998-highway bonds..................................................... $ 48,316 
===== 

1996-1997 Budgetary General Fund rewnues ................................................................................ . $ 4,588,316 
Less: 1996-1997 Budgetary General Fund rewnues pledged for 

highway bonds ......................................................................................................................... . 101,704 
Less: 1996-1997 transfers for institution bond debt sel"ltice recorded as 

Budgetary General Fund rewnues .............................................................................................. . 8,669 

1996-1997 net Budgetary General Fund rewnues ........................................................................... . 4,477,943 

5% of 1996-1997 net Budgetary General Fund rewnues .................................................................. . 223,897 
Less: maximum annual debt sel"ltice for general obligation bonds 

excluding institution and highway bonds b .................................................................................. . 130,002 

Legal debt service margin at June 30, 1998--general obligation bonds 
excluding institution and highway bonds. ............................................................................. . $ 93,895 

a These revenues, which include taxes allocated by law to the State General Fund, to other State agencies and 
funds, and to County Transportation Committees, are not available to the Department of Transportation. 

b As of June 30, 1998, the maximum annual debt service will occur in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, for 
highway bonds and in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2001, for general obligation bonds (excluding institution 
and highway bonds). 
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State of South Carolina 

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures 
for General Obligation Debt to Total 
General Governmental Expendituresa 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended 
June 30 Princi~al 

1989 $ 84,680 
1990 62,482 
1991 66,715 
1992 94,538 
1993 104,316 
1994 82,602 
1995 88,765 
1996 82,997 
1997 97,728 
1998 110,076 

a 

Interest 

$ 46,077 
47,902 
50,825 
53,911 
53,316 
49,107 
48,796 
50,574 
53,493 
51' 132 

Total General 
Debt Governmental 

Service Ex~enditures 

$ 130,757 $ 4,455,824 
110,384 5,178,235 
117,540 5,470,381 
148,449 5,876,901 
157,632 6,197,683 
131,709 6,977,911 
137,561 7,375,396 
133,571 8,397,587 
151,221 8,728,270 
161,208 9,079,268 

General Governmental Expenditures include the General and Special Revenue Funds. 

Benjamin Mays 

Ratio of 
Debt Service to 

General Governmental 
Ex~enditures 

2.93% 
2.13% 
2.15% 
2.53% 
2.54% 
1.89% 
1.87% 
1.59% 
1.73% 
1.78% 

Distinguished educator and early 
civil rights leader Benjamin Mays 
(1894-1984) was born m 
Greenwood County. From 1940 
until 1967 Mays served as 
President of Morehouse College in 
Atlanta, where he taught many 
students, including Dr. Martin 
Luther King, Jr. 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 
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State of South Carolina 

Revenue Bond Coverage-Enterprise Funds a 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

SOUTH CAROLINA HOUSING FINANCE AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY c 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended Gross Principal 
June 30 Revenues Proceeds 

1989 $ 69,673 $ 41,888 $ 
1990 71,017 45,028 
1991 73,984 44,896 
1992 68,431 103,495 
1993 64,465 94,666 
1994 53,871 116,082 
1995 52,576 44,228 
1996 51' 109 55,527 
1997 50,520 47,254 
1998 52,825 62,732 

SOUTH CAROLINA EDUCATION ASSISTANCE AUTHORITY cd 

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended Gross Principal 
June 30 Revenues Proceeds 

1989 $ 19,541 $ 10,677 $ 
1990 24,312 15,249 
1991 22,969 18,087 
1992 32,411 23,163 
1993 35,697 28,402 
1994 35,207 32,965 
1995 41,164 36,715 
1996 44,597 47,735 
1997 45,130 43,907 
1998 44,708 43,402 

Direct Net Revenue 
Operating Available for 
Expensesb Debt Service 

4,758 $ 106,803 
5,853 110,192 
5,265 113,615 
5,314 166,612 
5,797 153,334 
5,703 164,250 
6,611 90,193 
6,093 100,543 
6,273 91,501 
6,608 108,949 

Direct Net Revenue 
Operating Available for 
Expensesb Debt Service 

7,477 $ 22,741 
4,663 34,898 
8,320 32,736 
9,025 46,549 

11,299 52,800 
6,450 61,722 
7,641 70,238 
7,108 85,224 
7,479 81,558 
8,252 79,858 

"Computations are based on data provided by the authorities. There may be classification differences between this data and data found elsewhere 
in this report. 

b Excludes depreciation, amortization, and interest expense. 

c These entities use bond proceeds to make loans to non-governmental parties. Accordingly, principal proceeds received are included as a 
revenue in the calculation of the Net Revenue Available for Debt Service. 

d In years prior to 1994, the South Carolina Education Assistance Authority Fund included the Student Loan Corporation. Previous years have not 
been restated. 
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Principal 

$ 10,125 
10,010 
10,025 
11,325 
43,103 
81,965 
11,715 
9,880 

11,070 
11,645 

Principal 

$ 7,330 
11,440 
17,665 
21,320 
22,480 
24,895 
34,795 
32,155 
29,395 
47,515 

Debt Service Requirements 

Interest Total 

$ 55,412 $ 65,537 
56,661 66,671 
59,359 69,384 
59,468 70,793 
49,503 92,606 
39,405 121,370 
35,307 47,022 
34,492 44,372 
33,588 44,658 
33,629 45,274 

Debt Service Requirements 

Interest 

$ 7,477 
11,864 
12,419 
14,284 
17,507 
19,199 
21,469 
23,563 
21,971 
20,275 

Total 

$ 14,807 
23,304 
30,084 
35,604 
39,987 
44,094 
56,264 
55,718 
51,366 
67,790 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

State of South Carolina 

Coverage 
Ratio 

1.63 
1.65 
1.64 
2.35 
1.66 
1.35 
1.92 
2.27 
2.05 
2.41 

Coverage 
Ratio 

1.54 
1.50 
1.09 
1.31 
1.32 
1.40 
1.25 
1.53 
1.59 
1.18 

Benjamin Ryan Tillman 
Benjamin Ryan "Pitchfork Ben" 
Tillman (1847-1918) was a popular 
governor and senator whose legacy to 
South Carolina was the founding of 

Winthrop and Clemson Universities. 
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State of South Carolina 

Demographic Statistics 
Last Ten Years 

Median 
Per Capita Age• 

Population• Income• (Years) 
at Year Ended at 

Year June 30 December31 June 30 

1988 3,400,000 $ 13,192 31.0 

1989 3,444,000 13,884 31.4 

1990 3,486,310 15,106 31.7 

1991 3,556,000 15,482 32.2 

1992 3,595,000 16,467 32.6 

1993 3,624,570 17,242 32.9 

1994 3,653,615 18,072 33.3 

1995 3,683,395 19,073 33.7 

1996 3,716,645 19,898 34.1 

1997 3,760,181 20,755 34.5 

1998 3,821,900 d 35.0 

Sources: 

•office of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board 

bSouth Carolina Department of Education 

csouth Carolina Employment Security Commission 

dNot yet available. 
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School Unemployment 
Enrollmentb Ratec 

at at 
June 30 December 31 

676,847 4.3% 

678,050 4.6% 

677,356 5.2% 

681,717 6.5% 

685,744 6.7% 

688,513 7.3% 

692,515 5.2% 

701,140 5.5% 

699,058 5.8% 

708,751 3.7% 

718,969 d 



Property Value, Construction, and Bank Deposits 
Last Ten Years 

(Dollars in Millions) 

Nonresidential Residential 
Construction Construction8 

State of South Carolina 

Pro~ert~ Valueb 

Thousands of Number of Bank Nonresidential Residential 
Square Feet at Units at Value at Deposits at at at 

Year December 31 December31 December31 December31 June 30 June 30 

1987 26,085 26,991 $ 1,489 $ 23,612 $ 28,364 $ 29,114 

1988 24,598 25,563 1,438 26,022 34,127 31,241 

1989 20,263 20,530 1,252 27,849 34,936 33,869 

1990 20,866 22,454 1,475 29,091 37,079 38,852 

1991 18,504 19,309 1,372 29,528 39,089 41,220 

1992 16,747 20,853 1,585 30,224 41,104 45,926 

1993 18,139 21 '186 1,662 31,005 43,084 50,963 

1994 19,566 23,670 1,898 30,475 44,204 54,118 

1995 23,618 22,400 1,826 33,035 45,334 57,987 

1996 26,381 28,281 2,402 30,032 46,864 60,977 

1997 31,397 27,984 2,430 23,515 d d 

1998 c c c c d d 

a The residential construction statistics exclude mobile home permits. 

b Property taxes do not represent a source of revenue for the State. 

c Not yet available. 

d 
Due to legislation requiring that tax assessments be based on the prior year's property value, neither the 1997 nor 
1998 information is yet available. 

Sources: Board of Economic Advisors, State Budget and Control Board; Department of Revenue; University of South 
Carolina, College of Business Administration, Division of Research. 
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State of South Carolina 

Largest Manufacturing Companiesa 
December 31, 1997 

Name 

Westinghouse Electric Corporation ............ . 

Springs Industries, Incorporated ................ .. 

Milliken & Company .................................. .. 

Michelin Tire Corporation .......................... .. 

WestPoint Stevens .................................... . 

Robert Bosch GmbH .................................. . 

Hoechst AG ............................................... . 

AB Electro lux Sweden ................................ . 

Ingersoll-Rand Company ............................ . 

Greenwood Mills, Incorporated .................. .. 

W. R. Grace & Company .......................... .. 

AlliedSignal, Incorporated .......................... . 

KEMET Corporation ................................... . 

JPS Textile Group ...................................... . 

E. I. du Pont de Nemours .......................... .. 

Ryobi North America, Incorporated ............ . 

Gold Kist Incorporated .............................. . 

General Electric Company ........................ .. 

Spartan Mills ............................................. . 

Sonoco Products Company ........................ . 

Avondale Mills ........................................... . 

Owens-Corning Fiberglas Corporation ......... 

Number of Plants 
in South Carolina 

3 

20 

30 

7 

6 

5 

4 

2 

5 

9 

5 

6 

4 

5 

4 

3 

1 

2 

8 

5 

8 

4 

Number of Employees 
in South Carolina 

13,036 

9,301 

7,639 

6,346 

4,677 

3,748 

3,529 

3,100 

3,080 

2,939 

2,938 

2,696 

2,631 

2,535 

2,495 

2,467 

2,353 

2,325 

2,284 

2,276 

2,227 

2,225 

aBased on number of employees. This list includes all companies with 2,200 or more employees. 

Source: 1998-99 South Carolina Industrial Directory. 
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Miscellaneous Statistics 
December 31, 1997 (Except as Noted) 

Date of ratification--U. S. Constitution ....................................................................... . 

Form of government. ................................................................................................. . 

Miles of State highways ............................................................................................. . 

Land area (square miles) ........................................................................................... . 

State police protection: 

Police and sheriff agencies .................................................................................... . 
Total number of sworn officers .............................................................................. . 

Higher education (universities, colleges, and 
technical education centers): 

Number of campuses ............................................................................................ . 
Number of students ............................................................................................... . 

Recreation: 

Number of State parks and historical sites ............................................................ . 
Area of State parks ................................................................................................ . 
Area of State forests .............................................................................................. . 

State employees--all funds (at June 30, 1998) ........................................................... . 

Sources: 

a1998 Legislative Manual 

bDepartment of Transportation 

cOffice of Research and Statistics, State Budget and Control Board 

dState Law Enforcement Division 

eCommission on Higher Education 

1Department of Parks, Recreation, and Tourism 

9Forestry Commission 

hOffice of State Budget, State Budget and Control Board 

State of South Carolina 

Legislative-Executive-Judicial 

30, 111c 

561 

81 , 799 acres1 

71,922 acres9 

68,872h 

181 



182 

John C. Calhoun 

Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 

Born in Abbeville, John C. Calhoun's (1782-1850) lengthy political career included service 
as Secretary of State, Secretary of War, and Vice-President under Andrew Jackson and John 
Quincy Adams. He achieved lasting fame in the United States Senate, where he was well 
known for his rhetorical skills and advocacy of states' rights. 



Photograph is not available 
in web version of CAFR 
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to be added to the document. 




